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SENA TOR NETHING: Opened the nearing on SB 2003 , A BILL for an Act to provide an 
appropriation for defraying the expenses of the attorney general; to provide statements of 
legislative intent; and to amend and reenact section 54-12-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to the salary of the attorney general. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: Attorney General, to testify in support of SB 2003. (testimony attached 
pages 1-3) (tape 2812-2830) 

JERALD KEMMET: Bureau of Criminal Investigation, Acting Director, to testify in support of 
SB 2003. (testimony attached, pages 4-8) (tape 3723-4525). We want to publicly thank the 
Governor for including some of our important elements in his budget. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The FTE's you' re getting from federal funding on this project, is that 
for two years? And, are you informing them they ' re being hired for a two-year job? 

JERALD KEMMET: Yes, they received letters indicating they are on soft money and that when 
the federal money goes away, their FTE also goes with that federal money. 

CHER THOMAS: Information Technology Division, Director, to speak in support of SB 2003 
(testimony attached, pages 9-12) (tape 1, side B, 4 780-end plus tape 2, side A 0-560). I will place 
5 copies of the IT plan on file with the clerk. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: What happens if the computers shut down? Will we be able to solve 
anything? Is it getting so complicated that all we' re doing is fixing technology? 

CHER THOMAS: Technology is getting complex. We are very dependent upon technology. 
Crooks are also getting more complex. 
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HEIDI HEITKAMP: I share your concern. As we look into the future--2000 if we are not 
prepared to deal with computer crimes, we will not be prepared to protect the citizens of the state 
of ND. We have tobacco and alcohol moving on the Internet, crimes being committed on a 
regular basis, and we need to be prepared. We need to figure out a way to share that information 
for our remote locations. 

In reference to the gaming grants (tape 815). We currently have 10 staff people in the gaming 
area. They are supported by law enforcement throughout the state. They are our eyes and ears as 
to what is happening even though they may not deal with it everyday, if we pick up the phone 
and call , we expect they will run out to that remote site and help us do the investigation on the 
pull-tab burglaries we 've had. I want to personally support reinstatement of the gaming grant 
dollars. You will notice there has been a decline over the last years, and now we ' re taking them 
to nothing. We find that frequently the money gained from gaming grants is put into the city or 
county general fund and the law enforcement official never sees it. I think we should explore the 
idea of doing a direct grant to law enforcement so that we know the money is being used to 
protect our citizens against gaming fraud. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: Another problem we have to address is that after we catch a criminal 
and they go through the comi systems, they let them go. That is a major problem. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: You need to address that to the Judicial System and Department of 
Corrections. We can relate information about how many criminals are apprehended and their 
crimes from counties, but we can't track them to let you know what has happened to them in the 
judicial system. 

SENATOR GRINDBERG: (tape 1110) In following the numbers in your budget that you 
talked about previously, ND has the lowest crime rate in the nation. But when we look at your 
present budget and look at the Governor' s proposed budget and compare that to column 10, help 
me understand that would be an 11 percent increase in funding when you consider all of your 
sources and a five percent reduction in the general fund. If we look at the agency's request, we 
would have a $3.2M general fund increase or 20 percent general fund increase. Help me 
understand these increases based on a state that has a decreasing population and the lowest crime 
rate. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: (tape 1265) When you look at what we are asking for in general fund 
increases, a fair amount of this is program information that the Governor has laid across to all of 
the agencies, including salary increases, increases in ongoing operating costs, things he has 
budgeted that are inflation adjustments. So you cannot say all of this is unique to the Office of 
the Attorney General. A fair portion of this are increases that you are going to see in every budget 
that comes along. In the very last column, you will note the difference between our budget 
request and the Governor' s budget request is in part funding sources. The information you just 
heard, the money for the positions that Cher just talked about is in the budget as federal dollars 
that we do not think will come to fund those positions. The change in FTE' s are in the area of 
methamphetamines and criminal history improvement projects, and to provide quicker 
information to individuals who want criminal backgrounds. A lot of increases we have and that 
this body has supported over the years has resulted in continuing to give ND the resources to be 
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the lowest crime rate state in the nation. I consider BCI' s budget a support budget for local law 
enforcement agencies. The increases we are asking for are in the area of BCI. 

KEITH LAUER: Gaming Division, Director (testimony attached pages 12-13) (tape 1540-1965) 

DEBORAH K. NESS: Bismarck Police Department, Chief of Police to testify in response to the 
proposed reduction or elimination of gaming enforcement funds from the 1999-2000 budget. 
(attachment A) (tape 2075-2450) 

DENNIS ROHR: Mandan Police Department, Chief of Police to testify in support of reinstating 
the gaming funds. For the past six years, I have an investigator assigned to gaming investigations. 
We receive approximately $14,500 which would accommodate 50 percent of this investigator' s 
salary . Investigations are becoming very lengthy. I also support the grant application process. 
(tape 2695-2700) 

BEN CLAPP: Plains Art Museum, Fargo. We are well supported by two gaming sites. I am 
compelled for better enforcement of the gaming laws that you have passed and the regulations 
that are interpretative to speak for the reinstatement of the grants. We have local agencies that 
support the laws on gaming. The annual audits bring about a keener awareness of those 
regulations and laws. Without that annual inspection gaming would stray and without local 
enforcement I believe gaming would have a tendency to stray. I would encourage you to look at 
reinstating these grants. (tape 2720-2980) 

SENATOR SOLBERG: How many sites do you run, and where are they located? 

BEN CLAPP: There are two--both are in Fargo. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: How many arrests by local law enforcement officials have been made 
at your sites for gaming violations? 

BEN CLAPP: I believe the local law enforcement has assisted us 3 times when we thought there 
was employee theft. On an annual basis, the local examining individual comes in and goes 
through a thorough audit. 

RICHARD PECK: National Peace Officers Association, the Chiefs Association, and the 
Sheriffs Association here to support the Attorney General's budget and the grant application. 
There are a lot of departments I have talked to that have received money and have no knowledge 
of it. It all goes to the auditor and into the general fund. I think through the grant application it 
would be better used and offset some of their budget process. (tape 3169-3230) 

SENATOR ANDRIST: The problem with grant money is that the money is reduced because of 
the amount of time required to make the grant application as well as time needed to review the 
application. Don't we end up with big cities getting all funds? 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: We hope we will be able to incorporate this with a number of the grant 
programs we run, and do some of it simultaneously. We hope to have the application managed by 
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local law enforcement. For smaller communities, we would regionalize the dollars and ask 
smaller communities to form coalitions. The most troublesome part for us in rural communities 
are the pull-tab sites. 

SENATOR NETHING: Recessed the hearing until 2:00 p.m. 

SENATOR NETHING: Reconvened the hearing on SB 2003 

SENATOR ROBINSON: Regarding section 3 of SB 2003. The attorney general assured me 
they have solved this problem. 

ROSELLAN SAND: I believe Dave from 0MB has an amendment to section 3 which resolves 
the issue. Apparently what happened in the drafting there was some miscommunication about 
what entities had to be billed and which ones would not. We have worked with Mr. Backman's 
office and we will bill those entities that pay into the fire and tornado fund; those entities that do 
not pay into the fire and tornado fund will not be billed. Instead we will write up a memorandum 
noting cost of services provided. When the federal government does its audit, we will have 
proper documentation. (tape 3490) 

DA VE KRABBENHOFT: (0MB) That is correct. When we drafted the bill, we turned it 
around and the amendment proposes to switch it back so entities that are covered by the fire and 
tornado fund will be billed, and the other entities that do not contribute will not be billed. They 
will have a memorandum billing. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: I want to be more responsive to Senator Grindberg's earlier question. The 
changes go over to the general fund in our budget. This provides information on the numbers and 
where they come from. This provides a better explanation of the changes than the sheet we 
distributed this morning. (attachment B) 

SENATOR NETHING: I'm trying to figure out how much money you are asking to be 
restored? Initially I thought it was $188,000. (tape 434 7) 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: No, that is the net change when you net our budget against all funds. If 
you took all funds and compared the Governor's budget with our budget, that is the net. We're 
asking for a net change increase in our budget of $186,000. But, the general fund impact is 
greater than that. The Governor's changes on the general fund portion are already built into the 
executive budget. 

SENATOR NETHING: You' re asking us to restore $IM? 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: No, I'm asking you to restore $ l .8M. You are not going to see that in our 
salary line item because those IT positions we talked about this morning were funded with 
federal funds in the executive budget. You see a funding change that we're requesting. Not an 
appropriation beyond what the Governor gave us, we're simply saying the funding source is 
wrong. We are not certain the federal funding is there for those positions. 



Page 5 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2003.lwp 

• Hearing Date 1/ 14/99 

• 

• 

SENATOR NETHING: I understand your problem, I want you to understand my mine. The 
Governor says we do not appropriate more than $14,122,905. That doesn't fit too well with 
$1 ,800,000 addition. Part of my other problem you made a selection to reduce this $792,000 and 
the Governor did that. Now, you' re asking us to put that back. If we do, we have to go in and 
make the reductions you didn ' t want to. You made a choice. We 've got a bottom line. The 
subcommittee will have to do something that they don't know much about, but they have a dollar 
assignment they have to reach. In addition, there is another $1 ,075 ,000 that you want added. 
We ' re a long way from home. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: We didn' t want to cut any of this. We were forced to make choices. We 
talk about the 5 percent reduction, it actually was more than that because the bulk of what we do 
is in salaries, and the Governor did not fund in his executive budget the second year of the budget 
increases that he gave for this fiscal year. And so for us it actually was a 7 percent reduction. We 
are willing to work with the subcommittee. 

DAVE KRABBENHOFT: (0MB) We have an amendment on SB 2003. When the Executive 
budget eliminated the arrest and return of fugitives we missed the part in the Century Code where 
it makes reference that the state will pay for the arrest and return of fugitives. So I have an 
amendment to the bill to remove the reference to the state for the arrest and return of fugitives. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Is your amendment to restore $30,000 for the arrest and return? 

DA VE KRABBENHOFT: (0MB) Our amendment is to remove from the code the reference 
that the state will pay for the arrest and return of fugitives that are charged with felonies. So we 
are holding at zero for that. 

HEIDI HEITKAMP: The funding level of this biennium was $18,900 that was not enough 
money to get us through this biennium. We went to the emergency commission and got 
additional dollars. We ' re saying restore that function, that obligation, and to do it right we are 
going to need $30,000. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: What do other states do in terms of extradition? 

BOB BENNETT: Attorney General's Office, Arrest and Return Division: The payment of 
extradition expense is basically state-by-state. We have in ND for many years the payment of the 
extradition expenses. It did not apply to misdemeanors or to city ordinance violations. However, 
we have done that. When I came here about 14 years ago, there was about $30,000 appropriated. 
We ran out, and at that point it was run through the Governor ' s office. Then it came to the 
Attorney Generals Office and the appropriation was cut down to about $16,000. A couple of 
other times we ran out and had to go to the emergency commission. This is totally driven by the 
county ' s states attorney ' s law enforcement as to the number of extraditions we have and the costs 
incurred. The largest increase in our current costs was in airfares. Air fares that used to cost 
$2,000 now cost $4,000. So instead of funding 30-40 extradictions during the year we were 
funding 12-13. Some counties incur their own costs. Counties located along the borders never 
send a bill in unless it requires travel a distance into the state. The funding source is determined 
largely state-by-state. 
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SENATOR NETHING: Basically all you're paying is the tran~ortation costs? 

BOB BENNETT: What we pay is what a state employee would earn, the transportation, and per 
diem (side B, 5225) 

SENATOR BOWMAN: I think it is difficult to predict a budget for arrest and return of felons. 
You do not know how many cases this will involve. It seems the emergency fund is the best 
choice for funding these special circumstances. 

~r-a.&J' NETHING: Closed the hearing on SB 2003 (side B, 128) 

(tape 1, side B 370-1670) 

SENATOR NETHING: Reopened the hearing on SB 2003. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Presented amendments to SB 2003. 
SENATOR NAADEN: Moved do pass amendments to SB 2003. 
SENATOR HOLMBERG: Seconded the motion 
MOTION CARRIED TO DO PASS AMENDMENTS TO SB 2003 BY UNANIMOUS 

VOICE VOTE "'-"' 

,11 
CARRIER: SENATOR ST. AUBYN r 
SENATOR NETHING: Closed the hearing on SB 2003 / 

- -

. Tape 1, Side B 4245-4543 

S R NETHING: Reopened the hearing on SB 2003 

SENATOR NAADEN: Presented information regarding a new section which includes an 
emergency measuare, page 2, section 12, that needs to be included in the amendments to SB 
2003. 

SENATOR NETHING: Called for a motion to reconsider our earlier action on SB 2003 

SENATOR HOLMBERG: Moved to reconsider earlier action on SB 2003 
SENATOR GRINDBERG: Seconded the motion. 

SENATOR HOLMBERG: Moved to reconsider earlier action on amendments to SB 2003 
SENATOR GRINDBERG: Seconded the motion. 
MOTION CARRIED BY unanimous voice vote to approve the motion. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Moved to adopt amendment which will put the emergency clause into 
the bill. 
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SENATOR TALLACKSON: Seconded the motion. 
MOTION CARRIED BY unanimous voice vote to approve the motion. 

SENA TOR NAADEN: Moved do pass SB 2003 as amended. 
SENA TOR HOLMBERG: Seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL #2: 13 AYES; 0 NAYS; 1 ABSENT & NOT VOTING 
MOTION CARRIED TO DO PASS SB 2003 AS AMENDED. 
Yeas: Nething; Naaden; Solberg; Lindaas; Tallackson; Robinson; Krauter; St. Aubyn; Grindberg; 
Holmberg; Kringstad; Bowman; Andrist 
Absent & Not Voting: Tomac 

CARRIER: SENATOR NAADEN 

SENATOR NETHING: Closed the hearing on SB 2003 . 



FISCAL NOTE 

- eturn original and JO copies) 

. iVResolution No.: SB 2003 Amendment to: 

Requested by Legislative Council Date of Request: 12/30/98 

I. Please estimate the fiscal impact (in dollar amounts) of the above measure for state general or special funds, counties, cities, and 
school districts. Please provide breakdowns, if appropriate, showing salaries and wages, operating expenses, equipment, or other 
details to assist in the budget process. In a word processing format, add lines or space as needed or attach a supplemental sheet to 
adequately address the fiscal impact of the measure. 

Narrative: This bill reflects the Office of Attorney General's appropriation and Attorney General salary increase. It provides for 
a $792,278 reduction in local gaming enforcement grants, with the remaining $221 ,877 to be allocated on a competitive basis. 
The 1997-99 biennium appropriation for these grants is $1,104,155. The effect on cities and counties is not included in this 
fiscal note. 

The bill requires that the Office of Attorney General bill for the Fire Marshal Division work completed for entities not covered by 
the state Fire and Tornado fund, and deposit the revenues into the General Fund Work performed for these types of entities is 
approximately 62% of the Fire Marshal staff workload. Currently, the Fire and Tornado fund provides all resources (except for 
federal funds) needed for Fire Marshal operations. The anticipated cost of billing these entities costs is $10,200 (General Fund) 
for the 1999-200 I biennium, which is not reflected in the Executive Recommendation. Collection costs can not be determined 
because there is no precedent for this process. 

In addition, the bill requires the Office of Attorney General to provide a detailed memorandum billing to the Insurance 
Department for Fire Marshal services performed for entities insured by the state Fire and Tornado Fund. The bill includes a 
$385,517 transfer from the Fire and Tornado fund for these services. The Fire Marshal staff work performed for these entities is 
approximately 38% of its total workload. 

• State fiscal effect in dollar amounts: 

1997-99 1999-2001 2001-03 
Biennium Biennium Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 
Revenues 0 0 Unknown $ Unknown 
Expenditures 0 0 $617,030* $ $650,000* 

3. What, if any, is the effect of this measure on the budget for your agency or department: 

a. 
b. 

For rest of 1997-99 biennium: 
For the 1999-2001 biennium: 

c. For the 2001-03 biennium: 

No effect for 1997-99. 
The 1999-2001 executive budget includes $606,829 in General Fund moneys and 
$385,517 from the Fire & Tornado fund. The executive budget does not address the 
additional workload caused by this billing change, estimated to cost $10,200. 
• Again, the total collection costs can not be estimated at this time. 

4. County, city, and school district fiscal effect in dollar amounts: 

1997-99 1999-2001 2001-03 
Biennium Biennium Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

• 

$ 
0 
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Prepared by the Legislat ive Council staff fo r 
Senator Naaden 

February 15, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 1, line 2, after "section" insert "12-60-16.9, subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14, and 
section" 

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "criminal history background checks , gaming stamp fees , and" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "14,181 ,012"with "14,034,903" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "4,753 ,803" with "4,772,703" 

Page 1, after line 15, insert: 

"Arrest and return of fug itives 

Page 1, line 17, replace "244,548" with "222,067" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "2 ,528,385" with "2,344,118" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "628,844" with "627,280" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "2,745,933" wi th "1,604,175" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "31,402,369" with "29,935,090" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "17,279,464" with "15,946,103" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "14,122,905" with "13,988,987" 

Page 2, line 7, remove "not" 

10,000" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "Fees collected for these services must be deposited in the general 
fund ." 

Page 2, line 9, after "entities" insert "not" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "fire and tornado fund" with "entity receiving the service" 

Page 2, line 12, remove "from the fire and tornado fund" 

Page 2, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE INTENT • ARREST AND RETURN OF 
FUGITIVES - EMERGENCY COMMISSION REQUEST. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth 
legislative assembly that the attorney general submit a request to the emergency 
commission for additional appropriation authority from the state contingencies 
appropriation for reimbursing counties for costs relating to the arrest and return of 
fugit ives if the funding provided for this purpose in section 1 of this Act is not adequate 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001 . 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 12-60~ 16.9 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

Page No. 1 98025.0102 



12-60-16.9. Criminal history record information - Fee for record check. 
The bureau shall impose a fee of twenty dollars for a record check conducted for a 
noncriminal justice agency that is not also a court. Funds collected from this fee must 
be deposited in the attorney general's operating fund . 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14 of the 1997 
Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. A licensed distributor shall affix a North Dakota gaming stamp to each deal 
of pull tabs and bingo cards, punchboard, sports pool board, calcutta 
board, and series of paddlewheel ticket cards sold and shall purchase the 
stamps from the attorney general for P,¥enty live thirty-five cents each. Ten 
cents of each stamp sold, up to thirty-six thousand dollars per biennium , 
must be credited to the attorney general's operating fund to defray the 
costs of issuing the gaming stamps." 

Page 2, line 30, replace "sixty-eight" with "sixty-five", replace "three" with "seven" , and replace 
"eighty-eight" with "fifty-three" 

Page 3, line 1, after "2000" insert ", sixty-seven thousand sixty-eight dollars through 
December 31, 2000", replace "seventy" with "sixty-nine", overstrike "four hundred", and 
replace "fQtly" with "two" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 

EXECUTIVE SENATE SENATE 
BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $14.181.012 ($146.109) $14.034 .903 
Operating expenses 4.753.803 18.900 4.772.703 
Equipment 868,710 868.710 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396.025 
Litigation fees 50.000 50,000 
Gaming Commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 (22.481) 222,067 
Nat. criminal history 2,528,385 (184,267) 2.344, 118 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs 628.844 (1.564) 627.280 
High-intensity drug 2,745,933 (1,141 ,758) 1,604,175 

trafficking area 
Arrest and return of 10,000 10.000 

fugitives 

Total all funds $31,402,369 ($1 ,467.279) $29,935,090 

Less special funds 17 279 464 ( 1,333,361 l 15,946,103 

General fund $14,122,905 ($133 .918) $13,988 ,987 

FTE 167.50 (7.00) 160.50 

Detail of Senate changes to the executive budget includes: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation lees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
Nat. criminal history 

REDUCE 
COMPENSATION 

PACKAGE 
TO 212 

($184,499) 

(2,629) 
(2,791) 

ADJUST 
HEALTH 

INSURANCE 
COST 

$41 ,914 

570 
1,140 

DELAY 
MARKET 
SALARY 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 1/1/2001 

($3,524) 1 

(20.422) 2 

Page No. 2 

ADO 
ARREST ANO 
RETURN OF 
FUGITIVES 
FUNDING 

CHANGE 
FUNDING ADD 

SOURCE FOR SPECIAL 
INFO TECH FUND 
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mprove ;)rO!eCt 
Law enforcement programs ,2. t34) 570 
H1g h-1ntens1ty arug I 12.966) 3,421 

traff icking area 
Arrest and return of $10,000 3 

fugitives 

Total all funds ($205,019) $47,615 ($23 ,946) $10 ,000 $0 $0 

Less special funds (26,492) 7,360 (250,600) 25t ,200 

General fund ($178 ,527) $40,255 ($23 ,946) $10 ,000 $250 ,600 ($251 ,200) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REDUCE 
REDUCE HIGH 

NATIONAL INTENSITY ADD 
INSTANT DRUG FUNDING 
CHECK TRAFF ICKING FOR BCI TOTAL 

SYSTEM AREA BULLET-PROOF SENATE 
FUNDING FUNDING VESTS CHANGES 

Salaries and wages ($146,109) 
Operating expenses $18,900 18,900 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission (22.481) 
Nat. criminal history ($182,616)6 (184,267) 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs (1,564) 
High-intensity drug ($1 ,132,213) 7 (1,141 ,758) 

trafficking area 
Arrest and return of 10,000 

fugitives 

Total all funds ($182,616) ($1,132.213) $18,900 ($1 ,467,279) 

Less special funds (1 82,616) (1,132,213) (1 ,333,361) 

General fund $0 $0 $18,900 ($133,918) 

FTE (3.00) (4.00) 0.00 (7.00) 

Senate changes narrative: 

1 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases. funding is included to provide the Attorney General a market equity salary increase of 
$ 161 . 1 7 per month for the final six months of the biennium. The statutory annual salary for the Attorney General will be: 

Current salary 
July 1, 1999 
July 1, 2000 
January 1 . 2001 

$64,464 
$65,753 
$67,068 
$69,002 

0.00 

2 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases. funding is include to provide the Racing Commissioner a market equity salary increase of 
$934 per month for the final six months of the biennium. 

3 Adds funding for reimbursing counties for arrest and return of fugitives which was eliminated in the executive budget. A section is added providing 
that the Attorney General seek Emergency Commission approval for additional funding from the state contingencies appropriation if the $10,000 
provided is not adequate for the 1999-2001 biennium. 

4 Adds general fund support to replace a portion of federal funds which will not be available for information technology staff salaries. 

5 A section is added amending NDCC Section 12-60-16.9 providing that fees charged by the Attorney General's office for conducting background 
checks for noncriminal justice agencies be deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund rather than the general fund. This change will reduce 
1999-2001 estimated general fund revenues by $248,000. 

s Reduces federal funds relating to the National Instant Check System because the funds will not be available. 

7 Reduces federal funding for the high-intensity drug trafficking area (HIDTA) program to the level anticipated to be received through June 30, 2001 . 
A section is added making this line item an emergency measure, wh ich will allow the Attorney General to begin spending these federal funds prior 
to July 1. 1999. 

A section is added amending NDCC Section 53-06.1-14 increasing the fee for gaming stamps by 1 O cents each. from 25 to 35 cents. Revenues from 
this source of up to $36,000 per biennium is deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund . Any additional revenue is deposited in the general 
fund. The revenues and anticipated expenditures were included in the executive recommendation for the Attorney General but the statutory change 
was not included in the bill . 

Section 3 of the bill is changed to provide that the State Fire Marshal bill the entities insured by the fire and tornado fund for fire marshal services and 
provide a memorandum billing to the entities not insured by the fire and tornado fund. The bill previously provided that entities not insured by the fi re 
and tornado fund be billed for services and the fire and tornado fund be provided a memorandum billing. 
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98025.0103 
Title.0200 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for -
Senate Appropriations ,,,/ . 2, 

February 15, 1999 _- __ ;..:;, ____ __ _,,, 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2003 t c ~ L\ 
SENATE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2003 APPROP. 2/15/99 

Page 1, line 2, remove the first "and" and after "section" insert "12-60-16.9, subsection 3 of 
section 53-06.1-14, and section" 

Page 1 , line 3, after "to" insert "criminal history background checks, gaming stamp fees, and" 
and after "general" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "14,181,012" with "14,034,903" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "4,753,803" with "4,772,703" 

Page 1 , after line 15, insert: 

"Arrest and return of fugitives 

Page 1, line 17, replace "244,548" with "222,067" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "2,528,385" with "2,344,118" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "628,844" with "627,280" 

Page 1 , line 20, replace "2,745,933" with "1,604, 175" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "31,402,369" with "29,935,090" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "17,279,464" with "15,946,103" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "14,122,905" with "13,988,987" 

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2003 APPROP. 

Page 2, line 7, remove "not" 

10,000" 

2/15/99 

Page 2, line 8, remove "Fees collected for these services must be deposited in the general 
fund." 

Page 2, line 9, after "entities" insert "not" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "fire and tornado fund" with "entity receiving the service" 

Page 2, line 12, remove "from the fire and tornado fund" 

Page 2, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE INTENT-ARREST ANO RETURN OF 
FUGITIVES - EMERGENCY COMMISSION REQUEST. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth 
legislative assembly that the attorney general submit a request to the emergency 
commission for additional appropriation authority from the state contingencies 
appropriation for reimbursing counties for costs relating to the arrest and return of 
fugitives if the funding provided for this purpose in section 1 of this Act is not adequate 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001 . 
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SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 12-60-16.9 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

12-60-16.9. Criminal history record information - Fee for record check. 
The bureau shall impose a fee of twenty dollars for a record check conducted for a 
noncriminal justice agency that is not also a court. Funds collected from this fee must 
be deposited in the attorney general's operating fund. 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14 of the 1997 
Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. A licensed distributor shall affix a North Dakota gaming stamp to each deal 
of pull tabs and bingo cards, punchboard, sports pool board, calcutta 
board, and series of paddlewheel ticket cards sold and shall purchase the 
stamps from the attorney general for twen~ fiYe thirty-five cents each. Ten 
cents of each stamp sold, up to thirty-six thousand dollars per biennium, 
must be credited to the attorney general's operating fund to defray the 
costs of issuing the gaming stamps." 

Page 2, line 30, replace "sixty-eight" with "sixty-five", replace "three" with "seven", and replace 
"eighty-eight" with "fifty-three" 

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2003 APPROP. 2/15/99 

Page 3, line 1, after "2000" insert", sixty-seven thousand sixty-eight dollars through 
December 31, 2000", replace "seventy" with "sixty-nine", overstrike "four hundred", and 
replace "forty" with "two" 

Page 3, after line 2, insert: 

"SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. The high-intensity drug trafficking area line item 
in section 1 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE SENATE 

BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $14.181 ,012 ($146,109) $14,034,903 
Operating expenses 4,753,803 18,900 4,772,703 
Equipment 868,710 868,710 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 50,000 
Gaming Commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 (22,481) 222,067 
Nat. criminal history 2,528,385 (184,267) 2,344,118 
improve. project 

Law enforcement programs 628,844 (1,564) 627,280 
High-intensity drug 2,745,933 (1,141,758) 1,604,175 
trafficking area 

10,000 Arrest and return of 10,000 
fugitives 

Total all funds $31,402,369 ($1,467,279) $29,935,090 

Less special funds 17,279,464 {1,333,361} 15,946,103 

General fund $14,122,905 ($133,918) $13,988,987 

FTE 167.50 (7.00) 160.50 

Detail of Senate changes to the executive budget includes: 

Page No. 2 98025.0103 
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,....., (' ' ,,.._ -_i..'4 

DELAY ADD CHANGE 
REDUCE ADJUST MARKET ARREST AND FU NDING ADD 

COMPENSATION HEALTH SALARY RETURN OF SOURCE FOR SPECIAL 
PACKAGE INSURANCE ADJUSTMENTS FUGITIVES INFO TECH FUND 

TO 2/2 COST TO 1/1/2001 FUNDING STAFF 4 REVENUE 5 

Salaries and wages ($184,499) 
Operating expenses 

$41 ,914 ($3,524) 1 

Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission (2,629) 570 (20,422)2 
Nat. criminal history (2,791) 1,140 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs (2,134) 570 
High-intensity drug (1 2,966) 3,421 
trafficking area 

Arrest and return of $10,000 3 
fug itives 

Total all funds ($205,019) $47,615 ($23,946) $10,000 $0 $0 

Less special funds (26,492) 7,360 (250,600) 251 ,200 

General fund ($178,527) $40,255 ($23,946) $10,000 $250,600 ($251 ,200) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REDUCE 
REDUCE HIGH 

NATIONAL INTENSITY ADD 
INSTANT DRUG FUNDING 
CHECK TRAFFICKING FOR SCI TOTAL 

SYSTEM AREA BULLET-PROOF SENATE 
FUNDING FUNDING VESTS CHANGES 

Salaries and wages ($146,109) 
Operating expenses $18,900 18,900 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission (22,481) 
Nat. criminal history ($182,616)6 (184,267) 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs (1,564) 
High-intensity drug ($1 ,132,213)7 (1 ,141,758) 
trafficking area 

Arrest and return of 10,000 
fugitives 

Total all funds ($182,616) ($1 ,132,213) $18,900 ($1,467,279) 

Less special funds (182,616) (1 ,132,213) (1,333,361) 

General fund $0 $0 $18,900 ($133,918) 

FTE (3.00) (4.00) 0.00 (7.00) 

Senate changes narrative: 

1 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is included to provide the Attorney General a market equity salary increase of 
$161 .17 per month for the final six months of the biennium. The statutory annual salary for the Attorney General will be: 

Current salary 
July 1, 1999 
July 1, 2000 
January 1, 2001 

$64,464 
$65,753 
$67,068 
$69,002 

2 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is include to provide the Racing Commissioner a market equity salary increase of 
$934 per month for the final six months of the biennium. 

J Adds funding for reimbursing counties for arrest and return of fugitives which was eliminated in the executive budget. A section is added providing 
that the Attorney General seek Emergency Commission approval for additional funding from the state contingencies appropriation if the $10 ,000 
provided is not adequate for the 1999-2001 biennium. 

4 Adds general fund support to replace a portion of federal funds which will not be available for information technology staff salaries. 

s A section is added amending NDCC Section 12-60-16.9 providing that fees charged by the Attorney General's office for conducting background 
checks for noncriminal justice agencies be deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund rather than the general fund. This change will reduce 
1999-2001 estimated general fund revenues by $248,000. 

6 Reduces federal funds relating to the National Instant Check System because the funds will not be available. 

7 Reduces federal funding for the high-intensity drug trafficking area (HIDTA) program to the level anticipated to be received through June 30, 2001. 
A section is added making this line item an emergency measure, which will allow the Attorney General to begin spending these federal funds prior 
to July 1 , 1999. 

Page No. 3 98025.0103 
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A section is added amending NOCC Section 53-06.1-14 increasing the fee for gaming stamps by 10 cents each, from 25 to 35 cents. Revenues from 
this source of up to $36,000 per biennium is deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund . Any additional revenue is deposited in the general 
fund . The revenues and anticipated expenditures were included in the executive recommendation for the Attorney General but the statutory change 
was not included in the bill. 

Section 3 of the bill is changed to provide that the State Fire Marshal bill the entities insured by the fire and tornado fund for fire marshal services and 
provide a memorandum billing to the entities not insured by the fire and tornado fund. The bill previously provided that entities not insured by the 1ire 
and tornado fund be billed for services and the fire and tornado fund be provided a memorandum billing . 

Page No. 4 98025.0103 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 16, 1999 8:20 a.m. 

Module No: SR-31-3064 
Carrier: Naaden 

Insert LC: 98025.0103 Title: .0200 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2003: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Nething, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2003 was placed on the Sixth 
order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, remove the first "and" and after "section" insert "12-60-16.9, subsection 3 of 
section 53-06.1-14, and section" 

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "criminal history background checks, gaming stamp fees, and" 
and after "general" insert"; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "14,181,012" with "14,034,903" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "4,753,803" with "4,772,703" 

Page 1, after line 15, insert: 
"Arrest and return of fugitives 

Page 1, line 17, replace "244,548" with "222,067" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "2,528,385" with "2,344,118" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "628,844" with "627,280" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "2,745,933" with "1,604,175" 

10,000" 

• Page 1, line 21, replace "31,402,369" with "29,935,090" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "17,279,464" with "15,946,103" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "14,122,905" with "13,988,987" 

• 

Page 2, line 7, remove "not" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "Fees collected for these services must be deposited in the general 
fund." 

Page 2, line 9, after "entities" insert "not" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "fire and tornado fund" with "entity receiving the service" 

Page 2, line 12, remove "from the fire and tornado fund" 

Page 2, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - ARREST AND RETURN OF 
FUGITIVES - EMERGENCY COMMISSION REQUEST. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth 
legislative assembly that the attorney general submit a request to the emergency 
commission for additional appropriation authority from the state contingencies 
appropriation for reimbursing counties for costs relating to the arrest and return of 
fugitives if the funding provided for this purpose in section 1 of this Act is not adequate 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 12-60-16.9 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 SR-31-3064 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 16, 1999 8:20 a.m. 

Module No: SR-31-3064 
Carrier: Naaden 

Insert LC: 98025.0103 Title: .0200 

12-60-16.9. Criminal history record information - Fee for record check. 
The bureau shall impose a fee of twenty dollars for a record check conducted for a 
noncriminal justice agency that is not also a court. Funds collected from this fee must 
be deposited in the attorney general 's operating fund. 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14 of the 1997 
Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. A licensed distributor shall affix a North Dakota gaming stamp to each deal 
of pull tabs and bingo cards , punchboard, sports pool board , calcutta 
board , and series of paddlewheel ticket cards sold and shall purchase the 
stamps from the attorney general for hventy frfe thirty-five cents each. 
Ten cents of each stamp sold, up to thirty-six thousand dollars per 
biennium, must be credited to the attorney general's operating fund to 
defray the costs of issuing the gaming stamps." 

Page 2, line 30, replace "sixty-eight" with "sixty-five", replace "three" with "seven" , and replace 
"eighty-eight" with "fifty-three" 

Page 3, line 1, after "2000" insert ", sixty-seven thousand sixty-eight dollars through 
December 31 , 2000" , replace "seventy" with "sixty-nine" , overstrike "four hundred", and 
replace "forty" with "two" 

Page 3, after line 2, insert: 

"SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. The high-intensity drug trafficking area line item 
in section 1 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE SENATE 

BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $14,181,012 ($ 146,109) $14,034,903 
Operating expenses 4,753 ,803 18,900 4,772,703 
Equipment 868,710 868 ,710 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Li tigation fees 50 ,000 50 ,000 
Gaming Commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 (22,481) 222,067 
Nat. criminal history 2,528,385 (184,267) 2,344,118 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs 628,844 (1,564) 627,280 
High-intensi ty drug 2,745,933 (1, 141 ,758) 1,604,175 

trafficking area 
Arrest and return of 10,000 10,000 

fugitives 

Total all funds $31 ,402,369 {$1,467,279) $29,935,090 

Less special funds 17,279,464 (1,333 ,361) 15,946,103 

General fund $14,122,905 ($133,918) $13,988,987 

FTE 167.50 (7.00) 160.50 

Detail of Senate changes to the executive budget includes: 
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Insert LC: 98025.0103 Title : .0200 

DELAY ADD CHANGE 
REDUCE ADJUST MARKET ARREST AND FUNDING ADD 

COMPENSATION HEALTH SALARY RETURN OF SOURCE FOR SPECIAL 
PACKAGE INSURANCE ADJUSTMENTS FUGITIVES INFO TECH FUND 

TO2/2 COST TO 1/1/2001 FUNDING STAFF 4 REVENUE 5 

Salaries and wages ($184,499) $41 ,914 ($3,524) 1 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 

(20,422) 2 Racing Commission {2,629) 570 
Nat. criminal history {2,791) 1,140 

improve. project 
Law enforcement programs {2,134) 570 
High-intensity drug (12,966) 3,421 
trafficking area 

$10,000 3 Arrest and return of 
fugitives 

Total all funds ($205,019) $47,615 ($23,946) $10 ,000 $0 $0 

Less special funds (26,492) 7,360 (250,600) 251 ,200 

General fund ($178,527) $40,255 ($23,946) $10,000 $250,600 ($251,200) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REDUCE 
REDUCE HIGH 

NATIONAL INTENSITY ADD 
INSTANT DRUG FUNDING 
CHECK TRAFFICKING FOR BCI TOTAL 

SYSTEM AREA BULLET-PROOF SENATE 
FUNDING FUNDING VESTS CHANGES 

Salaries and wages ($146,109) 
Operating expenses $18,900 18,900 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 

($182,616)6 
{22,481) 

Nat. criminal history (1 84,267) 
improve. project 

Law enforcement programs 
($1 ,132,213) 7 

{1 ,564) 
High-intensity drug {1,141,758) 
trafficking area 

Arrest and return of 10,000 
fugitives 

Total all funds ($182,616) {$1 ,132,213) $18,900 ($1,467,279) 

Less special funds (182,616) (1 ,132,213) (1 ,333 ,361) 

General fund $0 $0 $18,900 ($133,918) 

FTE (3 .00) (4.00) 0.00 (7.00) 

Senate changes narrative : 

In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is included to provide the Attorney General a market equity salary increase of 
$161.17 per month for the final six months of the biennium. The statutory annual salary for the Attorney General will be: 

Current salary 
July 1, 1999 
July 1, 2000 
January 1, 2001 

$64,464 
$65,753 
$67,068 
$69,002 

2 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is include to provide the Racing Commissioner a market equity salary increase of 
$934 per month for the final six months of the biennium. 

3 Adds funding for reimbursing counties for arrest and return of fugitives which was eliminated in the executive budget. A section is added providing 
that the Attorney General seek Emergency Commission approval for additional funding from the state contingencies appropriation if the $10,000 
provided is not adequate for the 1999-200 1 biennium . 

4 Adds general fund support to replace a portion of federal funds which wil l not be available for information technology staff salaries. 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 3 SR-31-3064 
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5 A section is added amending NDCC Section 12-60-16.9 providing that fees charged by the Attorney General's office for conducting background 
checks for noncriminal justice agencies be deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund rather than the general fund . This change will 
reduce 1999-2001 estimated general fund revenues by $248,000 . 

6 Reduces federal funds relating to the National Instant Check System because the funds will not be available. 

7 Reduces federal funding for the high-intensity drug trafficking area (HIDTA) program to the level anticipated to be received through June 30, 2001 . 
A section is added making this line item an emergency measure, which will allow the Attorney General to begin spending these federal funds prior 
to July 1, 1999. 

A section is added amending NDCC Section 53-06.1-14 increasing the fee for gaming stamps by 1 O cents each, from 25 to 35 cents. Revenues from 
this source of up to $36,000 per biennium is deposited in the Attorney General's operating fund. Any additional revenue is deposited in the general 
fund . The revenues and anticipated expenditures were included in the executive recommendation for the Attorney General but the statutory change 
was not included in the bill. 

Section 3 of the bill is changed to provide that the State Fire Marshal bill the entities insured by the fire and tornado fund for fire marshal services and 
provide a memorandum billing to the entities not insured by the fire and tornado fund. The bill previously provided that entities not insured by the fire 
and tornado fund be billed for services and the fire and tornado fund be provided a memorandum billing . 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 4 SR-31-3064 
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1999 HOUSE ST ANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2003 

House Appropriations Government Operations Committee 

□ Conference Committee 

Hearing Date March 3, 1999 

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter# 
2 X 43.7-53.5 
2 X 0-55.0 
"1 

X 0-17.4 .) 

Committee Clerk Signature ~~ ~ 
Minutes: 

A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the attorney 
general; to provide statements of legislative intent; to amend and reenact section 
12-60-16.9, subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14, and section 54-12-11 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to criminal history background checks, gaming stamp fees, and the 
salary of the attorney general; and to declare an emergency. 

2A: 43. 7 Heidi Heitkamp, Attorney General testified in favor of bill (See attached written 
testimony). Asked for restoration of the dollars for local law enforcement gaming grants. 

2B: 1.9 Jerald Kemmet, Acting Director Bureau of Criminal Investigation testified in favor 
of bill (See attached written testimony). Briefly commented on workload increase due to 
background checks on the rise, asking for one FTE regarding workload. Discussed House Bill 
1428 regarding Industrial Hemp growers and the need for two FTEs if the bill passes. 

2B: 6.1 Rep. Poolman asked about twelve FTE positions. Jerald Kemmet replied, only 8 FTEs. 

2B: 11.6 Cher Thomas, Information Technology Director testified in favor of bill (See 
attached written testimony). 

2B: 24.4 Keith Lauer, Director Gaming Division testified in favor of bill (See attached written 
testimony). Asked for restoration of the dollars for local law enforcement gaming grants. 

2B: 26.0 Rep. Byerly asked if the grants are falling due to gaming being off. Keith Lauer 
replied partially and budget cuts. 



Page 2 
House Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number 2003 
Hearing Date March 3, 1999 

2B: 28.5 Rep. Poolman asked how it is determined that the gaming dollars are being used for 
gaming enforcement. Replied don't know, done surveys in the past on jurisdictions. Rep. 
Poolman asked about intent language regarding gaming dollars and it would be more responsible 
to give the dollars to those that are actually using the money. Replied the amount of $221 ,000 
has been determined. Rep. Poolman asked if the number is now different due to requests for 
more money. Replied the dollar amount is now different from what they had initially requested. 
Rep. Poolman asked when the survey was taken. Replied three different times in the last 5-8 
years. Rep. Poolman asked what kind of problems are increasing. Replied a lot of theft, 
break-ins of cars, and embezzlement. 

2B: 35.0 Ralph Mauter, Bismarck Police Dept. testified in favor of bill (See attached written 
testimony). Asking for reinstatement of funding for availability to cities and counties for gaming 
enforcement. 

2B: 39. 7 Benn Klapp, Charitable Gaming Organization opposes reduction in grants for 
gammg. 

2B: 45.6 Rep. Byerly asked about charitable gaming administrative costs. Benn Klapp 
commented on problems associated with gaming administrative costs. 

2B: 51.0 Terri Leier-Sprenger, Gaming Auditor Fargo asked for restoration of gaming grant 
money (See attached wri tten testimony). 

3A: 1.5 Rep. Byerly asked about section 10 and if the cost is per/pull tab. It is per/box not 
per/play for a pull tab. 

3A: 3.1 Rep. Huether asked about excise tax on pull tabs. Heidi Heitkamp referred to testimony 
regarding excise tax increases. 

3A: 5.6 Rep. Poolman asked about general fund vacant FTEs. Heidi Heitkamp commented 
concern of giving up positions would reduce services and concern for grant gaming money 
regarding position. Rep. Poolman asked about ISD and IT funding for FTEs and how they will 
be funded. Each new hire will be funded on federal dollars, when funding ends - position will 
end. 

3A: 13.0 Rep. Poolman asked about $10,000 added by the Senate. Heidi Heitkamp replied it is 
resources for certain situations such as fugitive cases. Source of additional resources. 

3A: 14.4 Rep. Poolman asked about explanation of Senate reduction of four FTEs. Replied did 
not get full funding and took out excess of what was needed. It was an asked reduction by 
Attorney General Office. 

Chairman Byerly closed the hearing on Senate Bill 2003. 



Date March 23 , 1999 
Tape Number 

1 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

General Discussion 

□ Committee on Committees 

□ Rules Committee 

□ Confirmation Hearings 

□ Delayed Bills Committee 

~House Appropriations 

□ Senate Appropriations 

□ Other 

Side A B Side 
X 

~~K~ 

Chairman Byerly opened the discussion on Senate Bill 2003. 

Meter# 
17.7-40.4 

lA: 18.1 Rep. Tollefson Presented amendment 98025.0203 to committee: removal of one vacant 
FTE position in gaming system, changed funding from general funds to federal funds of 
$200,000, statutory change by Senate - reversed that. Rep. Tollefson moved to adopt the 
amendments. Rep. Huether 2nd the motion. On a Voice Vote the motion carries. 

lA: 22.9 Legislative Council commented on general fund reductions: $1,886 total. Committee 
discussed Attorney General's budget should also be adjusted with same reductions as other 
agencies budgets. 

lA: 34.8 Rep. Tollefson moved to amend $200,000 out of operating line item. Rep. Huether 
2nd the motion. On a voice vote the motion carried. 

On a Roll Call Vote the motion carried for a DO PASS AS AMENDED. 
5 Voting Yes 
1 Voting No 
Rep. Tollefson will carry the bill to the full committee. 
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Date March 24, 1999 
Tape Number 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

General Discussion 

D Committee on Committees 

D Rules Committee 

D Confirmation Hearings 

D Delayed Bills Committee 

~ouse Appropriations 

D Senate Appropriations 

D Other 

Side A B Side 
X 

Chairman Dalrymple opened the discussion on Senate Bill 2003. 

Meter # 
13.0-END 

lA: 13.0 Rep. Tollefson presented amendments 98025.0205 to the committee: brief explanation 
of amendments and overall reductions to the budget. Rep. Tollefson moved to adopt the 
amendments. Rep. Huether 2nd the motion. 

lA: 16.0 Rep. Carlson asked about the large increase of the overall budget compared to the last 
biennium. Rep. Byerly replied the increase is due to increases in federal grants for drug 
enforcement programs. 

lA: 17.5 Rep. Dalrymple asked about the 14 new FTE positions. Rep. Byerly explained those 
are federally funded positions under the High Intensity Drug Program. 

lA: 18.5 Rep. Monson asked when the federal grant money is diminished or is no longer 
available will the federally funded FTE positions remain. Rep. Byerly replied the positions will 
also diminish. Referred to session laws that assure this . 
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General Discussion 
Page 2 
House Appropriations 
March 24, 1999 

lA: 21.9 Rep. Carlson asked about the gaming enforcement dollars being decreased. Rep. 
Poolman replied the Attorney General's office has changed method regarding gaming dollars: 
reduced amount of dollars available and now cities will have to apply for grants to get gaming 
enforcement dollars. They will have to justify the need for gaming money. This new method 
was requested through 0MB and the governor's office. Rep. Tollefson further commented on 
Bismarck example. 

lA: 25.3 Rep. Carlson asked why the big cities are against this. Commented on phone call he 
received. Rep. Poolman replied because they will have to show actual merit for the money and 
justify the need for it. 

lA: 27.5 Rep. Monson expressed his concern for rural areas having to compete for gaming 
grants. Rep. Gulleson replied she also had the same concern and asked that question during the 
hearing. Felt more than convinced that rural areas will be okay and can compete for grants. 

lA: 29.6 Rep. Delzer asked about equipment line item. Rep. Tollefson replied the sub 
committee took out $200,000 in operating but had not looked at the equipment line item. 

lA: 37.0 On a Voice Vote the amendments were adopted. 

lA: 38.4 Rep. Huether presented amendment 98025.0202 to the full committee: brief 
explanation of amendment: $500,000 appropriated to Attorney General for the purpose of 
investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural production, processing, 
and marketing, and possibly addressing issues that involve international trade, industry 
concentration, the violation of state and federal antitrust laws, and fair market grading and testing 
standards. Further comments by Rep. Gulleson and Rep. Byerly. 

lA: 39.5 Rep. Monson asked if these dollars would require FTEs. Rep. Huether replied no. 
Rep. Monson commented he likes the idea of putting in direction language but doesn't see the 
need for dollars. On a Voice Vote the amendment failed. 

lA: Rep. Delzer made a motion to further amend the bill and to reduce the equipment line item 
by $57,000. Rep. Carlson 2nd the motion. On a Roll Call Vote the motion carried. 12 voting 
Yes and 8 voting No. 

lA: 47.3 Rep. Kerzman, Rep. Huether commented on frustrations of budget cuts. 

lA: 52.3 Rep. Gulleson asked for a Minority Amendment. 

lA: 53.0 Rep. Tollefson moved for a DO PASS AS AMENDED. Rep. Byerly 2nd the motion. 
On a Roll Call Vote the motion carried. 16 voting Yes and 4 voting No. 
Carrier: Rep. Tollefson 



98025.0202 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Boucher 

March 18, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of 
$500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary , to the attorney general for the 
purpose of investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural 
production, processing, and marketing, and possibly addressing issues that involve 
international trade, industry concentration, the violation of state and federal antitrust 
laws, and fair market grading and testing standards , for the biennium beginning July 1, 
1999, and ending June 30 , 2001." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 98025.0202 



98025.0205 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Government 
Operations 

March 23, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section 12-60-16.9," 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove "criminal history background checks," and remove the second comma 

Page 1, line 13, replace "14,034,903" with "13,981,817" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "4,772,703" with "4,572,703" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "29,935,090" with "29,682,004" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "15,946,103" with "15,894,903" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "13,988,987" with "13,787,101" 

Page 3, remove lines 4 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $14.181,012 $14,034,903 ($53,086) 
Operating expenses 4,753 ,803 4,772,703 (200,000) 
Equipment 868,710 868,710 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 50,000 
Gaming Commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 222 ,067 
National criminal history 2,528,385 2,344,118 
improvement project 

Law enforcement programs 628,844 627,280 
High-intensity drug 2,745,933 1,604,175 
trafficking area 
Arrest and return 10,000 
of fugitives 

Total all funds $31 ,402,369 $29,935,090 ($253,086) 

Less special funds 17 279,464 15,946 ,1 03 (51 ,200) 

General fund $14,122,905 $13,988,987 ($201 ,886) 

FTE 167.50 160.50 (1.00) 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

Salaries and wages 

REMOVE 
VACANT 

POSITION 

($53,086) 1 

REMOVE 
SPECIAL 

FUND 
REVENUE 

CHANGE 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

Page No. 1 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$13,981,817 
4,572,703 

868,710 
5,396,025 

50,000 
5,109 

222,067 
2,344,118 

627,280 
1,604,175 

10,000 

$29,682,004 

15,894,903 

$13,787,101 

159.50 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

($53,086) 

98025.0205 



• 

• 

Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Lit igation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
National criminal history 
improvement project 

Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug 
trafficking area 

Arrest and return 
of fugitives 

Total all funds 

Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

($53,086) 

($53,086) 

(1.00) 

House changes narrative : 

($251,200) 2 

$251,200 

0.00 

$200,000 3 

($200,000) 

0.00 

1 Removes one FTE vacant gaming account technician II. 

($200,000) 4 

($200,000) 

($200,000) 

0.00 

(200,000) 

($253,086) 

(51,200) 

($201,886) 

(1.00) 

2 Removes the statutory change made by the Senate which would have provided that fees charged by 
the Attorney General's office for _conducting background checks be deposited in the Attorney General's 
operating fund rather than the general fund. This House change will result in an additional $251,200 
of general fund revenues compared to the Senate version. 

3 Increases federal funding for the Attorney General's office by $200,000 and reduces general fund 
support for the office by $200,000. 

4 Reduces operating expenses by $200,000 from the general fund. The Attorney General may 
determine the specific areas of reductions within this line item . 

Page No. 2 98025.0205 
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98025.0206 /'
Title . 030v Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 

House Appropriations - Majority Report 
March 24, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section 12-60-16.9," 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove "criminal history background checks," and remove the second comma 

Page 1, line 13, replace "14,034,903" with "13,981,817" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "4,772,703" with "4,572,703" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "868,71 O" with "811,71 O" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "29,935,090" with "29,625,004" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "15,946,103" with "15,894,903" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "13,988,987" with "13,730,101" 

Page 3, remove lines 4 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE 

BUDGET 

Salaries and wages $14,181,012 
Operating expenses 4,753,803 
Equipment 868,710 
Grants 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 
Gaming commission 5,109 
Racing commission 244,548 
National criminal history 2,528,385 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 628,844 
High-intensity drug trafficking 2,745,933 

area 
Arrest and return of fugitives 

Total all funds $31,402,369 

Less special funds 17,279,464 

General fund $14,122,905 

FTE 167.50 

SENATE 
VERSION 

$14,034 ,903 
4,772,703 

868.710 
5,396,025 

50,000 
5.109 

222.067 
2,344,118 

627.280 
1,604,175 

10,000 

$29.93 5,090 

15 946 103 

$13,988,987 

160.50 

HOUSE 
CHANGES 

($53 .086) 
(200.000) 

(57.000) 

($310,086) 

(51,200) 

($258,886) 

(1.00) 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes : 

REMOVE 
VACANT 

POSITION 

REMOVE 
SPECIAL 

FUND 
REVENUE 

CHANGE 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

Page No. 1 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$13,981 ,817 
4,572,703 

811 ,710 
5,396,025 

50,000 
5,109 

222,067 
2,344,118 

627,280 
1,604,175 

10,000 

$29,625,004 

15,894,903 

$13,730,101 

159.50 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

REDUCE 
EQUIPMENT 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

98025.0206 
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Salaries and wages ($53,086) 1 ($53,086) 
Operating expenses (200,000)4 (200,000) 
Equipment (57.000)5 (57,000) 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming commiss ion 
Racing commission 
National criminal history 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug trafficking 

area 
Arrest and return of fugi tives 

Total all funds ($53,086) $0 $0 ($200,000) ($57,000) ($3 10,086) 

Less special funds (251,200)2 200,0003 (51,200) 

General fund ($53,086) $251,200 ($200,000) ($200,000) ($57,000) ($258,886) 

FTE (1 .00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1.00) 

House changes narrative : 

1 Removes 1 FTE vacant gaming account technician II. 

2 Removes the statutory change made by the Senate which would have provided that fees charged by 
the Attorney General's office for conducting background checks be deposited in the Attorney General's 
operating fund rather than the general fund. This House change will result in an additional $251 ,200 
of general fund revenues compared to the Senate version. 

3 Increases federal funding for the Attorney General's office by $200,000 and reduces general fund 
support for the office by $200,000. 

4 Reduces operating expenses by $200,000 from the general fund. The Attorney General may 
determine the specific areas of reductions within this line item. 

5 Reduces funding provided for office equipment and furniture . 

Page No. 2 98025.0206 
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98025.0207 
Title. l)l-iOO Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 

House Appropriations - Minority Report 
March 24, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section 12-60-16.9," 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove "criminal history background checks," and remove the second comma 

Page 1, line 13, replace "14,034,903" with "13,981,817" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "4,772,703" with "4,572,703" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "868,71 O" with "811 ,71 O" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "29,9351 090" with "29,625,004" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "15,946,103" with "15,894.903" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "13,988,987" with "13,730,101" 

Page 2, after line 2, insert: 

"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of 
$500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the attorney general for the 
purpose of investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural 
production, processing, and marketing, and possibly addressing issues that involve 
international trade, industry concentration, the violation of state and federal antitrust 
laws, and fair market grading and testing standards, for the biennium beginning July 1, 
1999, and ending June 30, 2001." 

Page 3, remove lines 4 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes : 
EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $14,181 ,012 $14,034,903 ($53,086) 
Operating expenses 4,753 ,803 4,772,703 (200,000) 
Equipment 868,710 868,710 (57,000) 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 50,000 
Gaming Commission 5,1 09 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 222,067 
National criminal history 2,528,385 2,344,118 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 628,844 627,280 
High-intensity drug 2,745,933 1,604,175 

Page No. 1 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$13,981 ,817 
4,572,703 

811 ,710 
5,396,025 

50,000 
5,109 

222,067 
2,344,118 

627,280 
1,604,175 

98025.0207 
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tratficking area 
Separate section -
Ag issues 

Arrest and return 10,000 
of fugitives 

Total all funds $31 .402,369 $29 ,935,090 

Less special funds 17,279,464 15,946,103 

General fund $ 14. 122,905 $13,988,987 

FTE 167.50 160.50 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes : 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
National criminal history 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug 

trafficking area 
Separate section -

Ag issues 
Arrest and return 
of fugitives 

Total all funds 

. Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

REMOVE 
VACANT 

POSITION 

($53,086) 1 

($53,086) 

($53,086) 

(1 .00) 

REMOVE 
SPECIAL 

FUND 
REVENUE 

$0 

(251,200) 2 

$251 ,200 

0.00 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
National criminal history 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug 
trafficking area 

Separate section -
Ag issues 

Arrest and return 
of fugitives 

Total all funds 

Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

TOTAL 
HOUSE . 

CHANGES 

($53,086) 
(200,000) 

(57,000) 

500,000 

$189,914 

(51,200) 

$241 ,114 

(1.00) 

House changes narrative: 

500,000 

$189,914 

(51,200) 

$241,114 

(1.00) 

CHANGE 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

$0 

200,000 3 

($200,000) 

0.00 

1 Removes one FTE vacant gaming account technician II. 

500,000 

10,000 

$30. 125,004 

15,894,903 

$14,230,101 

159.50 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

($200,000) 4 

($200,000) 

($200,000) 

0.00 

REDUCE 
EQUIPMENT 

($57,000)5 

($57,000) 

($57,000) 

0.00 

ADD 
FUNDING FOR 

AGRICULTURAL 
ISSUES 

$500,000 6 

$500,000 

$500,000 

0.00 . 

2 Removes the statutory change made by the Senate which would have provided that fees charged by 
the Attorney General's office for conducting background checks be deposited in the Attorney General's 
operating fund rather than the general fund. This House change will result in an additional $251,200 
of general fund revenues compared to the Senate version. 

Page No. 2 98025.0207 
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3 Increases federal funding for the Attorney General's office by $200,000 and reduces general fund 
support for the office by $200,000. 

4 Reduces operating expenses by $200,000 from the general fund. The Attorney General may 
determine the specific areas of reductions within this line item . 

5 Reduces funding provided for office equipment and furniture. 

6 A section is added appropriating $500,000 from the general fund for the Attorney General to use for 
investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural production, processing, and 
marketing and to address issues that involve international trade, industry concentration, the violation of 
state and federal antitrust laws, and fair market grading and testing standards . 

Page No. 3 98025.0207 
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Date : J-1, 3 · tJ DJ 

Roll Call Vote #: J 

1999 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. JOO; 

House APPROPRIATIONS - Government Operations Committee 

~ubcommittee on __ a_r,v_'-\:...____op _________ ~mh~ O_OJ ____________ _ 
or j 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken OD PASS 
Motion Made By 11) \I~.)() JJ Seconded 

By 
----------

Representatives Yes No 
Rex R. Byerly V 
Ron Carlisle V 
Ben Tollefson V 
Robert Huether V -
Pam Gulleson 
Jim Poolman V 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Representatives Yes No 



Date: 3 · 24.qq 
Roll Call Vote#: I 

1999 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
. ~ILL/RESOLUTION NO. JOO~ 

House n r Q (() Q (} crtl O YD Committee 

D Subcommittee on _______________________ _ 

or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken Amend 
Motion Made By Seconded 

By ----------

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Dalrymple t/ Nichols 
Vice-Chairman Byerly V Poolman 
Aarsvold V"' Svedjan 
Bernstein v Timm 
Boehm v Tollefson 
Carlson 1/ Wentz 
Carlisle 1/ 
Delzer V 
Gulleson ~ 
Hoffner L,/' 
Huether ..,. 

Kerzman ~ 

Lloyd ~ 

Monson {/ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

Yes 

v 
V 
V 
V 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

61 o oo R-t uv ct/ .e q v If mm t' I IN-

No 
V 

1/ -



Date: 3 · 2A Cf/ 
Roll Call Vote #: d-

1999 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

House 

~ BILL/RESOLUTION NO. J:j) 3 
A pp ( op (I wh 6 ttS Committee 

D Subcommittee on _______________________ _ 

or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken DO 
Motion Made By 1D) I e 8D {) 

By t\Jf \) 
Seconded 

I I 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No -
Chairman Dalrymple V Nichols V 
Vice-Chairman Byerly L,./"' Poolman v 
Aarsvold 1..,/" Svedjan ✓ 

Bernstein v Timm ~ 
Boehm L,./ Tollefson v 
Carlson V Wentz V 
Carlisle I/_ 
Delzer V 

Gulleson V 
Hoffner 1./ 
Huether 
Kerzman 1/ 
Lloyd ~ 

Monson v' 

Total (Yes) No ~ 
Absent 0 

Floor Assignment Rep . To 11 e-Fs-o~ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE-DIVIDED (430) 
March 26, 1999 9:19 a.m. 

Module No: HR-55-5676 
Carrier: Tollefson 

Insert LC: 98025.0206 Title: .0300 

REPORT OF ST ANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2003, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) A 

MAJORITY of your committee (Reps. Dalrymple, Byerly , Bernstein , Boehm, Carlson , 
Carlisle, Delzer, Lloyd, Monson , Poelman, Svedjan , Timm, Tollefson , Wentz) 
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS. 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section 12-60-16.9," 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove "criminal history background checks," and remove the second comma 

Page 1, line 13, replace "14,034,903" with "13,981 ,817" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "4,772,703" with "4,572,703" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "868,71 O" with "811,71 O" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "29,935,090" with "29,625,004" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "15,946,103" with "15,894,903" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "13,988,987" with "13,730,101 " 

Page 3, remove lines 4 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE 

BUDGET VERSION 

Salaries and wages $14,181 ,012 $14,034,903 
Operating expenses 4,753,803 4,772,703 
Equipment 868,710 868,710 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 50,000 
Gaming commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing commission 244,548 222,067 
National criminal history 2,528,385 2,344,118 
improvement project 

Law enforcement programs 628,844 627,280 
High-intensity drug trafficking 2,745,933 1,604,175 
area 

Arrest and return of fugitives 10,000 

Total all funds $31 ,402,369 $29,935,090 

Less special funds 17,279,464 15,946,103 

General fund $14,122,905 $13,988,987 

FTE 167.50 160.50 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes : 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

REMOVE 
VACANT 

POSITION 

($53,086) 1 

REMOVE 
SPECIAL 

FUND 
REVENUE 

HOUSE 
CHANGES 

($53,086) 
(200,000) 

(57,000) 

($310,086) 

(51,200) 

($258,886) 

(1.00) 

CHANG E 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$13,981,817 
4,572,703 

811 ,710 
5,396,025 

50 ,000 
5,109 

222,067 
2,344,118 

627,280 
1,604,175 

10,000 

$29,625,004 

15,894,903 

$13,730,101 

159.50 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

(200,000)4 

REDUCE 
EQUIPMENT 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

($53,086) 
(200,000) 

HR-55-5676 
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Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming commission 
Racing commission 
National criminal history 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug trafficking 
area 

Arrest and return of fugitives __ _ 

Total all funds 

Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

($53,086) 

($53,086) 

(1.00) 

House changes narrative : 

$0 

(251,200)2 

$251 ,200 

0.00 

$0 

200,0003 

($200,000) 

0.00 

1 Removes 1 FTE vacant gaming account technician II. 

Module No: HR-55-5676 
Carrier: Tollefson 

Insert LC: 98025.0206 Title: .0300 

($200,000) 

($200 ,000) 

0.00 

(57,000)5 

($57,000) 

($57,000) 

0.00 

(57,000) 

($310,086) 

(51,200) 

($258,886) 

(1.00) 

2 Removes the statutory change made by the Senate which would have provided that fees charged by 
the Attorney General's office for conducting background checks be deposited in the Attorney 
General 's operating fund rather than the general fund . This House change will resu lt in an additional 
$251 ,200 of general fund revenues compared to the Senate version. 

3 Increases federal funding for the Attorney General 's office by $200,000 and reduces general fund 
support for the office by $200,000. 

4 Reduces operating expenses by $200,000 from the general fund. The Attorney General may 
determine the specific areas of reductions within this line item . 

5 Reduces funding provided for office equipment and furniture. 

The reports of the majority and the minority were placed on the Seventh order of business on 
the calendar for the succeeding legislative day . 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 2 HR-55-5676 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2003, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) A 

MINORITY of your committee (Reps. Aarsvold , Gulleson, Hoffner, Huether, Kerzman , 
Nichols) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS. 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section 12-60-16.9," 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove "criminal history background checks ," and remove the second comma 

Page 1, line 13, replace "14,034,903" with "13,981 ,817" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "4 ,772,703" with "4 ,572,703" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "868,71 O" with "811 ,71 O" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "29,935,090" with "29,625,004" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "15,946,103" with "15,894,903" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "13,988,987" with "13,730 ,101" 

Page 2, after line 2, insert: 

"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum 
of $500,000 , or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the attorney general for 
the purpose of investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural 
production , processing, and marketing , and possibly addressing issues that involve 
international trade , industry concentration , the violation of state and federal antitrust 
laws, and fair market grading and testing standards , for the biennium beginning July 1, 
1999, and ending June 30 , 2001." 

Page 3, remove lines 4 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - ATTORNEY GENERAL 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $14,181 ,012 $14,034,903 ($53,086) 
Operating expenses 4,753,803 4,772,703 (200,000) 
Equipment 868,710 868,710 (57,000) 
Grants 5,396,025 5,396,025 
Litigation fees 50,000 50,000 
Gaming Commission 5,109 5,109 
Racing Commission 244,548 222,067 
National criminal history 2,528,385 2,344,118 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 628,844 627,280 
High-intensity drug 2,745,933 1,604,175 

trafficking area 
Separate section - 500,000 

Ag issues 
Arrest and return 10,000 

of fugitives 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$13,981 ,817 
4,572,703 

811 ,710 
5,396,025 

50,000 
5,109 

222,067 
2,344,118 

627,280 
1,604,175 

500 ,000 

10,000 

HR-55-5679 
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Total all funds $31,402,369 $29 ,935,090 

Less special funds 17 279 464 15,946,103 

General fund $14,122,905 $13,988,987 

FTE 167.50 160.50 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

REMOVE 
REMOVE SPECIAL 
VACANT FUND 

POSITION REVENUE 

Salaries and wages ($53,086) 1 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
National criminal history 
improvement project 

Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug 

trafficking area 
Separate section -

Ag issues 
Arrest and return 
of fugitives 

Total all funds ($53,086) $0 

Less special funds (251,200) 2 

General fund ($53,086) $251,200 

FTE (1.00) 0.00 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Litigation fees 
Gaming Commission 
Racing Commission 
National criminal history 

improvement project 
Law enforcement programs 
High-intensity drug 

trafficking area 
Separate section -
Ag issues 

Arrest and return 
of fugitives 

Total all funds 

Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

($53,086) 
(200,000) 

(57,000) 

500,000 

$189,914 

(51,200) 

$241 ,114 

(1.00) 

House changes narrative: 

$189,914 

(51,200) 

$241 ,114 

(1.00) 

CHANGE 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

$0 

200,000 3 

($200,000) 

0.00 

1 Removes one FTE vacant gaming account technician II. 

Module No: HR-55-5679 
Carrier: Gulleson 

Insert LC: 98025.0207 Title: .0400 

$30,125,004 

15,894,903 

$14,230,101 

159.50 

ADD 
REDUCE FUNDING FOR 

OPERATING REDUCE AGRICULTURAL 
EXPENSES EQUIPMENT ISSUES 

($200,000) 4 
($57,000)5 

$500 ,000 6 

($200,000) ($57,000) $500,000 

($200,000) ($57,000) $500,000 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

2 Removes the statutory change made by the Senate which would have provided that fees charged by 
the Attorney General's office for conducting background checks be deposited in the Attorney 
General's operating fund rather than the general fund . This House change wi ll result in an additional 
$251,200 of general fund revenues compared to the Senate version. 

(1) LC , (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 2 HR-55-5679 
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3 Increases federal funding for the Attorney General's office by $200,000 and reduces general fund 
support for the office by $200,000. 

4 Reduces operating expenses by $200,000 from the general fund . The Attorney General may 
determine the specific areas of reductions within this line item. 

s Reduces funding provided for office equ ipment and furniture . 

6 A section is added appropriating $500,000 from the general fund for the Attorney General to use for 
investigating and litigating unfair or unlawful practices in agricultural production, processing , and 
marketing and to address issues that involve international trade, industry concentration , the violation 
of state and federal antitrust laws, and fair market grading and testing standards. 

The reports of the majority and the minority were placed on the Seventh order of business on 
the calendar for the succeeding legislative day . 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BI LL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 3 HR-55-5679 
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SENATOR NAADEN: Opened the conference committee hearing on engrossed SB 2003. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Senators Naaden, Solberg, Lindaas; Representatives Poolman, 
Tollefson, Huether. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Reviewed the Senate amendments, and noted they had received a list of 
requests from the Attorney General's Office. First, we restored $10,000 for the return of fugitives. 
This had been entirely removed from the budget. We also proposed about $500,000 to enhance 
projects from the BTI. To reach the $250,000, we took the money they raised from FBI 
background checks, and instead of that going into the general fund, we put that into their 
operating fund. 

REP. TOLLEFSON: The House changes to the Senate version included elimination of 1 FTE, 
the gaming technician II which accounts for $53,086. Out of operating expenses we took 
$200,000 to be handled by the Dept. as they see fit in the reduction of their operation. An 
additional $57,000 for furniture and equipment was removed. We removed the statutory change 
made by the Senate that would have provided that fees charged by the Attorney General's (AG's) 
Office for conducting background checks be deposited into the AG's operating fund, rather than 
the general fund. This House change resulted in $251 ,200 of general fund revenues as compared 
to the Senate version. That is not necessarily reflected on the House changes as you see them on 
the blue sheet. We also reduced equipment and furniture. The total House changes amount to 
$258,886 from the Senate budget plus 1 FTE. 

SENATOR NAADEN: There was an increase in the AG's budget a fee for the pull tabs. 

REP. POOLMAN: I had someone from the AG's office explain that gaming stamp. I'm under 
the assumption that was included in the 0MB budget, the revenue side of that. The language 
wasn't included. There is some concern that this fee will hurt charitable gaming across the state. 
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DA VE KRABBENHOFT: When the House appropriation bill was written up, it was 
accidentally left out of the original budget. But, it was on the amendments. There are no current 
differences in the gaming issue in the House and Senate versions. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The gaming grants to cities and counties. I visited with 0MB this 
morning, and he was under the impression that only about $220,000 was all that was spent on 
enforcing the gaming laws by the cities and the counties. Since then I have learned that is not the 
case. They are off by some $800,000. He had gotten this information from the Attorney General. 
We have a letter authored by the Attorney General and dated December 29, asking all those 
involved in gaming to come to the appropriations committee and to ask for that money back. 

REP. TOLLEFSON: We discussed this with the AG's office 2-3 times. They indicated they had 
taken a survey of the cities, etc. that were concerned with this issue, and arrived at that $225,000 
grant figure. We've stuck with that and the AG's office seems to be happy with that. They will go 
to a grant-way rather than the old system. That's why we hung onto that $220,000. 

REP. POOLMAN: I commend 0MB and the AG's office for coming up with the grant process 
for doing this. This is no longer a direct subsidy to those not doing enforcement. The competitive 
grant process will force communities to show they are actually doing what they were suppa;ed to 
be doing with the money. There were a small number of responses to the program when the 
survey went out. The AG's office decided that was the figure they were going to use based on the 
survey. This part had unanimous agreement in our committee. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Clarified the differences in the budget, and questioned the equipment 
decrease. 

REP. TOLLEFSON: Full appropriations committee felt equipment/technology would be less by 
the time the money is spent. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Handed out a letter from Attorney General Heitkamp, and stated that the 
House essentially took out everything the Senate put in. Did the Attorney General present a list of 
requests when they presented their budget? Did you receive a list of items that the A G's office 
wanted, i.e. bullet-proof vests, etc.? That's one specific thing we funded. 

REP. POOLMAN: No, we didn't receive that list. The Attorney General presented a list of 
grants that were formula-based on a county-by-county basis. I can make that available to you 
(attachment #1) . Basically I think the difference in the budgets is this: 1) the FTE of $57,000; 2) 
where the dollars go--you put in $251,000 into the AG's operating fund -- we flipped that to the 
general fund; 3) the $200,000 reduction in general fund support of the office where the Attorney 
General can decide where to take the deductions from; and 4) the reduction in funding for 
equipment and furniture. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Called for a motion to recess. 
REP. POOLMAN: Moved to recess. 
SENATOR SOLBERG: Seconded the motion. 
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ROLL CALL: Unanimous voice vote approval to recess. 
SENATOR NAADEN: Meeting adjourned until the call of the Chairman. (tape 2, A, 2008) 

@ ·-------~~~~-;~-~~-;~~~~~~&-;~~-~-~~-~~-~~;~-~;------------------------------------------------------

SENATOR NAADEN: Reopened the conference committee on SB 2003. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Naaden, Solberg, Lindaas; Representatives: Poolman, Tollefson, 
Huether. 
SENATOR NAADEN: One of the problems we have is the appropriation for review of 
gambling around the state. Many cities didn't respond to the survey they received from the 
Attorney General because they received very little money 1ast biennium, like Braddock which 
received less than $50. That's the case for many areas. During the last biennium, Section 5 in the 
Attorney General's bill called for local gaming enforcement grants. There it set out a provision on 
how much was to be granted and amounts for each quarter. That is missing in this bill. The 
$200,000 we have in the appropriation won't cover costs to the cities in the state. The Chairman 
will rule that the House didn't specify other than in 1 line item how this money should be reduced 
so I am considering it could affect all of it. So, that leaves the budget open to discussion in its 
entirety. 

REP. POOLMAN: Do you want to put more money back in the budget? 

SENATOR NAADEN: The money from gaming is collected and amounts to about $22M in 
revenue from gaming That would fund $220,000 in the bill. But, that's not enough to fund 
enforcing gaming within cities. Grand Forks had a problem a couple of years ago and someone 
was ripping off the gaming sites. The other way we could do this is to turn gaming completely 
over to the Attorney General and take it away from the cities completely. I don't think that would 
be successful. 

REP. POOLMAN: The Senate had the opportunity to change anything they wanted in this 
budget--gaming enforcement grants, amount of money in the budget, how it was distributed, etc. 
and they didn't do it. The House felt the same way. The way the bill came through the House and 
the Senate in the area of gaming grants was appropriate. I think for us to go back and add money 
back, and in this case about $800,000 back, would be completely fiscally irresponsible for us to 
start adding that kind of money back. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I have no intention of adding $800,000. I think what should be added 
back is what we can determine is used by the cities for gaming enforcement. I think about 25% 
was not used for gaming enforcement. 

REP. POOLMAN: This figure was determined by the Attorney General. In the 95% budget 
process, she had to prioritize. We've seen it in appropriations many different times, agency 
administrators put in their 95% budget and optional adjustments things that are politically 
sensitive. Because then it is difficult for us keep those things out. We saw it in PSC budget, we 
see it in the Attorney General's budget, we see it in many different budgets, Human 
Services-those that are politically sensitive that can put the screws to the Legislature and the 
Legislature will cave in and add them back. I don't think that's necessarily appropriate. I don't 



• 

• 

Page 4 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resoluti .__.........,.._,er SB 2003C.lwp 
Hearing Date 

think the House will move to add money back. This is something that was not a difference 
between the House and the Senate, and I don't think it's appropriate for us to consider it at this 
time. 

REP. TOLLEFSON: We met with the Attorney General 4 times. This was always brought up. 
The $220,000 seemed to be what they wanted it to do on a grant basis. Something has to be 
settled to get this budget out of here, but I don't think adding $800,000 is responsible. (tape 4860) 

REP. HUETHER: We did meet with them and that $220,000 was a figure they did receive. 
However, they did relate they did not feel they got all the response from everyone. 

REP. POOLMAN: I want to clarify - I didn't mean that as a partisan statement against the 
Attorney General. I would probably do the same thing in a similar position. We both held the line 
on that $200,000. 

SENATOR NAADEN: It was never brought up in our Committee. We were told by 0MB that is 
the amount of money being spent or used for enforcement. He got that information from the 
Attorney General. That information is false. That isn't all the money. In Bismarck alone there was 
some $50,000 that was used for enforcement. We've been led down the road with false 
information . 

REP. HUETHER: I believe some of this information came after the budget had already been 
through the Senate. 

SENATOR NAADEN: That's true. It wasn't discussed in our committee. We were told by both 
0MB and they got their information from the Attorney General that that's all the money that was 
spent and that's not true. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I agree to a point with Rep. Poolman about priorities. The Attorney 
General chose not to make this a priority. At the 95% budget, she was willing to put in 
$220,000+, hoping we would add on more, there's no doubt about it. It's tough to do that. I will 
judge Pierce and McHenry Counties. I will judge Pierce County first and I have a tough time 
doing this because I felt on the PSC board for quite a few years and we had gaming. We never 
saw a law enforcement officer at a site. I guess in a small town you won't because everyone 
knows who the chief, sheriff, deputy, etc. is. Maybe in Minot or Bismarck you don't. But, in a 
small town, I'm not sure this money does any good. The same is true for McHenry County. 
Larger cities may need this money. It's unfortunate if this was a priority for the Attorney 
General's office, they should have put it as a priority. It's going to hit some cities hard. Wherever 
we go on this budget, I'm not going to take the blame for it. It's going to be pointed back to 
priority budgeting. 

SENATOR NAADEN: It was a deliberate attempt to save her budget, hoping we'd put it in. I'd 
be willing to move $500,000 from her budget and put it here. 
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SENATOR LINDAAS: I'd have a problem with that I don't think we should hamstring the 
Attorney General's office by rigorous cutbacks. Prioritizing leaves any agency in an awkward 
position. 

REP. POOLMAN: I agree with Senator Lindaas. The priorities have been set forth. The House 
made reductions to the budget where they saw it necessary. I don't think it's wise of us to go back 
into her budget willy-nilly taking out $500,000 for gaming grants to local political subdivisions. 
There's another big picture we have to look at--she's the chief law enforcement agency in the 
state, not just in gaming, but in drug enforcement and other crime areas that I think is very 
important and higher priority than shifting $500,000 out of that budget back into gaming grants. 

REP. POOLMAN: I move the Senate accede to the House amendments. 
REP. TOLLEFSON: Seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: 
SENATOR NAADEN: I'm going to oppose this motion. I think we should take care of this other 
issue one way or another. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Before we vote, I would like to go over a few items. I understand the 
$53 ,000 is a vacant position; $200,000 that was removed - is this the $200,000 that was taken 
out of the BCI background check that we put into the general fund and then reappropriated? 

REP. POOLMAN: The $255,200 goes back from the operating fund to the general fund. That in 
my opinion has no bearing on the budget because it is a change that those dollars will run through 
the general fund back to the Attorney General's budget instead of just flowing right to the 
Attorney General's operating fund. We changed the funding source of $200,000 because it was 
the opinion of the House that those were federal fund dollars that were changed to general fund 
dollars. We changed them back to federal funds , or special funds. It was our feeling that if the 
Attorney General collected federal funds , she had the authority to use them. We reduced 
equipment to $57,000. The operating expenses of $200,000, the Attorney General can determine 
how she wants to allocate them. 

SENATOR NAADEN: In other words you took $251,200 away from her? 

SENATOR SOLBERG: No, they took that out of direct appropriation and put it into general 
funds and then reappropriated general funds. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The Senate took that $250,000 they received from background checks 
and we put that into their budget. You took that out and put it back into the general fund, and 
then reduced her budget by $250,000? (tape 2, A, end) 

REP. POOLMAN: Correct. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Where do we come up with $200,000 in the funding source change? 
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DA VE KRABBENHOFT: 0MB The Senate change the Attorney General requested 3 IT staff 
funded from a federal grant. Their optional package requested that money be paid with general 
funds. The House didn't adopt that request. It was the position they could fund those with the 
federal money. We do have a disagreement though, the Attorney General's doesn't feel they can 
fund those positions. 

REP. POOLMAN: The House felt if those positions could be obtained with federal dollars, she 
had the authority to fill those positions. It was sort of a compromise, if you can find the money 
from other sources, federal dollars or special funds , you have the authority to do that. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The clerk will call the roll. 

ROLL CALL VOTE #1: Yeas: Senator Solberg; Representatives Poolman, Tollefson. Nays: 
Senators Naaden, Lindaas; Rep. Huether. 
3 Yeas; 3 Nays 
MOTION FAILED 

SENATOR NAADEN: Moved to put $258,886 that the House removed into gaming 
enforcement grants, and set up a grant program for those that write the grant specifically for 
gaming enforcement. 

REP. TOLLEFSON: Would that be $250,000 plus $220,000 for a total of $475 ,000? 

SENATOR NAADEN: Yes. And, I think we should have some rules and regulations, but I'm 
not sure we want to work that out now. 

REP. HUETHER: When you said $250,000, were you referring to the $258,886. 
SENATOR NAADEN: Yes. 
REP. HUETHER: Seconded the motion. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Your motion is only dealing with this portion, nothing else as far as the 
House amendments? 

SENATOR NAADEN: Yes. 

REP. POOLMAN: Basically it is just an add-back. An add-back that would come off the ending 
fund balance on our budget sheet. 

SENATOR LINDAAS: Doesn't this amount to a diversion away from the Attorney General's 
Office - you're putting into enforcement in the rural areas, so to speak, but doesn't it deprive the 
Attorney General's office of that function to a certain degree. 

SENATOR NAADEN: No, it would set it up like it was 2 years ago. It was based on a 
formula. This would have to be set up on a granting basis that would allow cities to use it 
specifically for gaming enforcement. 
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REP. HUETHER: Your motion would be about half of what that sheet is showing now? 

SENATOR NAADEN: Pretty close. 

REP. POOLMAN: What you're doing is you're adding back money to gaming enforcement at 
the expense of the Attorney General's budget. 

SENATOR NAADEN: No, you took it away from them, and we're just giving it back to the 
cities and the counties. 

REP. POOLMAN: When we went through this budget, we look for money and savings. You're 
just adding it back. But, if that's your priority that's okay. 

SENATOR NAADEN: We're not taking it away from them. 

REP. POOLMAN: Instead of talking about the actual amendments to the budget, we're just 
adding money back. But, if that's the Senate's priority, that's okay. 

SENATOR NAADEN: We'd have to agree on how these grants are handled. We'd have to have 
language in there for that. Legislative Council would have to prepare an amendment for that. 

ROLL CALL VOTE #2: 2 yeas; 4 nays; 0 absent 
Yeas: Senators Naaden, Rep. Huether; Nays: Senators Solberg, Lindaas; Representatives 
Poolman Tollefson. 
MOTION FAILS 

REP. POOLMAN: Moved to recess. 
SENATOR SOLBERG: Seconded the motion. ~ 
SENATOR NAADEN: Recessed the conference committee. (tape 2, B, 950) ~ 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------"\✓ ---
4/9/99 tape 2, A, 0-100 V\ 
SENATOR NAADEN: Reopened the conference committee on engrossed HB 2003. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Sens. Naaden, Solberg, Lindaas; Reps. Poolman, Tollefson, Huether) 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Moved that the Senate accede to the House amendments. 
REP. HUETHER: Seconded the motion. 

ROLL CALL: 6 A YES, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT & NOT VOTING. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

- SENA TOR NAADEN: Adjourned the conference committee on 



Page 8 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

• 

Bill/Resolution Number SB 2003C.lwp 
Hearing Date j,J,i !§>@@ (I\. 

---------------------------------------------------------- 9cf--\.-------------------------------------------

• 

4/8/99 tape 3, A, 2180-3075 ~/ 

SENATOR NAADEN: Reopened the conference committee on SB 2003. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Naaden, Solberg, Lindaas; Representatives: Poolman, Tollefson, 
Huether. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I am presenting amendment #98025.0208 to engrossed HB 2003 with an 
increased appropriation of $258,886 for grants for the gaming commission. It leaves the position 
out that the House eliminated. 

REP. POO LMAN: Is this the same motion we voted on yesterday? 

SENATOR NAADEN: Yes, but in printed form. 

REP. POOLMAN: You know where we stand. Calls from city folk are indicating they are being 
assured they'll receive funding back. They're not going to get money back - we're not going to 
settle. There is no difference in this budget item from when the Attorney General presented her 
budget to you . 

SENATOR NAADEN: I rule it is a difference. 

REP. POOLMAN: Yesterday we discussed that you didn't talk about this grant during Senate 
hearings. I obtained a copy of the minutes from those hearings. There are 5 paragraphs where the 
Attorney General talked about those grants. The Senate did talk about this and you didn't put 
dollars in. It was discussed. 

SENA TOR NAADEN: It was discussed that those were false figures. 

REP. POOLMAN: The figures are not false. The information was based on the results of a 
survey. 

SENATOR NAADEN: It was a survey that not everyone answered. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Moved do pass the amendment. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: 
SENATOR SOLBERG: What bothers me is the Attorney General's office and other agencies as 
well setting their priorities whereby popular programs are left out of the budget in hopes of 
having it added back in. 

REP. POOLMAN: The League of Cities had a meeting with the majority leaders saying calls 
are saying $800,000 is coming back. 
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SENATOR NAADEN: We're not talking $800,000, we're talking $280,000+. It my ruling it is a 
difference. 

ROLL CALL #2: Yeas: Senator Naaden, Rep. Huether; Nays: Senator Solberg, Senator 
Lindaas, Rep. Poolman, Rep. Tollefson. 

MOTION WAS DEFEATED. 

COMMITTEE ADJOURNED 
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STATEMENT OF HEIDI HEITKAMP 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

For the record , my name is Heidi Heitkamp. I am the Attorney General for the State of North 
Dakota. 

During the last two years, we have continued to provide quality legal services to state agencies 
and protection to North Dakota's citizens. We have met with considerable success. 

Legal Services 

• North Dakota court approval of the Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement and a Smokeless 
Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, as well as consent decrees against the tobacco 
companies prohibiting specific conduct and future violations of consumer protection and 
anti trust laws, including significant measures to protect the public health and reduce youth 
smoking. Payments by the tobacco companies to the State of North Dakota continuing as 
long as those companies market tobacco products, amounting to approximately $717 million 
just through 2025. 

• Successfully represented the state before a Minnesota state agency contemplating applying 
extemality costs associated with electrical power generated with lignite coal. 

• Prosecuted or assisted in the prosecution of a wide variety of criminal cases, including death, 
assault, theft, gaming, obscenity, drug, and adult and child sex offenses. 

• After a lengthy trial, obtained favorable district court rulings against a consumer credit 
counseling service, related organizations, and its principals concerning the operation of the 
service, its use of funds, and the protection of its clients' funds. 

• Conducted an investigation of the Lake Agassiz Regional Council pursuant to a request from 
the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee. 

Bureau of Criminal Investigation 

• Continue to utilize the Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) in a regional 
program with Minnesota and South Dakota. The system presently contains fingerprint 
images on approximately 55,000 persons. 

• Increased sex offender registration from 576 registered offenders in December 1996 to 994 
sex offenders and offenders against children in July 1998. 

• Processed approximately 6,000 requests each year from the general public for criminal 
hi story record information. 



• 
• Received approval of the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area's (HIDTA) 

Executive Board for inclusion into the Midwest HIDT A to further the fight against 
metharnphetarnine. 

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division 

• Obtained refunds for consumers and businesses in North Dakota, recovering $753,790 on 
behalf of consumers. 

• Collected $101,427 in civil penalties, investigative costs and attorney's fees since the 
beginning of the biennium. 

Gaming Division 

• Simplified and clarified standard record keeping system forms, tax returns, and instructions. 

• Sends a quarterly newsletter to all gaming distributors, charitable organizations, Gaming 
Commission members and Gaming Advisory Board members. 

Fire Marshal's Office 

• Developed and delivered a new arson detection program and a hazardous materials 
awareness program for local firefighters and law enforcement personnel. 

• • Developed and distributes a quarterly newsletter to the fire service. 

• 

• Developed a detailed and thorough procedure for fire investigations and reports. 

In the Division Summaries section of our budget presentation, we provide a brief description of 
the various functions the Office of Attorney General performs and highlight other significant 
accomplishments over the past two years. 

In our presentation to you today, we will concentrate on the portions of our budget for which we 
are requesting changes from the Governor's recommended budget. Jerry Kemmet, Acting 
Director of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation, will discuss the increase in criminal history 
records checks, along with North Dakota's inclusion into the Midwest High Intensity Drug 
Trafficking Area. Following Jerry will be Cher Thomas, director of the Information Technology 
Division, who will discuss our information technology needs. Finally, Keith Lauer, director of 
the Gaming Division will discuss the gaming enforcement grants. 

Before these individuals discuss these issues however I will discuss the need for the restoration 
of $50,000 in litigation fees and $30,000 in funding for the arrest and return of fugitives. 

Our 1997-99 budget contains $139,024 in litigation fees . The Executive recommendation 
includes $50,000. We are seeking an additional $50,000 because we believe that we will see 
significant use or this fund in the corning biennium. These funds are used for expert witness 
fees, travel costs for witnesses, deposition costs, exhibits, service fees and other out-of-pocket 
costs affiliated with litigation. One area in which we expect considerable legal activity concerns 
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water issues. Presently we are defending an action brought by the Spirit Lake Nation claiming 
title to the bed of Devils Lake. In that case the expert witness fees alone are expected to cost us 
about $40,000 next biennium. In addition we anticipate litigation concerning the flooding in the 
Devils Lake area. It is difficult to predict litigation, and we doubt that the $50,000 in the 
Executive Recommendation will cover our costs in the upcoming biennium. If the agencies we 
are defending have to pay these costs they will have to reprioritize other expenditures to do so. 

We are also seeking restoration of $30,000 for the arrest and return of fugitives. This money is 
used to reimburse local jurisdictions for costs incurred in extraditing fugitives who have been 
charged with a felony and have fled to other jurisdictions. 
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• 
ST A TEMENT OF JERALD C. KEMMET, ACTING DIRECTOR 

BUREAU OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 

We want to publicly thank the Governor for including in his budget several key elements that 
will help us protect North Dakotas's citizens. The Executive Recommendation includes funding 
for our admittance into the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area, improving the 
services of our Criminal History Records Section, and providing assistance to law enforcement, 
prosecutors, judges, and the citizens of North Dakota. We are seeking increases for agent 
physicals, postage and printing costs, and bulletproof vests. 

Criminal History Records/Automated Fingerprint Information System (AFIS) 

Criminal History Records are cumulative records of arrests and prosecutions of individuals. 
Every state has a criminal record repository. At the national level, the FBI maintains a record 
system that facilitates the exchange of the information between the states. Each system relies on 
fingerprint technology for positive identification of persons whose criminal activities are 
documented in these records. AFIS became fully operational as a regional program with the State 
of Minnesota in August 1996, and we want to thank this Committee and the Legislature for their 
support of this system. 

Recent Successes of the AFIS System: 

• 
■ July 8, 1997 - Latent fingerprints were provided to the Bureau of Criminal 

Investigation on an unsolved theft case. A search of these fingerprints using AFIS 
resulted in the positive identification of four of the latent fingerprints developed in the 
case. These fingerprints belonged to an individual who had been previously arrested 
in North Dakota. 

• August 1, 1997 - Stark County Sheriffs Office - Latent fingerprints were developed 
on an abandoned stolen vehicle, which was linked to a bank robbery in the town of 
McHenry. The latent prints were delivered to BCI at abou-t 2:30 p.m. and were run 
against the AFIS database, resulting in a match with fingerprints on file at the BCI. 
As a result, the identity of the individual was provided to the BCI agent assisting in 
the investigation by approximately 4 p.m. that day and resulted in the successful 
arrest of the individual suspected of bank robbery. 

• April 7, 1998 - Latent fingerprints developed at a burglary crime scene were 
submitted to the BCI for a "cold" search. The latent prints were run against the AFIS 
database and resulted in a match with fingerprints on file at the BCI. Identification of 
the individual was provided to the Fargo Police Department, and the individual was 
arrested. 

• The J\FlS system has also been used to obtain positive identifications of individuals 
who have been arrested and either gave someone else's name or refused to identify 
thcmse Ives. 

Within the next year, the Bureau of Criminal Investigation will connect five major jails in North 
Dakota with livescan capabilities. This will allow the jails to automatically transmit fingerprints 
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to the AFIS system. This technology will assist law enforcement by providing an electronic 
means to capture fingerprint images and allowing local agencies to make identification of 
arrested subjects through the livescan unit. 

Criminal History Records 

In 1987 new criminal hi story record statutes which spelled out the offenses that were to be 
included as part of individuals' criminal history records were passed. Those statutes also 
outlined the responsibilities of law enforcement agencies, prosecutors, courts, and correctional 
facilities in providing the information that goes into those records. 

As a result, in the ensuing years, the quality and the amount of information that makes up 
criminal history records has increased substantially. Fingerprint cards, which are the national 
standard for positive identification of arrested persons, are the documents which begin the 
creation of criminal history records. The volume of fingerprint cards received by the BCI has 
increased approximately 300 percent from 1987 to 1998. We now receive approximately 15,000 
criminal history record submissions each year. Although the workload has increased, the 
number of identification technicians has not. 

To have an effective system we must process these cards as quickly as they come in. We must 
add the disposition data that is subsequently passed along from the prosecuting attorneys as 
quickly as it is received. This way we can produce a product upon which all North Dakotans can 
rely. For example, criminal background checks are required for foster care facilities. If the 
system is not current when a check is made on a foster care worker, crucial information could 
possibly be missing. This example applies equally to checks that are done for day care services, 
teachers, or any other purposes for which the people of North Dakota request background 
checks. 

Record requests have increased from 150 in 1987, to 6,280 for non-criminal justice purposes in 
1998. There has been no increase in the staff to handle those requests. By statute, the state 
receives a $20 fee for each of these checks, which goes to the state general fund . In 1998, 
$125,600 was deposited in the general fund from the record checks. 

The quantity of fingerprint cards coming into the BCI has increased and the identification 
technician position requested in our budget is intended to deal with that increased workload. 
However there are additional mandates for record checks being considered in this legislative 
session. Those mandates would further increase the workload in the criminal records area. Bills 
have been introduced or are expected which would require criminal record checks for all foster 
and adoptive parents, non-profit organizations providing charitable services to youth, and private 
security personnel. A fiscal note has been attached to these bills which requests an additional 
staff person to deal with the increased workload. 

We urge your support for the position included in the Executive Recommendation. The absence 
of that position has a very clear, immediate, and potentially harmful impact on the people of 
North Dakota. 
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High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 

North Dakota has a growing and serious problem with methamphetamine. It is quickly 
becoming a hard drug of choice in North Dakota. Before 1990, methamphetamine was virtually 
non-ex istent; however, incidents of usage, distribution, and manufacture of methamphetamine 
are of great concern today. North Dakota officials have taken a strong stand against dangerous 
drugs. Local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies are deeply committed to the 
elimi nation of methamphetamine and other dangerous drugs from the plains of North Dakota. 

The North Dakota Bureau of Criminal Investigation reported no methamphetamine cases in 
1993. Since then the caseload has grown from 15 in 1994 to 77 in 1997. BCI has investigated 
70 meth cases through November 1998. Information provided from the task forces and DEA 
indicated 48 methamphetamine cases in 1996 and 104 in 1997, with 46 reported cases through 
March 1998. Ten methamphetamine labs have been seized in North Dakota in the past 41 
months. Prior to that, only one lab was seized in North Dakota, and that was in 1987. In 1992, 
691 drug samples were submitted to the lab for analysis, of which 14 were suspected 
methamphetamine samples. This number has grown to 1,629 samples in 1997, with 450 of those 
being methamphetamine samples. In addition, methamphetamine cases have grown from 6 
percent of the total drug cases in the U.S. Attorney's Office in 1993 to 31 percent of total drug 
cases in 1997, and 75 percent of the total drug cases through March 1998. 

North Dakota's rural nature invokes several misconceptions, including the idea that we are 
insulated from the problems encountered by more urban states. Too often we assume that the 
drug activity and availability, as well as violent crime, are non-existent here. It is imperative that 
we look beyond this misconception and recognize that the explosion of methamphetamine
related activity is a very real threat to our state . Our state now has an opportunity to take an even 
stronger stand against methamphetamine by becoming associated with the existing Midwest 
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area. The Executive Committee of the Midwest HIDT A has 
recognized that the growing meth problem reaches well into North Dakota and has recently 
approved our inclusion in the Midwest HIDTA. North Dakota now awaits approval of funding 
by the Office of National Drug Control Policy in Washington, DC, which could result in over 
$609,000 in federal funds flowing into North Dakota for fiscal year 1999. 

In December 1996, counties in the states of Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and South Dakota 
were designated as the Midwest HIDTA by the Office of National Drug Control Policy, the 
Executive Office of the President of the United States. These areas were considered to be the 
Midwest hotspots for methamphetamine importation, distribution, and clandestine manufacturing 
of methamphetamine. In the last several years, this region, including North Dakota, has 
experienced a phenomenal increase in importation, distribution, and clandestine manufacturing 
of methamphetamine. The central location, numerous interstate highway systems, international 
border, and air and rail hubs enhance the region's popularity as a market for Mexican 
methamphetamine importation, and distribution from organizations operating out of the 
southwest border areas. In addition, several of these states are seeing an explosion in the 
clandestine manufacturing of methamphetamine by small users and dealers primarily utilizing 
ephedrine or pseudoephedrine reduction processes . 

Recently, a joint letter from the Governor, the Attorney General, and the U.S. Attorney requested 
the designation of eight counties in North Dakota as high intensity drug trafficking areas. These 
counti es arc Richland, Cass, Grand Forks, Walsh, Ramsey, Ward, Morton, and Burleigh. Direct 
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funding for fiscal year 1999 is expected to be approximately $609,000. The Executive 
Recommendation includes $2,745,933 funding and 12 FTEs. Because the amount we expect to 
receive has been reduced to $609,000 for fiscal year 1999, we have included amendments 
removing $1,141,758 in Federal Funds and 4 FTEs. However, with the potential for an increased 
funding level of approximately $800,000 to $1,000,000 in fiscal year 2000, we want to retain 
some flexibility to accept additional federal funding and employ additional FTEs. 

Incentives to be funded in fiscal year 1999 include: 

• Investigation: 

• 

• One NDBCI special agent will augment the DEA Task Force in Fargo, North Dakota, 
and will serve as the focal point of the HIDT A activities in southeast North Dakota. 
Efforts will focus on cases that originate in or that are connected to methamphetamine 
activities in Cass and Richland Counties. 

• One NDBCI special agent will augment the Grand Forks County Task Force and will 
serve as the focal point of the HIDT A activity in northeast North Dakota. Efforts will 
focus on cases that originate in or that are connected to the methamphetamine activity 
in Grand Forks, Walsh, and Ramsey counties. 

• One NDBCI special agent will co-locate in Bismarck, with two DEA agents recently 
assigned to western North Dakota, and will serve as the focal point of the HIDT A 
activity in central and western North Dakota. Efforts will focus on cases that 
originate in or that are connected to methamphetamine activity in Burleigh, Morton, 
and Ward counties. 

• A field supervisor, who will be responsible for the day-to-day management and 
operation of this project, will be located in Bismarck and will be responsible for 
coordination of HIDTA efforts in North Dakota. 

Forensic Analysis: 

• Two forensic scientists will be provided to the North Dakota State Laboratory in 
Bismarck to enhance its ability to reduce the evidence backlog, respond to requests 
for evidence analysis and operational support, and ultimately enhance the efforts of 
law enforcement and prosecutors with timely expert support. The funding authority 
for the lab is included in our budget; however, the FTEs are not. 

• Prosecution: 

• One Special Assistant Attorney General will be hired to respond to the greatly 
increased caseload that has resulted because of intensified efforts by law enforcement. 
This individual will help provide a coordinated local , state, and federal prosecution 
effort aimed at choosing the most efficient and appropriate forum for prosecution of 
methamphetamine-related cases. 

This federal funding requires no state or local matching dollars. It will be used to leverage 
resources for investigations, prosecutions, and forensic analysts. As a result of North Dakota's 
participation in this program we will also have access to regional demand reduction resources, 
and improved intelligence sharing and case management between the Midwest HIDTA and its 
member states. 
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We feel the HIDT A funding is extremely important to continuing the fight against dangerous 
drugs North Dakota. The Executive Recommendation includes the HIDTA funding, and we ask 
that you maintain this funding in our budget. 

Officer Safety 

Officer safety and readiness is critical to the BCI's ability to carry out its mission. We request 
that the funding requested in our budget submission for bulletproof vests in the amount of 
$18,900 and agent physicals in the amount of $7,250 be included in your appropriation. 

Providing funding for the physicals will ensure that our agents are able to comply with the 
legislation enacted in 1995 requiring physicals. In addition, the bulletproof vests currently 
issued to agents of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation exceed their recommended life, and the 
manufacturer will not guarantee that the vests will be effective in protecting agents from serious 
harm or death if fired upon. We feel it is essential for these safety issues to be addressed through 
this budget process. 

Finally we have had a dramatic increase in postage and printing costs in connection with the 
criminal history requests, sex offender registration requirements and statistical data. These costs 
are largely attributable to the mandates for provision of information to law enforcement and the 
public. We are asking for $44,381 to cover these increased costs . 
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ST A TEMENT OF CHER THOMAS, DIRECTOR 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIVISION 

Information Technology plays a critical role in the success of the Office of Attorney General. 
Because of its importance the Information Technology Divi sion became a new divi sion this past 
biennium. 

During the past year considerable time and internal resources were used to evaluate our current 
systems and needs and develop the strategic plan the legislature required last biennium. The plan 
developed provides a very accurate assessment of our current situation and our future needs. 

We are grateful that the Executive Recommendation included funding for the security, Y2K and 
disaster recovery components of the strategic plan we developed. But we continue to have 
concerns that many of the needs identified in the strategic plan and the cost increases dictated by 
ISO were not included. We are requesting additional general funds for the shift of 3.75 FTEs 
from federal funds to general funds; for software maintenance; for increased costs for ISO 
charges and compliance with new ISO policies; to complete the remote networking needed to 
connect outlying offices; and to address rent, hardware and equipment needs of the division. 

The Office of Attorney General has several divisions with very different functions. Computer 
support staff must have a broad range of understanding to support the multiple applications used 
by the various divisions. In the past we have not had the staff to adequately plan and maintain 
our systems. As a result many of our systems have deteriorated beyond repair. This problem 
cannot be corrected entirely in one biennium, but we need to maintain our current system or the 
problem will only mushroom. 

Information Technology Staff Fund Switch 

In our strategic plan we identified the hardware, software and personnel needed to support 
existing systems, as well as new projects. Complete implementation of the strategic plan would 
require 9.52 FTEs. We understand that an increase in FTEs for new programs is not likely. But 
maintaining our current staff is an important priority. We are not asking for the additional 2.52 
FTEs identified by the strategic plan as necessary for the projects to update the systems that have 
deteriorated. However, if we cannot retain our current staff our system will continue to 
deteriorate, and we will move backwards. 

In the past federal funds have been available for such projects as the rewrite of the Criminal 
History system under the National Criminal Records Improvement Program (NCHIP). Like 
many federal programs, this program does not fund ongoing IT positions past the initial project 
implementation. Yet the project is vital to law enforcement's ability to function effectively. 

The executive budget funded 3.75 of our current FTEs with federal funds dedicated to specific 
federal projects. Regrettably, though we need the FTEs to maintain our operations, the federal 
funding does not permit us to use FTEs for that purpose. The adjustment we seek will require an 
increase in our general fund appropriation of $379,0 I 9. This adjustment will only allow us to 
retain our current FTE authorization levels and maintain our current information techno logy 
resources. The chart below demonstrates the number of hours needed to maintain our current 
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hardware and so ftware. In addition, the last two co lumns identify the projects in our strategic 
plan that cannot be addressed without additional FTEs. 

SYS System Name Labor hrs FTE Project Project labor FTE 
Biennium hrs biennium 

- ·- - - - -----
100 Financial Systems 686 0.1 6 Budgeting 692 0.17 

Fixed Assets 424 0.10 
----- - - - --- -------- - ·---

101 Legal System~---·--- 400 0.10 
--- ---

102 SAMS 576 0.14 
-------- -- - - - ------

103 Case Management __ 380 0.09 
- -- - - --

104 Criminal History 1552 0.37 
- --- - ---

105 BCI Systems 600 0.14 
---- -- -·- -·-- ---

106 Gaming 615 0.15 
---- ----- - - ---------

107 CPAT 556 0.13 
---- - - - -- - - ·--

108 BCI lnteB~gencE: _ 644 0.15 
-------

109 Licensing ____ 461 0.11 
·- - - - --

110 Fire Marshal 144 0.03 New System 490 0.12 
----- - -- -

112 Time tracki~g ___ . Time Tracking 660 0.16 
--- -- ------

113 Uniform Crime Rpt 384 0.09 UCR Rewrite 1,500 0.36 
400 Miscellaneous Syst 73 0.02 

---
401 IT Administration User Rpt Writer 452 0.11 

------ - ---- -
Strategic Planning - changes 800 0.19 Strategic Plan 1,020 0.25 
Year 2000 testing 300 0.07 User Train Plan 420 -~o-:--io-

--f-----
Policies and Procedures 400 0.10 yoice Recognit 710 0.17 

--·-f--- ... - - - - --- -- -- ----
Disast~r Be_c_c:i-:_ery/contingen 480 0.12 Year2000 560 0.13 

-- --- -- --------
Training ! 960 0.23 _Qevel()p Enviro 100 0.02 -- ----- --- - - - - - ----- -- -----
Training_~ se ~!,_ I 400 0.10 

--- ---- ---~-- ---
Annual Leave, sick leave l 1040 0.25 

· - - ---- - ---- -- - ------ ------· 
Supervisory I 832 0.20 

-- -- - ---- -- --- ---- ---- --- - ---- --
Employee activities(time, etc) i 2912 0.70 

---
Division Management __ I 816 0.20 -

------ ·--- -
500 PC Networking 8500 2.04 Topology migra 160 0.04 

- - - - J,---.------ - -

I Exchange servr 839 0.20 
- ------------ -·-- ·-----

l Remote Netwrk 694 0.17 --- -- --- - - - - ·----- - ------ - ----- --
! Web server 1,246 0.30 

--- -- - - - -- -- - - - - -- ----·- ---- - -----

---- ·-· - ----- -- ---- I - ------- - ----
501 AS400 I 576 0.14 

----- -------- - - ---- ----
I 

- - -- -- - ---

I 

- --· 
502 ~E:._CU_~ity __ ! 800 0.19 480 0.12 

---- - -- - - --- - - -
503 Help D_e~-~ _ i 3260 0.78 

--- - - - --
i 

--- --- - ·----

TOTAL 29147 10,447 
7.01 2.51 
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Software Maintenance and Training 

This adjustment is to cover the annual maintenance fees associated with the software we 
currently are using and to provide ongoing training needs. The software we use for 
programming, to access the mainframe at ISD, and to access our AS400, are covered in this 
request. Unless we pay the required fees to maintain our software, our applications will come to 
a complete standstill. We will not be able to comply with ISD policies on software and our 
ability to continue to communicate with the law enforcement community will deteriorate. 

To provide quality support on our systems, our IT staff must be trained in the current version of 
our software. With our limited number of staff training will be particularly important. Each staff 
member will be required to know several different applications to maintain our diverse system. 
Technology constantly changes. ISO sets new policies that require use of different software or 
an upgraded version of existing software. Changing from Token ring networks to Ethernet 
networks requires staff who has been trained in that software. Using the Web to reach our 
customers will provide better service but also requires training. Unless we can provide our staff 
with proper training we cannot comply with the standards and procedures being dictated by ISD. 
Training is also impacted by staff turnover. With the current shortage of Information Technology 
people, it is extremely difficult to find anyone trained in the varied applications we use. So each 
time an employee leaves, we must train their replacement. 

ISD Increases 

This adjustment covers all the increases in ISD charges to this agency. It also covers the charges 
that we have not had in the past, but are now necessary as a result of policies and procedures 
adopted by ISD. 

Remote Networking 

As you can see from the chart above, we support an extensive system. Over time, our network 
has become more complicated and far-reaching. The BCI and Fire Marshal divisions have l 0 
remote sites that have computers and need support. One strategic goal is to increase Web use for 
sharing information. This requires more security and more planning. 

The adjustment for remote networking covers the costs to connect all of our BCI and Fire 
Marshal remote sites directly to our office. It covers the costs that ISD will charge for initial 
wiring and hookup, plus the monthly communication charges for the biennium. Connections to 
all our offices is becoming more and more critical as we strive to get information to our agents in 
a more timely and effective manner. Bringing the new criminal history system online, and 
transferring information from the livescan units directly into the criminal history system are just 
two functions that we will be able to perform once these offices are connected. Remote law 
enforcement locations will also be able to use AFIS for a search. With connections to our 
Bismarck office, each of these developments will make information available immediately to our 
staff and other law enforcement agencies. 
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Rent and Office Equipment 

The In formation Technology Division has two employees located at the Capitol, the other five 
employees are located in the Bureau of Criminal Investigation building. The Information 
Technology Division has been squeezed in space with BCI. That space is not meeting our needs. 
With the addition of equipment for new programs such as HIDTA and the NIST server for 
communications with FBl, our computer room must be expanded. Our computer equipment 
needs to be in a secured environment. Currently, the equipment is located in three different 
rooms because of space constraints. Additional ly, BCI will need to take over the space we are 
currently using. When this happens IT will have to find and rent space elsewhere. We will need 
space that provides climate control and security for our computers. The request for rent will 
cover the cost of that space. 

Travel costs of $7,000 for support of our remote sites is covered in this request as well. Support 
of our remote sites is extremely important and will be even more critical as we move forward 
with the sharing of information between many law enforcement agencies. 

Costs of $3,960 for pagers are also requested. The pagers will become critical because the 
Criminal History system will require IT staff to be on call 24 hours a day for support. 

Security Plan and Year 2000 - Disaster Recovery 

Components of the strategic plan that are included in the Executive Recommendation are the 
provisions for security, Y2K and disaster recover. These components are vital to our office 
operations and they have a huge impact on the entire office, particularly the integrity of the law 
enforcement data on our system. 

Maintaining the security of information and the integrity of our systems is vital. There is a 
constant battle to keep ahead of the evolving viruses and hackers. Recently, a member of our 
staff downloaded some programs that are readily available from the Internet. He ran these 
programs against our network as a test and was able to determine 75 percent of our user 
passwords in less than five minutes. The abi lity to keep unauthorized persons from accessing or 
destroying the information on our systems is critical. Aside from protecting our system and 
information from damage by third parties, much of the information in our office is either highly 
sensitive or confidential. In the wrong hands the information we have can place our agents, 
those they work with and members of the public in life-threatening situations. Aside from these 
considerations, many federal programs are requiring a high level of security on our network to 
allow us to connect with their programs and use their resources. 

The Executive Recommendation also includes critical funding to address the Y2K issue. This 
proj ect includes our PC replacement project. This project is crucial to our Agency's ability to 
meet the challenges of the year 2000 readiness issue and to assure that the information we 
provide to law enfo rcement and the public remains available and intact. 
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STATEMENT OF KEITH LAUER, DIRECTOR 
GAMING DIVISION 

Local Gaming Enforcement Grants 

In response to Governor Schafer's budget guideline for the 1999-2001 biennium, the Office of 
Attorney General had to propose a budget reduction of $979,000, or 7.7 percent, of the office's 
present general fund budget of $12,724,000. We were faced with cutting such things as drug or 
criminal agents or cutting grant funds that were not clearly providing gaming enforcement. We 
reviewed the current uses and identified $221,877 of gaming grant funds that were being used by 
local agencies for gaming enforcement. We requested restoration of all the gaming grant funds 
in our optional adjustments. However, the executive recommendation includes only the 
$221,877. 

We have agreed to ask this committee for the restoration of the additional funds. Distributed 
with my testimony are several letters supporting this request. 

The need for these funds must be viewed in the historical context of gaming in North Dakota. 
The 1983 Legislature passed a law requiring that a portion of the gaming tax be paid back as 
grants to cities and counties for gaming enforcement. The amount that each city and county 
receives is based on the amount of adjusted gross proceeds (AGP) earned within that city and 
county in relation to the total AGP, multiplied by the total amount to be paid back each quarter. 
From 1983 through 1989, the amount of the grants each quarter was 40 percent of the taxes 
collected, and increased each quarter due to the growth of gaming. During 1989, 1993, 1995, 
and 1997 the grants were reduced and limited as follows: 

Legislature 

1989 
1993 
1995 
1997 

Biennial 
Limit 

$1 ,360,000 
$1,224,000 
$1 ,045,520 
$1 ,014,152 

($170,000 per quarter) 
($153,000 per quarter) 
($130,690 per quarter) 
($126,769 per quarter) 

It is difficult for the Office of Attorney General to assess the negative impact on local gaming 
enforcement from the reduction of the grants. There is no central information system to track the 
usage or effectiveness of the grants. In the past, the Office of Attorney General has 
recommended that there be an accounting of the grants; however, this suggestion has not been 
implemented and the grants have been viewed as revenue sharing. Surveys conducted by the 
Office of Attorney General have shown that some law enforcement agencies use the grants for 
gaming enforcement while some do not. 

Section 6 of this bill provides that local gaming enforcement grants would be di sbursed based on 
a competitive grant application process administered by the Office of Attorney General. This 
would ensure that the grants are applied toward gaming enforcement. A local law enforcement 
agency would be required to apply for, justify, and document the use of the funds. If this 
provis ion is enacted, our office is prepared to implement it. 
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We have been able to identify past uses for some of the local gaming enforcement grants: 

1. Equipment Purchases - Local law enforcement agencies have used grants to purchase video 
surveillance cameras, VCRs, video monitors, burglar alarms, vehicles, communication 
equipment, firearms, weigh scales, and computers and software. This equipment provides 
agencies with the tools necessary to effectively conduct gaming investigations. The 
equipment is also used for non-gaming investigations. Many agencies have limited financial 
resources for buying equipment; 

2. Training and Membership - Some agencies have used grants to send officers to gaming 
related training and to fund their membership in regional and national organizations, which 
focus on training and intelligence gathering. Training has been instrumental in enabling 
agencies to be more involved and effective in doing gaming investigations; 

3. Local Work Permits - Some agencies maintain a very stringent local work permit system to 
regulate persons who conduct gaming in their jurisdiction. The agencies do a comprehensive 
background investigation of potential gaming employees and approve, deny, or revoke work 
permits; 

4. Local Gaming Permits - Some agencies have used grants for issuing local permits to 
organizations that conduct bingo, raffles, or sports pools. They determine the organizations' 
eligibility and ensure they compliance with the gaming law and rules; 

5. Investigations - Local law enforcement agencies are relied on to investigate most gaming 
cases involving criminal violations. Grants have been used for "buy" money, copying bank 
records, and paying informants. Most investigations are complex, time consuming, and may 
involve officers from more than one jurisdiction; 

6. Administration - Some agencies have used grants to pay for a proportionate share of office 
space, storage space, office equipment, vehicle use, and secretarial services for a gaming 
enforcement officer; 

7. Employing Personnel - Some agencies have employed additional personnel. For instance, 
the city of Fargo hired an auditor who conducts annual limited scope reviews of all 
organizations that conduct gaming in Fargo to ensure compliance with state and local 
requirements. Without the grants, several jurisdictions have indicated that they would be 
forced to eliminate positions or reassign officers to non-gaming cases; 

8. Non-gaming investigations - Some agencies have used the grants to investigate illegal uses 
of drugs, burglaries, thefts, and embezzlements which may have involved gaming; and 

9. Gaming activity has increased substantially since the grant concept began. Since 1983, the 
amount of gross proceeds has nearly tripled to $274 million and number of sites has doubled 
to 1,000. 

There are several representatives of local law enforcement agencies here today who support 
restoring the grants . Since they are on the front line, they can provide you with a clear 
perspective of the value of the grants and the impact to their jurisdictions if the grants are not 
restored. 
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CITY/COUNTY PAYBACK FOR FISCAL YEARS 1984 THROUGH 2001 
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LINE ITEM 

SALARIES ANO WAGES 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

EQUIPMENT 

GRANTS 

LITIGATION FEES 

HIOTA 

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES BOARD 

RACING COMMISSION 

ARREST & RETURN OF FUGITIVES 

GAMING COMMISSION 

NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

LAW ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMS 

TOTA L 

iFTE 

GENERAL FU ND 
FEDERA L FUNDS 
OTHER FUNDS 
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 

COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 

PRESENT GOVERNOR 

BUDGET 6% BUDGET 

1997-99 REDUCTIONS 

12.917.894 

4,690,014 

1 .06 2,233 

5,790,003 1792,278) 

139,024 1139,024) 

0 

4,000 14,000) 

219,744 110,987) 

18,795 118, 7951 

19,400 114,291) 

1,135,781 

620. 701 

26 .617 ,589 1979 ,3751 

153. 5 

12,723,824 
10,469.122 

3,424,643 
26 ,617,589 

COLUMN 3 

CONTINUED 

PROGRAM 

INFLATION/ 

OTHER 

641.166 

1175,504) 

1571, 197) 

68.435 

137 . 1001 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
BUDGET ANALYSIS 

FOR THE 1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 COLUMN6 
RESIDENT. SUBST. ABUSE- HIGH 

STATE PRISONERS/BYRNE INTENSITY NCHIP/NICS 

GRANTS/LOCAL LAW DRUG LAW 

ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANCE TRAFFICKING ENF ORC EMENT 

BLOCK GRANTS ACT PROGRAMS 

52. 742 1170.524) 

2,630 158,920) 

329 ,86 5 0 

2,696,607 

1,427,552 

38 5, 23 7 2,69 6. 60 7 1.198. 10 8 

1.0 12 .0 1.0 

2,31 PM 

COLUMN 7 COLUMN8 COLUMN 9 COLUMN 10 
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS-

TOTAL 1999-2001 EXECUTIVE REQUESTED CHANGES REVISED 1999-2001 

BIENNIUM BUDGET THE 1999-2001 BIENNIUM BUDGET 

BASE 1999-2001 EXECUTIVE WITH REQUESTED 
BUDGET BIENNIUM BUDGET SENATE CHANGES 

13,441,278 14,181,012 22 ,1 67 14,203. 179 

4,458,220 4,753,803 578 ,606 5,332,409 

491,036 868,7 10 38,150 906 ,860 

5,396,025 5,396,025 792,278 6.188.303 

0 50.000 50,000 100.000 

2,696 ,607 2,745,933 11,141.758) 1,604,175 

0 

208, 757 244,548 244 ,548 

0 30,000 30,000 

5,109 5,109 5. 109 

2.563,333 2,528,385 11 82,616) 2,345 ,769 

620. 701 628,844 628 .844 

29 .881.066 31,40 2.369 186.8 27 31 ,589 ,196 

167 .5 16 7.5 (7.01 160 .5 

.. ' - ·~"'\ :•( ·_ .. . 
12 ,087,832 14,1 22.905 1,868.053 15,990.958 
14,163,468 14,209,168 11 ,681,226) 12,527.962 

3,629,968 3.0 70,276 3,070,276 
29 ,881,066 31 ,402 ,389 186,827 31,589 . 196 

99-2001 BUOsum• exec.legisactlon.XLS99-2001 senatereQ 



• 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2003 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon, insert: 
"to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14 of the 1997 Supplement to the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to purchases of gaming stamps by licensed distributor;" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "$ 14,181,012" with "$" 14,203, 179" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "4,753,803" with "5,332,409" 

Page 1, line 13 , replace "868, 71 O" with "906,860" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "5,396,025"with "6,188,3 03" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "50,000" with "100,000" 

Page 1, after line 17, insert: 
"Arrest and Return of Fugitives $30,000" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "2,528,3 85" with "2,345,769" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "2,745,933" with "1,604,175" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "$31,402,369" with "$31,589,196" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "1 7,279,464" with" 15,598,238" 

Pagel, line 23, replace "$14,122,905" with "$15,990,958" 

Page 2, after line 26, insert: 
"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-14 of the 1997 Supplement to 
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as foUow: 

3. A licensed distributor shall affix a North Dakota gaming stamp to each deal of pull tabs 
and bingo cards, punch board, sports pool board, calcutta board, and series of paddlewheel 
ticket cards sold and shall purchase the stamps from the attorney general for twenty five 
thirty-five cents each. Ten cents of each stamp sold, up to thirty-six thousand dollars per 
biennium must be credited to the attorney general's operating fund to defray the costs of 
issuing the gaming stamps." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 125 - OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

This amendment makes the following changes: 
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• •-· OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 1999-2001 BIENNIUM BUDGET • REQUESl ED SENATE CHANGES 
1999 SENA TE BILL NO. 2003 

LOCAL ARRES T INFORMATION 
1999-2001 GAMING AND RETURN LITIGATION TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION COMPUTER BULLET 

EXECUTIVE ENFORCEMENT OF FEES STAFF • FUNDING TECHNOLOGY SOFTINARE ISO REQUIRED COMPUTER REMOTE AGENT PRINTING , PROOF TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATION GRANTS FUGITIVES RESTORATION SOURCE CHANGE RENT, EXPENSES MAINTENANCE INCREASES HARDWARE NE'TWORKING PHYSICALS POSTAGE VESTS NCHIP HIDTA CHANGES 

Salaries and Wages 14,181 ,012 22,167 1',203, 179 
OperaUng E);)enses 4,753 ,803 181 ,330 189,657 10,400 71,268 7.250 « ,381 18,900 5,258 ,989 
Equipment 888,710 38,150 908.aeo 
Gronts 5,39e,025 792,278 6,1M,303 
LD.iaUon Fees 50,000 50,000 75,420 175,420 
Racing Commission 244 ,548 2«.548 
National Crtmlnal History Improvement 2.528,385 (182,818) 2,345,789 
Amst and Retum of Fug!Oves 30,000 30,000 
Gamlng Commlnlon 5,1 09 5,109 
lAw Enforcement Programs 828,844 828.8« 
High ln1ensHy Drug Trafficidng Aroa 2,745,933 (1,141 ,758) 1,604,175 
Total 31 ,402,369 792.278 30,000 50,000 22,167 75,420 181 ,330 189,857 48,550 71 ,268 7,250 « .381 18 ,900 (1 82.816) (1,141,758) 31 ,589,19e 

General Fund 14,1 22.905 792,278 30,000 50,000 379,019 75,420 111 ,330 189,857 46,550 71,288 7,250 ,U ,381 1U00 15,9G0 ,95a 

Fedenil Funds 14,209,188 (356 ,852) (1 82,816) (1,1'1 ,758) 12,527,9e2 
Other Funds 3,070,278 3,070,276 
Total 31 ,402,389 792.278 30,000 50,000 22 ,187 75,420 181 ,330 169,657 48 ,550 71 ,268 7,250 44 ,3&1 18,900 (182,818) (1, 141,758) 31 ,580,198 

FTE 167.5 (3.0) (4.0) 160.5 
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I. 

REQUESTED CHANGES TO THE EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION 
SENA TE BILL NO. 2003 - OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

SENATE APPROPRA TIO NS 

Restore Local Gaming Enforcement grants - an increase of $792,278 from the 
General Fund 

Grants 
General Fund 

$1 ,014,155 
$1 ,014,155 

2. Restore Arrest and Return of Fugitives line item, increasing total funding to $30,000 
from the General Fund, the cost anticipated for the 1997-99 biennium 

Arrest and Return of Fugitives 
General Fund 

$30,000 
$30,000 

3. Restore an additional $50,000 from the General Fund in Litigation Fees line item - Water 
Litigation 

4 . 

Litigation Fees 
General Fund 

$100,000 
$100,000 

Funding source switch, from federal funds (-$356,852) to the General Fund ($379,019) 
for 3.75 current Information Technology staff members and salary increases to assist in 
retaining current staff members - Net total $22,167 

Salaries and Wages 
General Fund 
Federal Funds 

$ 22,167 
$379,019 
$356,852 

5. Rent and operating expenses for Information Technology staff members and equipment -
$75 ,420 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

$75,420 
$75,420 

6. Office Software Maintenance - all current office software - $181 ,330 from the General 
Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

$181 ,330 
$181 ,330 

7. Information Services Division required increases - $169,657 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

20 

$169,547 
$169,547 



8. Computer Hardware - Computer hardware and cleaning/repairs - $48,550 from the 
General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
Equipment 
General Fund 

$10,400 
$38,150 
$48,550 

9. Remote Networking - Connecting all Office of Attorney General staff members into the 
office network. Currently, several outlying Office of Attorney General locations are 
unable to access the office's network - $71,268 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

$71 ,268 
$71,268 

10. Agent Physicals - In order to prevail in claiming that a condition is work-related, (and 
receive Workers' Compensation benefits for the claim) an agent must have successfully 
passed a medical exam which does not reveal any evidence of a condition to which the 
claim relates - $7,250 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

$7,250 
$7,250 

11. Printing and postage for: Sex Offender registration, Criminal History, Statistical Analysis 
Center (SAC); and Central Duplicating increases - $44,381 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

$44,381 
$44,381 

11. Bullet Proof vests - protect BCI agents - $18,900 from the General Fund 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund 

12. National Criminal History Improvement Project - the positions and federal funding for 
the National Instant Check System (NICS) are unneeded at this time since the FBI has 
taken over this responsibility - $(-182,616 federal funds). Reduce positions by 3.0 FTE 
(there were originally 4.0 NICS positions; one of the positions was used for the 
Identification Technician funded in the Executive Recommendation). 

National Criminal History Improvement Project 
Federal Funds 

$2,345,769 
$2,345,769 

13. High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) - BCI has received information that the 
Office's allocation for HIDTA will be less than anticipated in the budget request. The 
HJDTA line item needs to be reduced by $1,141,758 from federal funds, and the 
associated FTE positions should be reduced by 4.0, to provide 8.0 FTE for HI OT A. 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 
Federal Funds 

21 

$1,604,175 
$1,604,175 
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14. Licensed Distributor gaming stamp purchases are proposed to increase by $.10, from $.25 
to $.35 per stamp, to pay for bar-coded stamps that will be utilized in the 1999-200 l 
biennium. The cost of the bar-coded stamps is approximately $.105 per stamp. The 
current stamps cost approximately $.015 per stamp. Additional revenues and related 
expenses of $36,000 were included in the Executive Recommendation. Any amount in 
excess of $36,000, for the biennium, will be deposited into the General Fund . 
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PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION - SB NO. 2003 

SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 
Senate -

Requested 
Changes OPTIONAL ADJUSTMENT REQUESTED 

1 Restoration of Gaming Enforcement grants 

2 Restore Arrest & Return of Fugitives 

3 Restore portion of Ligitation Fees - Water Lawsuit 

4 GF all IT staff- 3.75 fte ff funding switch 

5 Rent, Office equipment - Information Technology 

6 Software Maintenance 
7 Information Services Division required increases (ISO) 

8 Hardware 
9 Remote Networking 

10 Agent Physicals 

Printing & postage for Offend. Regis .,Crim. Hist.& SAC, Central 
1 1 Duplicating Increases 

1 2 Bullet proof vests 

13 HIDTA - reduce to anticipated level , funding , staff 

14 NCHIP - remove NICS fte and funding 

- TOTAL REQUEST 

GENERAL 
FUND 

792 ,2 78 
30,000 
50,000 

379 ,019 
75,420 

181,330 
169,657 
48,550 
71 ,268 

7,250 

44,381 

18,900 

1,868,053 

FEDERAL 
FUNDS 

(356,852) 

(1, 141 ,758) 

(182,616) 
(1,681 ,226) 

FUNDED IN 
EXEC. REC. 

TOTAL Y/N 
792 ,278 N 

30,000 N 
50,000 50,000 
22 ,167 N 
75 ,420 N 

181 ,330 N 
169,657 N 
48,550 N 
71,268 N 

7,25 0 N 

44,381 N 
18,900 N 

(1 , 141,758) y 

(182 ,616) y 

186,827 •""'J....,.,...a~eo~~ 
r~ ... ~ .. Yt>~,J;•,;,;o,;:\.f~ ·,. . ,:: • ~ g 
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Fire Marshal 

Garn., Lie., Rae. 

Consumer Prot. 

BCI 

Legal Serv. 

Info. Tech. 

AG Admin. 

Fin. & Admin. 

Office of Attorney General 
1997-99 Biennium Appropriation By Division 

Total Appropriation $26,617,589 
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Fire Marshal 

_. Garn,, Lie., Rae. 

, Consumer Prot. 

BCI 

Legal Serv. 

Info. Tech. 

AG Admin 

Fin. & Admin. 

Office of Attorney General Budget 
Executive Recommendation for the 
1999-2001 Biennium by Division 

Total Recommendation $31,402,369 

$18, 81,364 



Federal Funds 

Office of Attorney General 
1997-99 Biennium Appropriation 

By Funding Source 
Total Appropriation $26,617,589 

General Fund 



Federal Funds 

Office of Attorney General Budget 
Executive Recommendation for the 

1999-2001 Biennium 
By Funding Source 

Total Recommendation $31,402,369 

Other Funds"-4 

General Fund 
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DUTIES ANO RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

The Attorney General is the chief legal officer of the State of North Dakota with duties 
outlined by state statutory and common law. The Attorney General represents the state and the 
interests of North Dakotans in civil and criminal legal actions. He or she may take legal action 
deemed necessary to protect the ri ghts of North Dakotans, to defend the actions of state officials and 
to ensure public order. 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS: 

• Serving as the state's legal adviser in matters concerning the state's law and constitution. 

• Issuing opinions to county state's attorneys, city attorneys, and governing boards to interpret 
state laws that affect cities and counties. 

• Proposing new legislation, support ing the passage of public interest bills, and providing legal 
opinions to legislators. 

• Representing the state in civil and criminal lawsuits in which the state is an interested party. 

• Defending state employees acting within the scope of their employment. 

• Assisting local government in criminal investigations and drug enforcement. 

• Protecting the rights of consumers. 

• Regulating charitable gambling. 

• Preventing and controlling fires and hazardous materials incidents, and inspecting certain 
buildings for fire safety. 

• Training police, sheriffs, firefighters, emergency responders, game wardens, 
highway patrol troopers, gaming personnel, and county state's attorneys. 

• Licensing alcoholic beverage retailers; wholesale and retail tobacco product dealers; transient 
merchants ; coin-operated amusement devices operators, lessors, and distributors; fair boards; 
polygraph operators; charitable gaming operators; gaming manufacturers and distributors; 
and wholesale fireworks di stributors. 



DI V ISION SUMMARIES 

LEGAL SERVICES DIYISJONS 

Beth Baumstark, Director, Stale and Local Government Division 
Douglas Bahr, /\cling Director, Civil Litigation 

Robert Bennett, Director_ Criminal and Regulatory Division 
Charles Carvell, Director, Nat ural Resources and Indian /\llairs Division 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Provide a full range of legal services to over I 00 state agencies, boards, and commissions, 
including assistance in drafting and negotiating contracts, drafting rules, reviewing rules 
drafted, drafting legislation, giving oral advice over the phone or in person, providing formal 
written opinions on questions of law, representing clients in administrative hearings and 
appeals, representing clients in lawsuits in state and federal courts, and negotiating resolution 
of di sputes. 

• Provide legal opinions to legislators, county state 's attorneys, and city attorneys. 

• Assist county state's attorneys and city attorneys in criminal prosecutions. 

• Provide legal advice in virtually hundreds of subject areas, including Indian law, gaming, 
water, municipalities, criminal law, habeas corpus, extradition, contracts, torts, North Dakota 
and federal constitutional law, environmental law, agricultural law, energy law, real property 
law, oil and gas law, Medicare, AFDC, eminent domain, hunting, pri soner issues, contract 
bidding, education, health, game and fi sh, food stamps, nursing home rate regulation, 
professional licensure and discipline, bankruptcy, wage claims, implied consent, personnel , 
GA TT and NAFTA, banking, child support, collections, unclaimed property, debtor/creditor, 
sexual harassment, the Americans with Disabilities Act, administrative law, alcoholic 
beverage law, consumer protection, anti-trust, public benefits law, and public finance law. 

• Provide training on legal matters for state agencies, law enforcement, local government 
officials, and state's attorneys. 

• Give presentations and provide written material to the public on legal matters of general 
interest including brochures on eminent domain, landlord tenant law, small claims courts, 
state employee defense and liability, open meetings and open records, and sex offenses. 

All of the services mentioned above are provided by 30 attorneys and four legal assistants. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE J 997-99 BIENN JlJM: 

• ln vc.:s ti gatcd and researched poss ible litigation t1gai11 st the tobacco industry for consumer 
protection and antitrust violations; participated with other states in negotiating and drafting of 
a nationwide settlement of tobacco liti gat ion. resulting in ;:i Master Scttlcmrnt Agreement 
joined hy <ill states and tc1Titorics that had not previously settled with the tobacco companies: 



am! obtained North Dakota court approval or the Master Settlement Agreement and a 
Smokeless Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, as well as consent decrees against the 
tobacco companies prohibiting specific conduct and future violations of consumer protection 
and antitrust laws, including significant measures to protect the public health and reduce 
yout h smoking and payments by the tobacco companies to the State of North Dakota 
continuing as long as those companies market tobacco products, amounting to approximately 
$717 million _just through 2025. 

• Success fully defended a challenge to the Attorney General's authority to appoint special 
assistant attorney Generals retained hy state agencies on a contingent fee basis. 

• Monitored asbestos litigation brought on behalf of the North Dakota University System, 
Department of Transportation, Job Service North Dakota, and the Depaitment of Health 
involving a multi-million dollar claim 

• Coordinated and monitored work of special assistant attorney generals providing services on 
behalf of state agencies . 

• Assisted the Office of Management and Budget in administering the State's Risk 
Management Fund to handle claims and lawsuits against the State. 

• As of December 1, 1998, collected approximate ly $2,867,600 through farm foreclosures, 
$126,800 through residential foreclosures, and $119,000 through farm bankruptcy 
proceedings for the Bank of North Dakota. 

• Successfully represented numerous State employees who were sued as a result of their job
related actions. 

• Continued to reduce legal costs to the State by making greater use of legal assistants to 
provide legal services . 

• Assisted the Department of Transportation in a half million dollars damages suit through 
mediation. As a result, the State saved millions of dollars and DOT will be changing 
numerous documents to help avoid similar claims in the future. 

• Represented the Department of Labor in a claim against Interstate Business College for 
unpaid wages. 

• Assisted the Office of Management and Budget's Risk Management in a pro-active effort to 
develop sol utions for state agencies to address possible Year 2000 problems. 

• Prosecuted, negotiated , and settled a wide variety of professional licensure actions on behalf 
of numerous sta te licensing boards. 

• Conducted an investigation of the Lake J\gassiz Regional Council pursuant to a request from 
the Legis lative J\udit and Fiscal Review Committee. 
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• lssucu 20 1 !\ttorncy General opinions, including 27 opinions in response to allegations of 
opcn rccorus or open meetings violations. 

• Responded to I 05 requests for advice from the Attorney General by state agencies and 
po liti cal subdivi sions; reviewed 124 sets of administrative rules; and addressed 1,186 written 
citizen inq ui ri es for calendar years 1995 and 1996 . 

• Provided trai ning to local and officials in the application of sex offender regi stration, open 
records and meetings law, and the new snowmobile DUI law. 

• Assisted the Governor's Office in its negotiations with the Spirit Lake Nation concerning the 
tribe ' s claim that Devils Lake is within its reservation . 

• Represented the Public Service Commission in its successful litigation with the Spirit Lake 
Nation over the regulation of electric companies operating on the reservation. 

• Represented the State Water Commission in its successful litigation to obtain the right to 
survey land for an outlet to Devils Lake. 

• Brought dozens of administrative enforcement actions on behalf of the Health Department, 
Oil and Gas Division, Agriculture Department, and other agencies, and recovered significant 
civil penalti es in those actions. 

• Filed or joined amicus briefs in approximately 45 federal and state court actions. 

• Successfully represented the state before a Minnesota state agency contemplating applying 
externality costs associated with electrical power generated with lignite coal. 

• Negotiated a $5 million clean up of the Dakota Catalyst site. 

• Presided over several hundred oil and gas hearings. 

• Assisted the Conference of Western Attorneys General in drafting annual supplements to its 
The American Indian Law Deskbook and contributed to preparation of the Deskbook's 
second edition. 

• Assisted the State Water Commission in issuing bonds for construction of the Southwest 
Water Pipeline and the Northwest Area Water Supply projects. 

• Assisted in the prosec ution of civil forfeitures in drug offense cases. 

• Prosecuted or assis ted in the prosecution of a wide variety of criminal cases, including death , 
assault, thc lL gaming, obscenity, drug, and ad ult and child sex offenses. · 

• J\ ss is tt.:c.l in tht.: defense of the constitutionality 01· st.:x offender registrati on, obscenity, child 
ahusL:. initi titivt.: and n.:krt.:ndum statutes, and other state statutes. 



• After a lengthy trial, obtained favorable district court rulings against a consumer credit 
counseling service, related organizations, and its principals concerning the operation of the 
serv ice, its use of funds, and the protection of its clients' funds. 

• Processed more than 100 extradition requests. 

The Legal Services Divisions provided more than 150,000 hours oflegal services. 

FUTURE DIRECTIONS: 

• Improve legal services to state agencies by retaining experienced attorneys and increasing 
attorney knowledge through training. 

• Decrease costly litigation by providing more pro-active advice on issues and encouraging 
agency staff to recognize and address legal issues at an early point. 

• Continue to move our attorneys into the electronic age with increased efficiency through 
increased use of available electronic resources, such as the Internet and e-mail. 
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BUREAU OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 

William 11. Brocr, Director 

MA.JOH FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Assist local law enforcement agencies in the investigation of major crimes by providing 
experti se and resources not otherwise immediately available to local agencies. 

• Assi st local , state, and federal agencies, at their request, in investigating serious crimes or 
criminal activity that crosses jurisdictional boundaries. 

• Participate in seven narcotics task forces, providing superv1s1on for six of the seven, 
consisting of 37 member agencies in 19 counties. 

• Implement a statewide strategy to curb increased usage and shut down the illicit manufacture 
of methamphetamine. 

• Assist the Attorney General-appointed Peace Officers Standards and Training (POST) Board 
in licensing and training of state and local peace officers, and in maintaining licensing and 
training records of those peace officers. 

• Administer federal grants for state and local criminal justice programs. 

• Collect crime data from local agencies through the Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) 
program for various state reports and for local, state, and national statistics. 

• Maintain the criminal hi story records of offenders and an Automated Fingerprint 
Identification System (AFIS) . 

• Maintain other criminal justice records such as offender_ registration, concealed weapon 
permits, Central Warrant Information System, protection orders, law enforcement 
intelligence network, and official records of criminal and narcotics investigations. 

• Assist local and state agencies in designing, developing, and maintaining infom1ation 
systems for criminal justice purposes. 

• Assemble data from information systems and other sources, and analyze and disseminate 
information regarding the state's criminal justice system. 

• Provide domestic violence prevention services though technical assistance and training to 
local law enforcement agencies, prosecutors, judges, and domestic violence prevention 
programs . 

SIGN IFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DllRING 1997-99 BIENN IUM : 

• /\ssistcd in numerous criminal w1d drug invl:stig.ations. 
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• Continued to expand field training of law enforcement agencies, and provided specialized 
investigative training on murder, sexual assault, narcotics, interrogation, and other requested 
courses for law enforcement. 

• Continued CountcrACT, a drug and alcohol education/prevention program, which targets 
fourth through sixth graders statewide. 

• Continued to promote coordination of multijurisdictional narcotics task forces throughout the 
state. 

• Continued to utilize the Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) in a regional 
program with Minnesota and South Dakota. The system presently contains fingerprint 
images on approximately 55,000 persons. 

• Acquired an additional $849,554 in federal grant funds, under three applications, to improve 
criminal history records under the National Criminal History Improvement Program 
(NCHJP). 

• Increased sex offender registration from 576 registered offenders in December 1996 to 994 
sex offenders and offenders against children in July 1998. 

• Processed approximately 6,000 requests each year from the general public for criminal 
history record information. 

• Continued to maintain and administer the North Dakota Law Enforcement Intelligence 
Network . 

• Established narcotics K-9 programs in Bowman and Minot and replaced the K-9 unit in 
Dickinson. 

• Assisted local law enforcement agencies in the Grafton; Devils Lake, Williston, and 
Wahpeton areas in maintaining a narcotics K-9 program. 

• Participated in a study of the State Crime Laboratory and the Medical Examiner Program. 

• Developed and implemented methamphetamine Train the Trainer programs for eight regions 
of the state. 

• Received approval of the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area's (HIDTA) 
Executive Board for inclusion into the Midwest HIDTA to further the fight against 
methamphetamine. 

FlJTURE DIRECTIONS: 

• Continue to implement a statewide strategy to curb increased usage and shut down the illicit 
ma11ul",_1cturc of methamphetamine by becoming associated with the Midwest High Intensity 
Drug Tral"ticking Area. 
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• Continue to improve coordination between multijuri sdictional task forces throughout the 
state. 

• Become more profi cient in the investigation of computer crimes. 

• Establish a Fraud Un it. 

• Continue to promote and refine the statewide Law Enforcement Intelligence Network, and 
create a criminal intelligence bulletin for local , state, and federal criminal justice agencies . 

• Provide specialized training on a regional basis to law enforcement agencies. 

• Participate in the FBI' s national sex offender regi stry database, which will allow for the 
transfer of registration data to the FBI, access to a national database of registered offenders, and 
which will facilitate the movement of hard copy registration information to an on-line system 
for criminal justice agencies. 

• Implement the National Criminal History Records Improvement Program (NCHIP). 

• Link with the Integrated Automated Fingerprint Identification System (IAFIS) in order to 
share information with the Federal Bureau of Investigation to ' further expand searching 
capabilities. 

• Implement livescan fingerprint units in several of the state's larger correctional facilities to 
allow for the electronic booking of arrested individuals at the local level. 

• Establish connection with Rissnet, a regional criminal intelligence system, through MOCIC, 
and establish additional connec tions with other state intelligence agencies. 
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FIRE MARSHAL 

Dan Hoium, Fire Marshal 

MA.JOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES 

• Determine cause and origin of fires. 

• Compile fire incident reports from across the state and generate stati stics to enhance fire 
prevention efforts. 

• Inspect public facilities for means and adequacy of exits in case of fire. The types of 
facilities inspected include childcare centers, schools, and public assemblies. 

• Enfo rce laws relating to the installation and maintenance of fire extinguishing equipment and 
the storage and handling of flammable liquids, explosives, and liquefied petroleum gas. 

• Provide on-scene emergency assistance for safe mitigation of hazardous materials releases. 

• Develop and deliver training programs for arson detection, hazardous materials incident 
response, fire prevention, and code enforcement. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING 97-99 BIENNIUM 

• Deve loped and delivered new arson detection program for local firefighters and law 
enforcement personnel. 

• Developed and delivered new hazardous materials awareness program for local firefighters, 
EMS personnel , and law enforcement. 

• Improved fire prevention training in terms of delivery and quality and streamlined fire 
inspection programs for expansion into more public facilities·. 

• Developed and distributed a quarterly newsletter to the fire service. 

• Developed and distributed a Fire Chiefs Guide to local fire chiefs. 

• Developed a successful and well-accepted school fire inspection program. 

• Developed a detailed and thorough procedure for fire investigations and reports . 

• hnplcmcntcd an inspec ti on workload prioriti zation system. 

FUTURE DIRECTIONS 

• Develop and deliver nevi' Incident Command System overv iew tn loca l fireli ghters, EMS 
personnel. and law enforcement. 
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• Implement a new fire data collection system (NFIRS) that will benefit local fire departments, 
measure the effectiveness of fire prevention programs, and serve as a tool for future fire 
protection . 

• Design and develop a fire prevention program for fire chiefs to deliver to local schools. 

• Implement a statewide fire prevention poster contest for school-age children. 

• Design and distribute fire prevention awareness material (table tents) to public assembly 
buildings. 

• Work in conjunction with the Insurance Department to show statistics indicating not only fire 
loss dollar amounts but also property saved dollar amounts. 

• Continue to build stronger working relationships with citizens, fire departments, law 
enforcement, and other state/local agencies. 

• Work on further development of fire prevention materials and inspection tools to assist local 
fire service agencies in promoting fire safety within their communities. 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DJVISION 

Cher Thomas, Director 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Provide computer support for three local locations and 10 remote sites. 

• Provide and maintain computer applications for the major functions of the agency, allowing 
for the sharing of information as needed between divisions, other state agencies, and other 
entities. 

• Provide strategic technological planning for the agency. 

• Provide training for agency staff. 

• Provide tools for agency staff that will make them more effective and efficient in their jobs. 

• Provide agency staff with the computer equipment they need to do their jobs. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE 1997-99 BIENNIUM: 

• Information Technology Division was formed and staff was reorgani zed to better serve our 
customers. 

• Implemented a help desk function within the division . 

• Considerable work was done to ensure our computer systems are Year 2000 compliant. 

• Home page for agency was developed. 

• Set technology standards for the agency. 

• Made major improvements in the hardware/software for agency staff. 

• Strategic plan for three biennia was developed. 

• Developed a new Criminal Hi story system. 

• Rewrote several in-house DOS applications into Windows based applications. 

• Purchased and implemented new training software for the training academy. 

• Worked with the Supreme Court to integrate their application with the State's Attorneys 
application . This will in the future be integrated with the Criminal History application. 

• Mim1l BU cdTicc was networked and on line. 
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FUTURE DIRECTI ON: 

• Work with other law enforcement agencies to define and implement upgraded security that 
will allow us to share information safely between agencies and locations. Some of these 
agencies, such as the FBl, already have strict security regulations that we must adhere to if 
we are going to share information. 

• Continue to work with ensuring our computer systems are Year 2000 compliant. 

• Provide more information over the Internet in order to be responsive to our customers in a 
more timely and more efficient manner. 

• Provide 56K or Tl connectivity for remote BCI and Fire Marshal sites that are not currently 
connected to increase their ability to share information. 

• Continue to rewrite all the outdated, inefficient and deteriorating applications that are 
necessary. 

• Retain and recruit competent and knowledgeable staff. 

• Continue to stay current with hardware/software technology to be as efficient and effective as 
possible in providing information to our customers. 
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CONSUMER PROTECTION AND ANTITRUST (CPAT) DIVJSJON 

Parn:11 Grossman, Director 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Protect North Dakota consumers from misleading, deceptive, fraudulent and unfair business 
practices by enforcing the state's consumer fraud , false adverti sing and antitrust laws through 
the initiation of civil and criminal investigations and legal actions and the implementation of 
consumer education. 

• Mediate consumer complaints between consumers and businesses. 

• Educate North Dakota consumers on fraud prevention by conducting consumer fraud training 
and educational presentations and warning consumers through the media of current consumer 
fraud, scams and crimes. 

• Coordinate criminal and civil investigations with local, state, and national law enforcement. 

• Research state and federal consumer fraud and consumer law issues and assist legislators in 
the development and implementation of legislation. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DllRING THE 1997-99 BIENNIUM: 

• Opened 2,290 consumer complaint and investigation files. Closed 2,350 consumer complaint 
and investigation files. Recovered $753,790 on behalf of consumers. 

• Conducted 26 civil or criminal consumer fraud legal actions. 

• Collected $101,427 in civil penalti es, investigative costs and attorney's fees. 

• Conducted 107 consumer fraud prevention training and educational presentations to law 
enforcement, senior, professional , community, student and consumer groups throughout the 
state. 

• Continued participating in training programs called " Senior Antifraud Education" and 
"Senior Safety Academy" that teach law enforcement officers how to educate senior citizens 
in common consumer fraud scams and crimes. 

• Continued the successful "Hang Up on Fraud" campaign in cooperation with the North 
Dakota Bankers Association. The program educates bank employees and encourages them to 
contact the Consumer Protection Division if there :1re any doubts about the legitimacy of 
offers being m;.ide to bank customers. This program has been adopted by consumer 
protection divi s ions of other Attorney General offices throughout the country. 

• Conducted a Consumer h>cus meeting of state a~cncics in order to improve communications, 
ancl to coordinate. enhance and make more efficient consumer protection and ass istance for 
the f.Cneral pub li c. 
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• Sponsored and conducted in coordination with the Attorney General 's Consumer Education 
Ad visory Committee the first annual LifeSmarts competition, a game show style team 
compctiti(in testing the knowledge of high school students on consumer and life skills issues 
ranging from personal finances to health and technology . This competition emphasizes and 
encourages education in rinancial management and deci sion making skill s so necessary and 
critical ror our youth . 

The Consumer Protection Division hosted the National Association of Consumer Protection 
Investigators Regional Conference which represented 14 states and one province. The IRS 
conducted training classes in methods of tracing funds and sources of financial information. 

CPA T efficiently and effectively responded to the Flood of ' 97 in Grand Forks, North Dakota. A 
"One-Stop Shop" was set up to provide an on-site licensing procedure for contractors and 
transient merchants . Numerous state agencies joined together at that location to provide 
information that would enable contractors to meet state requirements in order to do business in 
the state. Picture identification cards were issued to provide residents of the area an assurance 
that businesses doing renovation work in their area were properly licensed. This intensive 
project continued for several months and was an effective method of protecting flood victims 
from scam artists who flock to disaster areas. 

FUTURE DIRECTIONS: 

• Continue to educate and warn consumers of current consumer fraud scams and crimes. 

• Continue to coordinate consumer education programs and training with private and public 
associations. 

• Implement and continue to develop consumer education curriculum for high school juniors 
and seniors through the Consumer Education Advisory Committee. 

• Continue to target and prevent costly telemarketing fraud upon senior citizens. 

• Take enforcement action against out-of-state companies engaged in sophisticated, complex 
or technological fraudulent and deceptive practices such as Internet fraud . 

• Increase North Dakota's presence in cooperative enforcement in multi-state and federal 
investigations, legal actions with other states and with federal agencies such as the federal 
Trade Commiss ion. 

• Increase enforcement of consumer fraud violations such as slamming and cramming in the 
area of telecommunications. 

• Address new consumer fraud issues such as identity theft, Y2K and possible unauthori zed 
switching of electrical services upon deregulation of the clectr ic industry . 
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GAMING DIVISION 

Keith Lauer, Director 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Administers, regulates, and enforces the charitable gaming industry. 

• Performs financial and compliance office and field audits, processes tax returns, and 
conducts background record checks. · 

• Provides outreach training to peace officers, executive board members, and employees. 

• Assists the State Gaming Commission in adopting administrative rules. 

• Ensures that Indian tribes comply with Tribal-State gaming compacts. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE 1997-99 BIENNIUM: 

• Provided assistance to the Grand Forks flood relief and recovery effort. 

• Worked with local law enforcement officials on cases of civil and criminal violations of the 
gaming law and rules. Issued administrative complaints. 

• Simplified and clarified standard recordkeeping system forms, tax returns, and instructions. 

• Issued a "Gaming Update" quarterly newsletter. 

• Inspected manufacturing plants of manufacturers of pull tabs and paper bingo cards. 

• Performed financial and compliance office and field audits of organizations, distributors, and 
manufacturers. Audit programs were developed and updated. 

• Processed quarterly gaming tax returns. 

• Conducted background record checks on employees of organizations, distributors, and Indian 
gaming casinos, and on officers and stockholders of manufacturers and Indian casino 
management companies. 

• Provided extensive outreach training to peace officers, executive boards members, and 
gaming employees. 

• Assisted the State Gaming Commission in developing and adopting clear and concise 
administrative rules. 

• Worked with five Indian tribes to ensure compliance with Tribal-State gaming compacts. 
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FUTURE DIRECTIONS: 

• Adopt bar-coded state gaming stamps to efficiently track games of pull tabs . 

• Work with organizations and distributors to increase electronic filing of tax returns and sales 
invoices to improve efficiency and accuracy of reported information. 

• Improve the tax return , quarterly report, and I icensing computer processing systems. 

• Develop guidelines for CPA firms for conducting independent financial and compliance 
audits of organizations. 

• Work with the 1999 Legislative Assembly to simplify and clarify the gaming laws. 

LICENSING SECTION 
La Verne Reinbold, Supervisor 

MAJOR FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES: 

• Issues licenses for alcoholic beverage retailers; wholesale and retail tobacco product dealers; 
transient merchants; coin-operated amusement device operators, lessors, and distributors; fair 
boards; polygraph operators; gaming organizations, distributors, and manufacturers; and 
wholesale fireworks distributors. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE 1997-99 BIENNIUM: 

• Provided on-site assistance for the Grand Forks flood relief and recovery effort in the "One 
Stop Shop" established to license contractors and transient merchants. 

• Worked on the development and are currently in the testing process of the licensing computer 
re-write. 

• Coordinated and began the process of conducting out-of-state background record checks on 
state retail alcoholic beverage license applicants. 

• Will collect about $26,300,000 in taxes, license fees, and other revenue. 
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RACING COMMISSION 
Roger Reule, Executive Director 

MAJOR FUNCTJONS AND DUTIES: 

• License and regulate pari-mutuel racing at live tracks and at simulcast racing sites. 

• Investigate and license all race participants and employees of live and simulcast racing. 

• Promote live and simulcast racing and the breeding of racehorses within the state. 

• Collect pari-mutuel taxes for deposit in the General Fund. 

• Collect monies from the industry for deposit in three special funds and administer these 
funds: Breeders' Fund, Purse Fund, and Promotion Fund. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE 1997-99 BIENNIUM: 

• Increased the number of North Dakota bred racehorses in the Breeders' Fund program to 
1,426. 

• Developed the first Nationally Qualified Stakes Race ever in North Dakota. 

• Annual level of gross revenues from the simulcast system to the state increased 40 percent. 

• Completed an affiliation with the National Racing Database to investigate rulings and status 
of licensed applicants. 
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STATEMENT OF HEIDI HEITKAMP 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

For the record, my name is Heidi Heitkamp. I am the Attorney General for the State of North 
Dakota. We appear today to request that the House of Representatives approve the budget as it 
passed over from the North Dakota Senate, with one addition and that is the restoration of the 
dollars for local law enforcement gaming grants. 

During the last two years, we have continued to provide quality legal services to state agencies 
and protection to North Dakota's citizens. We have met with considerable success. 

Legal Services 

• North Dakota court approval- of the Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement and a Smokeless 
Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, as well as consent decrees against the tobacco 
companies prohibiting specific conduct and future violations of consumer protection and 
antitrust laws, including significant measures to protect the public health and reduce youth 
smoking. Payments by the tobacco companies to the State of North Dakota continuing as 
long as those companies market tobacco products, amounting to approximately $717 million 
just through 2025 . 

• Successfully represented the state before a Minnesota state agency contemplating applying 
externality costs associated with electrical power generated with lignite coal. 

• Prosecuted or assisted in the prosecution of a wide variety of criminal cases, including death, 
assault, theft, gaming, obscenity, drug, and adult and child sex offenses. 

• After a lengthy trial, obtained favorable district court rulings against a consumer credit 
counseling service, related organizations, and its principals concerning the operation of the 
service, its use of funds, and the protection of its clients' funds. 

• Conducted an investigation of the Lake Agassiz Regional Council pursuant to a request from 
the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee. 

Bureau of Criminal Investigation 

• Continue to utilize the Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) in a regional 
program with Minnesota and South Dakota. The system presently contains fingerprint 
images on approximately 55 ,000 persons. 

• Increased sex offender registration from 576 registered offenders in December 1996 to 994 
sex offenders and offenders against children in July 1998. 

• Processed approximately 6,000 requests each year from the general public for criminal 
history record information. 
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• Received approval of the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area' s (HIDTA) 
Executive Board for inclusion into the Midwest HIDT A to further the fight against 
methamphetamine. 

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Division 

• Obtained refunds for consumers and businesses in North Dakota, recovering $753 ,790 on 
behalf of consumers. 

• Collected $101,427 in civil penalties, investigative costs and attorney 's fees smce the 
beginning of the biennium. 

Gaming Division 

• Simplified and clarified standard record keeping system forms, tax returns, and instructions. 

• Sends a quarterly newsletter to all gaming distributors, charitable organizations, Gaming 
Commission members and Gaming Advisory Board members. 

Fire Marshal's Office 

• Developed and delivered a new arson detection program and a hazardous materials 
awareness program for local firefighters and law enforcement personnel. 

• Developed and distributes a quarterly newsletter to the fire service. 

• Developed a detailed and thorough procedure for fire investigations and reports. 

In the Division Summaries section of our budget presentation, we provide a brief description of 
the various functions the Office of Attorney General performs and highlight other significant 
accomplishments over the past two years. 

In our presentation to you today, several division directors will provide testimony concerning 
their budgets. Jerry Kemmet, Acting Director of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation, will 
discuss the increase in criminal history records checks, along with North Dakota's inclusion into 
the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area. Following Jerry will be Cher Thomas, 
director of the Information Technology Division, who will discuss our information technology 
programs and their importance to our operations and law enforcement throughout North Dakota. 
Finally, Keith Lauer, director of the Gaming Division will discuss the gaming enforcement 
grants. 

Division directors from other divisions are also here to answer any questions you have . 
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STATEMENT OF JERALD C. KEMMET, ACTING DIRECTOR 
BUREAU OF CRIMINAL [NVEST[GATION 

We want to publicly thank the Governor for including several key elements in his budget that 
will help us protect North Dakota's citizens. As our budget came out of the Senate, it includes 
funding for our admittance into the Midwest High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area, improving 
the services of our Criminal History Records Section. providing bullet-proof vests to address 
officer safety concerns, and providing assistance to law enforcement, prosecutors, judges, and 
the citizens of North Dakota. 

Criminal History Records/Automated Fingerprint Information Svstem (AFIS) 

Criminal History Records are cumulative records of arrests and prosecutions of individuals. 
Every state has a criminal record repository. At the national level, the FBI maintains a record 
system that facilitates the exchange of the information between the states. Each system relies on 
fingerprint technology for positive identification of persons whose criminal activities are 
documented in these records. AFIS became fully operational as a regional program with the State 
of Minnesota in August 1996, and we want to thank this Committee and the Legislature for their 
support of this system. 

Recent Successes of the AFIS System: 

• July 8, 1997 - Latent fingerprints were provided to the Bureau of Criminal Investigation on 
an unsolved theft case. A search of these fingerprints using AFIS resulted in the positive 
identification of four of the latent fingerprints developed in the case. These fingerprints 
belonged to an individual who had been previously arrested in North Dakota. 

• August 1, 1997 - Stark County Sheriffs Office - Latent fingerprints were developed on an 
abandoned stolen vehicle, which was linked to a bank robbery in the town of McHenry. The 
latent prints were delivered to BCI at about 2:30 p.m. and were run against the AFIS 
database, resulting in a match with fingerprints on file at the BCI. As a result, the identity of 
the individual was provided to the BCI agent assisting in the investigation by approximately 
4 p.m. that day and resulted in the successful arrest of the individual suspected of bank 
robbery. 

• April 7, 1998 - Latent fingerprints developed at a burglary crime scene were submitted to the 
BCI for a "cold" search. The latent prints were run against the AFIS database and resulted in 
a match with fingerprints on file at the BCI. Identification of the individual was provided to 
the Fargo Police Department, and the individual was arrested. 

■ The AFIS system has also been used to obtain positive identifications of individuals who 
have been arrested and either gave someone else's name or refused to identify themselves. 

Within the next year, the Bureau of Criminal Investigation will connect five major jails in North 
Dakota and the North Dakota State Penitentiary with livescan capabilities. This will allow the 
jails to automatically transmit fingerprints to the AFIS system. This technology will assist law 
enforcement by providing an electronic means to capture fingerprint images and allowing local 
agencies to make identification of arrested subjects through the livescan unit. 
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Criminal History Records 
In 1987 new criminal history record statutes which spelled out the offenses that were to be 
included as part of individuals' criminal hi story records were passed. Those statutes also 
outlined the responsibilities of law enforcement agencies, prosecutors, courts, and correctional 
facilities in providing the information that goes into those records . In the ensuing years, the 
amount of information that makes up criminal history records has increased substantiall y. 

Fingerprint cards, which are the national standard for positive identification of arrested persons, 
are the documents which begin the creation of criminal history records. An effective system 
requires that we process these cards as quickly as they come into our office. We must also add 
the disposition data that is subsequently passed along from the prosecuting attorneys as quickly 
as it is received. This way we can produce a product upon which all North Dakotans can rely . 
For example, criminal background checks are required for foster care facilities. If the system is 
not current when a check is made on a foster care worker, crucial information could possibly be 
missing. This example applies equally to checks that are done for day care services, teachers, or 
any of the other purposes for which the people of North Dakota request background checks. 

The volume of fingerprint cards received by the BCI has increased approximately 300 percent 
from 1987 to 1998. We now receive approximately 15 ,000 criminal history record submissions 
each year. Despite the 300 percent increase in the workload. the number of identification 
technicians has remained the same. 

Likewise although non-criminal justice record requests have increased from 150 in 1987, to 
6,280 in 1998, there has been no increase in the staff to handle those requests. By statute, the 
state receives a $20 fee for each of these checks, this money goes to the state general fund. 

The identification technician position that is included in the Executive Recommendation of our 
budget is intended to deal with the increased workload that has resulted from the quantity of 
fingerprint cards coming into the BCI. However, that position will only help to address the 
workload added prior to this legislative session. 

There are several bills being considered in this legislative session that would further increase the 
workload in the criminal records area. These bills requiring criminal record checks have been 
introduced and passed their house of origin: SB 2171- all foster and adoptive parents; SB 2058 -
non-profit organizations providing charitable services to youth; HB 1081 - private security 
personnel; and HB 1428 - farmers who plan to grow industrial hemp. We have prepared fiscal 
notes for each of these bills however, although each has passed the house of origin, no additional 
funding or staff have been included in the bills or in our appropriation . 

4 



• 

• 

• 

The following chart identifies the bills and the amount of funding and number of FTEs needed to 
do the additional work created by these bill s: ~ 

BILL IMPACT SUMMARY 

Bureau of Criminal Investi2:ation - Criminal Historv Records 

Bill# What it Does FTE Cost 
Required 1999-2001 

1081 Private Security Background 1 /4 FTE - Identification $ 29,224 
Checks Technician 

1274 Provisional Licensing of None 0 
Teachers 

1428* Industrial Hemp - Criminal l/8 FTE - Identification 14,612 
Background Checks Technician 

2058 Background Checks for 1/4 FTE - Identification 29,224 
Charitable Organizations (and Technician 
Reduction of Fee) 

2171 Background Checks for I FTE - Identification I 16,896 
Adoption and Fostercare Parents Technician 

* Additional fiscal impact for this bill is discussed with the Industrial Hemp info rmation below. 

It should be noted that the BCI intended to request one FTE for an Identification Technician to 
handle the work required as a result of the above antic ipated bills. The fiscal note written for SB 
2171 was written this way and was to be cross-referenced to all other bills requiring additional 
duties of the Identification Technician staff at BCI. However, the Legislative Council 
subsequently advised that additional fiscal notes be written for fractions of the FTE required to 
address the increased Identification Technician work identified in each bill. In effect, one 
additional identification technician is required in order to provide the combined services required 
by SB 2171, SB 2058, HB 1081 , and HB 1428. 

Industrial Hemp 

House Bill 1428 allows fo r planting, manufacturing, possessing, selling, and buying of industrial 
hemp, or cannabis sativa, which has a tetrahydracannibol (THC) content of no more than 
three-tenths of one percent. At this time, federal law does not allow for the production of 
industrial hemp; however, HCR 3038 is being considered which will urge the federal 
government to allow for production of industrial hemp nationwide . Because this could occur at 
any time, now or in the next biennium, we feel it is imperative that resources be made available 
to address the additional law enforcement issues involv ing the production of industrial hemp in 
North Dakota. 

At the present time, cannabis in any form is illegal to manufacture, possess, or distribute in North 
Dakota. During the course of an investigation or arrest, law enforcement officers field test 
suspected substances to determine identity, with foll ow-up analysis performed by the state 
laboratory to confirm the field results . The fact that the substance is determined to be cannabis 
all that is required to know that the substance is illegal. No further investigation, testing, or 
analysis is required to establish this fact. If farmers are allowed to grow industrial hemp, the task 
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of verifying that the crop is below the three-tenths THC content will be this agency·s 
responsibility because we are required by state law to enforce the Controlled Substances Act. 

On the illegal side. defendants will quickly learn to claim that any illegal marijuana they 
manufacture. sell, or possess qualifies as industrial hemp because it has a THC content of less 
than three-tenths of one percent, and law enforcement will bear the responsibility to prove 
otherwise. It will be necessary to broaden the scope of investigations to include quantitative 
analysis of all marijuana cannabis samples to prove that the marijuana has more than the 
three-tenths of one-percent THC. Without additional resources, prosecution will be delayed 
because investigations and analysis will not be completed in a timely manner. 

A number of law enforcement activities will be necessary to ensure that the problems associated 
with industrial hemp do not outweigh the benefits to our citizens. A fiscal note has been 
prepared to provide for two special agents and a portion of an identification technician position 
to be assigned to the North Dakota Bureau of Criminal Investigation. The agents will be 
assigned to eastern and western North Dakota in order to 1) collect samples in the industrial 
hemp fields at least three times per year and provide a detailed analysis of those samples, and 2) 
investigate suspected illegal activities when samples are higher than the three-tenths of one 
percent. This could include seizing equipment and additional court time for prosecution. An 
identification technician will be necessary to performing state criminal history record checks and 
the national FBI check for individuals seeking a license to grow industrial hemp. The duties of this 
position would be combined with the one new position requested in fiscal notes prepared to address 
the anticipated increased workload resulting from pending legislation . 

The following chart identifies the amount of funding and number of FTEs needed to do the 
additional work created by this bill. 

BILL IMPACT SUMMARY 

Bureau of Criminal Investigation - Narcotics Section 

Bill# What it Does FTE Cost 
Required 1999-2001 

1428* Industrial Hemp - Enforcement 2 FTE - Special Agents 267,868 
Issues 

* Additional fiscal impact for this bill is discussed with the Criminal History Records 
information above. 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDT A) 

North Dakota has a growing and serious problem with methamphetamine. It is quickly 
becoming a hard drug of choice in North Dakota. Before 1990, methamphetamine was virtually 
non-existent; however, incidents of usage, distribution, and manufacture of methamphetamine 
are of great concern today. North Dakota officials have taken a strong stand against dangerous 
drugs. Local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies are deeply committed to the 
elimination of methamphetamine and other dangerous drugs from the plains of North Dakota. 

North Dakota's rural nature invokes several misconceptions, including the idea that we are 
insulated from the problems encountered by more urban states. Too often we assume that drug 
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activity and availability. as well as violent crime, are non-existent here . It is imperative that we 
look beyo nd this misconception and recognize that the explosion of methamphetamine-related 
activity is a very real threat to our state. 

The North Dakota Bureau of Criminal Investigation reported no methamphetamine cases in 
1993. Since then the caseload has grown from 15 in 1994 to 77 in 1997. BCI has investigated 
70 methamphetamine cases through November 1998. Information provided from the task forces 
and DEA indicated 48 methamphetamine cases in I 996 and 104 in 1997. with 46 reported cases 
through March 1998. Ten methamphetamine labs have been seized in North Dakota in the past 
41 months. Prior to that, only one lab was seized in North Dakota, and that was in 1987. In 
1992, 691 drug samples were submitted to the lab for analysis, of which 14 were suspected 
methamphetamine samples. This number has grown to 1,629 samples in I 997, with 450 of those 
being methamphetamine samples. In addition, methamphetamine cases have grown from 6 
percent of the total drug cases in the U.S. Attorney's Office in 1993 to 3 1 percent of total drug 
cases in 1997, and 75 percent of the total drug cases through March 1998. 

Our state now has an opportunity to take an even stronger stand against methamphetamine by 
becoming associated with the existing Midwest High lntensity Drug Trafficking Area. The 
Executive Committee of the Midwest HIDT A and the Office of National Drug Control Policy in 
Washington, DC, have recognized that the growing meth problem reaches well into North 
Dakota and have recently approved our inclusion in the Midwest HIDT A. This will result in 
over $609,000 in federal funds flowing into North Dakota for fiscal year 1999. 

In December 1996, counties in the states of Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and South Dakota 
were designated as the Midwest HIDTA by the Office of National Drug Control Policy, the 
Executive Office of the President of the United States. These areas were considered to be the 
Midwest hotspots for methamphetamine importation, distribution, and clandestine manufacturing 
of methamphetamine. In the last several years, this region, including North Dakota, has 
experienced a phenomenal increase in importation, distribution, and clandestine manufacturing 
of methamphetamine. The central location, numerous interstate highway systems, international 
border, and air and rail hubs enhance the region's popularity as a market for Mexican 
methamphetamine importation, and distribution from organizations operating out of the 
southwest border areas. In addition, several of these states are seeing an explosion in the 
clandestine manufacturing of methamphetamine by small users and dealers primarily utilizing 
ephedrine or pseudoephedrine reduction processes. 

Recently, a joint letter from the Governor, the Attorney General, and the U.S. Attorney requested 
the designation of eight counties in North Dakota as high intensity drug trafficking areas. These 
counties are Richland, Cass, Grand Forks. Walsh, Ramsey, Ward, Morton. and Burleigh. Direct 
funding for fiscal year 1999 is expected to be approximately $609,000. The Executive 
Recommendation includes $2,745,933 funding and 12 FTEs. Because the amount we expect to 
receive has been reduced to $609,000 for fiscal year 1999, we have included amendments 
removing $1,141 ,758 in Federal Funds and 4 FTEs. However. with the potential for an increased 
funding level of approximately $800,000 to $1,000,000 in fiscal year 2000, we want to retain 
some flexibility to accept additional federal funding and employ additional FTEs. 
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Initiatives to be funded in fiscal year 1999 include: 

• Investigation: 

• 

• 

• 

One NDBCI special agent will augment the DEA Task Force in Fargo, North Dakota, and 
will serve as the focal point of the HIDT A activities in southeast North Dakota. Efforts 
will focus on cases that originate in or that are connected to methamphetamine activities 
in Cass and Richland Counties. 

One NDBCI special agent will augment the Grand Forks County Task Force and will 
serve as the focal point of the HIDT A activity in northeast North Dakota. Efforts will 
focus on cases that originate in or that are connected to the methamphetamine activity in 
Grand Forks, Walsh, and Ramsey counties. 

One NDBCI special agent will co-locate in Bismarck, with two DEA agents recently 
assigned to western North Dakota, and will serve as the focal point of the HIDT A activity 
in central and western North Dakota. Efforts will focus on cases that originate in or that 
are connected to methamphetamine activity in Burleigh, Morton, and Ward counties. 

• A field supervisor, who will be responsible for the day-to-day management and operation 
of this project, will be located in Bismarck and will be responsible for coordination of 
HIDT A efforts in North Dakota. 

• Forensic Analysis: 

• Two forensic scientists will be provided to the North Dakota State Laboratory in 
Bismarck to enhance its ability to reduce the evidence backlog, respond to requests for 
evidence analysis and operational support, and ultimately enhance the efforts of law 
enforcement and prosecutors with timely expert support. The funding authority for the 
lab is included in our budget; however, the FTEs are not. 

• Prosecution: 

• One Special Assistant Attorney General will be hired to respond to the greatly increased 
caseload that has resulted because of intensified efforts by law enforcement. This 
individual will help provide a coordinated local, state, and federal prosecution effort 
aimed at choosing the most efficient and appropriate forum for prosecution of 
methamphetamine-related cases. 

This federal funding requires no state or local matching dollars. It will be used to leverage 
resources for investigations, prosecutions, and forensic analysts. As a result of North Dakota's 
participation in this program we will also have access to regional demand reduction resources, 
and improved intelligence sharing and case management between the Midwest HIDT A and its 
member states. 

We feel the HIDTA funding is extremely important to continuing the fight against dangerous 
drugs North Dakota. The Senate version of our budget includes the HIDTA funding, and we ask 
that you maintain this funding in our budget. 
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Officer Safety 

The Senate version of our budget included $18,900 in funding for bulletproof vests. The vests 
currently issued to agents of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation exceed their recommended 
life, and the manufacturer will not guarantee that the vests will be effective in protecting agents 
from serious harm or death if fired upon. We feel it is imperative to maintain this funding to 
ensure officer safety and address potential liability of the state . 
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ST A TEMENT OF CHER THOMAS, DIRECTOR 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DlVISION 

Information Technology plays a critical role in the success of the Office of Attorney General. 
Because of its importance the Information Technology Division became a new division this past 
biennium. 

From initial investigation to final appeal in the Supreme Court, computers have revolutionized 
the legal arena. Computers can be used to track criminals, to sort information for trial and to 
help organize documents. For example in a recent a trust case our computers and ability to use 
them proved instrumental in helping us to organize the thousands and thousands of pages of 
documents, including bank records. That case involved hours of depositions and seven weeks of 
trial spread over several months. Using the computer's to organize and store the information 
from the discovery, the depositions, and the trial , allowed us to be prepared, to save the Court's 
time and helped us win the case Aside from prevailing, we also impressed the Judge with our 
ability to keep on top of the information and make our point quickly. We are currently 
requesting $100,000 in costs and attorney's fees in that case and we believe there is a good 
likelihood the Court will award them to us . But the most important thing the computers allowed 
us to do was to save hundreds of thousands of dollars for North Dakota consumers. 

Computers also figured in the tobacco settlement. Our computer timekeeping system allowed us 
to track the time our legal staff put into the tobacco settlement. As a result we can document 
hundreds of thousands of dollars in legal expenses for reimbursement. Unfortunately, our 
current system still requires us to run queries that are time consuming and are not 100% accurate. 
Updates to this system are long overdue and would go a long way to making the timekeeping 
process more functional , not only for our staff, but also for our client agencies. 

We are also able to recover our expenses from the tobacco companies. The new accounting 
system in our strategic plan would have saved hours and hours of accounting staff time. 
Unfortunately we have not been able to implement that system because we do not have enough 
computer staff to do so. So that program waits on a long list to be implemented. As a result our 
accounting staff had to compile the numbers for expense reimbursement manually in the tobacco 
settlement manually and they are still in the process of doing so. 

Our computers also have the capability to revolutionize the criminal investigation process. 
Picture a world where, using computers, we can track the progress of a kidnapper from one state 
to the next by following the criminal's use of the victim's credit card. That very situation 
happened only a short time ago. Because of computers we were able to bring the kidnappers to 
justice. 

Now, our office has the opportunity to have a system that will simultaneously search six different 
databases for information about a suspect. That program is called the National Criminal History 
Records Improvement Program. This system will allow law enforcement to search for social 
security number, date of birth, and/or name on the criminal history system, the sex offender 
registration, parole/probation information, warrants, restraining orders, and concealed weapons 
and find all the systems where there is a matches to the search criteria. On the old system, the 
requestor had to search each system individually. You can see how much time can be saved if an 
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agent only has to enter data once and the computer searches six systems and tells the agent there 
is information in only two of the systems . 

Our office also has the opportunity to join with other law enforcement agencies and tap into the 
information they have . An example is the AFIS program Jerry spoke about. That program relies 
heavily upon the ability of our computer staff to keep it up and running. This program also 
provides the means to use live scan machines to submit fingerprint information to BCI for a 
search of the AFIS database, and to return information back to the local agency. The program 
also provides for the automatic transmission of fingerprint cards into the criminal history system 
from the local law enforcement agencies that have LiveScan or CardScan Units. But this is not a 
system we can build and forget. It will require maintenance, and upgrading. To do that we 
require computer staff. 

Keeping the staff we have is very important because the best computer staff to maintain a project 
is the computer staff that built it. Keeping our staff is also important because of the diversity of 
programs we have in the Office ofAttorney General. 

We have staff who sue people, staff who arrest people, staff who get consumers back their 
money and staff who help local fire departments solve arsons and train firefighters and police 
officers. With the broad responsibilities of our office. our computer support staff must have a 
broad understanding of many subject areas and must be able to support the multiple applications 
used by the all the different users we have. In the past we have not had the staff to adequately 
maintain our systems. As a result many of our systems have deteriorated beyond repair or do not 
operate as well as they should. In part, because of these issues we welcomed the opportunity the 
Legislature gave us to have a thorough strategic planning effort . 

During the past year we spent considerable time and internal resources to develop our strategic 
plan. Having the plan is one thing, but implementing it is quite another. We cannot implement 
our plan and maintain our systems without staff adequate staff and software and hardware. If we 
cannot implement our plan our problems will only grow and we will be at a competitive 
disadvantage with criminals and in court. 

In our plan we addressed security, Y2K and disaster recovery components. We are grateful that 
the Executive Recommendation included funding for those components and that the Senate 
recognized the need to maintain our current staff level and provided funding for those positions. 

Information Technology Staff Funding 

In our strategic plan we identified the hardware, software and personnel needed to support 
existing systems. and new projects. Complete implementation of the strategic plan requires 9.52 
FTEs. We know that an increase in FTEs for new programs is unlikely . However maintaining 
our current staff is an important priority. If we lose these staff positions we will not be able to 
maintain our current staff, our system will continue to deteriorate, and we will move backwards. 

In the past federal funds have been available for such projects as the rewrite of the Criminal 
History system under the National Criminal Records Improvement Program (NCHIP). Like 
many federal programs, this program does not fund ongoing IT positions past the initial project 
implementation. Yet as I discussed above, the project will make law enforcement more effective 
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and efficient. The new system has connected many systems and allows the sharing of 
information where information could not be shared before . 

This federal grant also provided the live scan machines that allows submiss ion or fingerprint 
information directly to BCI so that a search of the AFIS system can be done. What is discovered 
can be sent back. over the computer lines, to the local law enforcement agency. This grant also 
allows for direct in put of fingerprint cards in to the criminal history system from local law 
enforcement agencies. These systems will only be operational because our computer staff 
created programs and built and will maintain a secure network for the transfer of this 
information. 

The executive budget funded 3.75 of our current FTEs with federal funds dedicated to specific 
federal projects. The Senate recognized that the federal funds could not be used for these 
positions and instead funded them with $250,600 income from non-criminal background checks. 

The Senate also recognized that we would realize a cost savings by employing the staff in our 
office rather than obtaining those services through ISO or private contract services. The chart 
below illustrates the cost differential. 

Information Services Personnel Costs 

Type AG Employees **ISO Services ***Contract Services 

Network person - ¾ $112,320 $112,320 

Network person - 1 $149 ,760 $149,760 

Programmer - 1 $149,760 $266 ,240 

Analyst- 1 $161,408 $332 ,800 

$379,019 *$573,248 *$861 ,120 

*These amounts were calculated using 80% of 4,160 hours, which is a biennium total hours. 
We did not use 100% because neither ISO nor Contract Services would not include annual 
leave, sick leave, etc. and administrative tasks such as reading mail, timesheets , etc. 
**Network person and programmer rate - ISO is $45/hr analyst is $48.50/hr (Attorney's rate is 
$45.50 now.) 
***Network person - contract is $45/hr programmer is $80/hr analyst is $100/hr 

Remote Networking 

The seven computer staff we have support an extensive system. Over time, our network has 
become more complicated and far-reaching . The BCI and Fire Marshal divisions have l O remote 
sites - in Williston, Minot, Jamestown, Grand Forks, Grafton, Fargo, Wapheton , Devils Lake, 
Dickinson and Stanton. Those sites not only have computers and printers that must be 
maintained and serviced, they also must be connected to our office in Bismarck. One goal in our 
strategic plan is use the Web use for sharing information. This requires more security and more 
planning. 

Connections to all our offices is becoming more and more critical as we strive to get information 
to our agents in a more timely and effective manner. Bringing the new criminal history system 
online, and transferring information from the live scan units directly into the criminal history 
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system are just two functions that we will be able to perform once these offices are connected. 
Remote law enforcement locations will also be able to use AFIS for a search. With connections 
to our Bismarck office, each of these developments will make information available immediately 
to our staff and other law enforcement agencies. 

Securitv Plan and Year 2000 - Disaster Recoverv 

The Executive Recommendation also included some very important components of the strategic 
plan. Those are the provisions for security. Y2K and disaster recover. Aside from the impact on 
our office overall, a critical function of these components is assuring the integrity of the law 
enforcement data on our system. 

Maintaining the security of information and the integrity of our systems is vital. On one hand, we 
cannot contract with and share information with other law enforcement agencies unless we can 
assure them that our data is secure and has not and will not be corrupted. On the other hand, we 
cannot afford to have our system crash in the middle of a large criminal investigation or an 
appellate brief. 

We have a constant battle to assure the integrity of our system and the data on it. Keeping ahead 
of the evolving viruses and hackers can be a full-time job. To test our system recently. a member 
of our staff downloaded some programs off the Internet. He ran these programs against our 
network and was able to determine 75 percent of our user passwords in less than five minutes. 

We must be able to keep unauthorized persons from accessing or destroying the information on 
our systems. And aside from protecting our system and information from danrnge by thi rd 
parties, much of the information in our office is either highly sensitive or confidential. In the 
wrong hands the information we have can place our agents, those they work with and members 
of the public in life-threatening situations. To assure our system and our data is safe, we must 
have a means of providing a high level of security. This means in addition to software, we must 
be able to scan our system for viruses and we must periodically install and maintain improved 
software. We must also develop and enforce policies to assure our system is safe hackers using 
new techniques. 

The Executive Recommendation also includes critical funding to address the Y2K issue. This 
project includes our PC replacement project. This project is crucial to our Agency's ability to 
meet the challenges of the year 2000 readiness issue and to assure that the information we 
provide to law enforcement and the public remains available and intact. 

13 



GENERAL FUND AMOUNTS ADDED TO THE OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL'S BUDGET 
DUE TO GOVERNOR'S POLICY DECISIONS -1999-2001 BIENNIUM BUDGET 

finance & Admjn. AgAdmin II Legal Serv. ~ ~ .G.am.ing B.a.ci.ng Eire Marshal Tutll.l 

Salary increase - state employee 39,821 24,259 25,333 165,145 169,071 21,865 55,001 7,835 23,741 532,071 

increase 

Salary Equity Adjustments 4,512 26,175 30,687 

Health insurance increase 13,356 4,452 6,233 31 ,164 42,767 6,233 13,356 1,781 6,368 125,710 

Fire Marshal funding source change 576,720 576,720 

Governor's Budget Recommendation for areas above 53,177 33,223 31,566 196,309 211,838 28,098 68,357 35,791 606,829 1,265,188 

Restoration of Gaming Enforcement grants 792,278 792,278 

Subtotal 53,177 33,223 31 ,566 196,309 211,838 28,098 860,635 35,791 606,829 2,057,466 

Restore Arrest & Return of Fugitives 30,000 30,000 

Restore portion of Litigation Fees - Water Lawsuit 50,000 50,000 

GF all IT staff - 3. 75 fie ff funding switch 379,019 379,019 

Rent, Office equipment - Information Technology 75,420 75,420 

Software Maintenance 181,330 181 ,330 

Information Services Division required increases (ISO) 169,657 169,657 

Hardware 48,550 48,550 

Remote Networking 71,268 71 ,268 

Agent Physicals 7,250 7,250 

Printing & postage for Offend. Regis.,Crim. Hist.& SAC, 44,381 44,381 

Central Duplicating Increases 
Bullet proof vests 18,900 18,900 

Subtotal 925,244 80,000 70,531 1,075,775 

Total Including Attorney General Requests in Addition to 53,177 33,223 956,810 276,309 282,369 28,098 860,635 35,791 606,829 3,133,241 

the Governor's Recommendation noted above 



Position Class 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
VACANT POSITION LISTING COMPARISON WITH BUDGETED POSITIONS 

As of December 31 , 1998 

No Code Classification 
Requested 
In Budget Reason for vacancy 

General 
Fund 

The position was budgeted using federal and local moneys 
(from States Attorneys). The local money did not materialize, 

1502 9011 Assistant Attorney General Yes thus the position was left vacant. As provided in the Executive 
Recommendation, the position will use a different other funds 
funding source. 
Legal Service billing revenues have been lower than 

1506 9011 Assistant Attorney General Yes anticipated . This position has been left vacant due to the 
revenue shortfall. 
This position has been provided to assist in state Risk 

1509 9011 Assistant Attorney General Yes 
Management legal proceedings. At the current time, the 
present staff members have been able to absorb the current 
workload. 

Grants & Contract Offr II - pending This position was vacated due to the uncertainty of federal 
2110 0422 reclassification to a Domestic Yes funding. Reclassification of the position to a Domestic 

Violence Coordinator Violence Coordinator is in process. 

Position #'s 2217, 2218, 2219, and 2220 relate to the National 
Instant Check System (NICS) which was required as a result 
of the Congressional Brady Act. When we budgeted for these 
federally funded positions, we were unaware that the FBI 
would handle this program if the state agreed (this was a 

2217 9998 Administrat ive Clerk-NI CS Yes recent development, which we utilize in North Dakota). 49,476 
Position #2217, currently federally funded , was funded from 
the General Fund in the Executive Recommendation to 
address the workload explosion in the Criminal History 
(background checks) area. Position #'s 2218, 2219, and 2220 
will be temporarily used for the High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Act (HIDTA), once this office's appropriation bill is finalized. 

2218 9998 
Budgeted pending classification -

Yes 
Administrative Clerk-NICS See explanation for position #2217 - Use for HIDTA 

2219 9998 
Budgeted pending classification -

Yes 
Administrative Clerk-NICS See explanation for position #2217 - Use for HIDTA 

2220 9998 
Budgeted pending classification -

Yes 
Administrative Clerk-NICS See explanation for position #2217 - Use for HIDTA 

2222 0079 Information Processing Specialist Ill Yes This position was filled in February 1999. 

2223 9998 
Budgeted pending classification -

Yes 
Law Enforcement Program To be reclassified as a Criminal Investigator Ill for HIDTA 
Information System Admin. I -

5101 0142 pending reclassification to Yes 

Programmer I This position was filled in January 1999. 

5108 0212 A=unt Technician Yes 
This position has remained vacant pending the Gaming 

52,895 
system rewrite, which is currently in process. 

51 27 0911 Racing - Administrative Officer I Yes Currently being handled through temporary assistance 56,915 

Funding Source 
Federal Other 

Funds Funds 

76,209 29,637 

95,020 

113,873 

76,744 

49,476 

49,476 

49,476 

80,902 

80,902 

113,757 

NOTE: This chart reflects the 2/2% salary increases and the add itional health insurance increase (in addition to the health insurance increase in the Executive Recommendation). 

Total 

105,846 

95,020 

113,873 

76,744 

49,476 

49,476 

49,476 

49,476 

80,902 

80,902 

11 3,757 

52,895 

56,915 



• City of Millot 
Office of the Mayor 

November 17, 1998 

Rod Backman, Di.rector 
Office of Management and Budget 
4th Floor, State Capitol Building 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0400 

Dear Mr. Backman, 

-- -----

I'm writing on behalf of the City of Minot and the Minot Police Department to urge 
consideration be given to re-instating gaming funds to political subdivisions in 1999 and beyond. 
As I understand, serious thought is being given to eliminating the distribution of gaming tax 
revenue back to political subdivisions and instead these revenues would be used to support the 

• budget for the Attorney General. 

• 

In 1999, the City of Minot has budgeted $3,262,451 for law enforcement activities in the City 
of Minot This amount does not include budgeted costs for our court system, the purchase of 
Police equipment, or support activities for the Police Department including data processing and 
other support functions which take place by employees who are not directly budgeted in the 
Police Department. 

Gaming enforcement is not budgeted for separately nor is enforcement of any other criminal 
activities identified separately within our budget system with the exception of some funds for 
a local narcotics task force. Gaming tax revenue is deposited in the General Fund and all law 
enforcement expenditures, which I have identified above, are paid out of the General Fund. In 
1999, general property tax will provide nearly $2.6 million for law enforcement in the City of 
Minot. 

Most of the gaming enforcement is reactive. If the Police Department receives a complaint, it will 
be investigated and if a criminal offense has occurred, the ultimate goal is a successful 
prosecution. In 1998, we anticipate that we will provide up to twenty investigative reports on 
gaming infractions. By investigative reports, I mean that once a complaint is received, it will be 
investigated thoroughly. There are many other calls with questions, comments, and concerns 
which are answered and reports of these items are not initiated . 

-~ The Magic City ~ 

515 2nd Ave. SW• Minot, North Dakota 58701-3739 • (701) 857-4750 • Fax (701) 857-475 l 

mayor@web.ci.minot.nd.us 
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• 

Funds that the City of Minot receives from the gaming tax revenue are not sufficient for our 
enforcement purposes. In 1999, we anticipate about $30,000 in revenue. Gaming violations can 
be a very complex and difficult crime to investigate. Investigators need training in bow to 
recognize and properly investigate gaming violations. We need to concentrate on being more pro
active and not reactive to gaming problems within our community as it should be in all 
communities in Nonh Dakota. A loss of gaming tax revenue to the City of Minot would hinder 
that objective. 

Once again I urge you to continue with the existing formula for distributing gaming tax revenues 
back to political subdivisions. 

If I can provide any additional infonnation or be of any further assistance in this matter, please 
feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

~)vu&4.£ 
J:.o; W. Erickson 
Mayor 

CVIW/tr 

cc: Governor Ed Schafer 
Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp 



CITY OF 

November 20, 1998 

Mr. Greg Schlosser 
Gaming Division-Auditor/Investigator 
Office of Attorney General 
600 East Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0400 

Dear Mr. Schlosser: 

FINANCE OFFICE 
P.O. BOX 2083 

200 3RD STREET NORTH 
FARGO, NORTH DAKOTA 58107-2083 

PHONE: 701-241-1333 
FAX: 701-241-1526 

Attached you will find a detail of "gaming related expenses" for the City of Fargo for the 
calendar year 1998. Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp requested this information per our 
conference call on Friday, November 13, 1998. Please advise if more detailed information 
is necessary. 

The City of Fargo is on a calendar year; therefore, the expenses for December were 
estimated by reviewing current projects and volume of activity from the previous 
calendar year for the month of December. Time studies have been conducted in the past 
which provide information on hours spent in certain areas such as approving and 
processing local permits and site authorizations. 

It should be noted that this schedule of expenses includes activity involving major 
investigations and established programs and processes related to gaming activity. Items 
that do not involve significant expenditures in terms of time or monies are not included. 
Average hourly rates were used to provide salary numbers for police, fire, and building 
inspector employees when a head of department or supervisor rate may have been a 
more accurate rate in some instances. Also, the salaries for all employees are exclusive 
of any fringe benefit factors that are a substantial portion of any compensation package. 

Again, let me know if further information is needed in regards to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

¼vtc '4~-~7~ 
Terri Leier-Sprenger 
Fargo Gaming Auditor 

TLS/lw 

C: Mayor Bruce Furness 

F:\DA TA \AUOI \WP\SPRENGER\gschloss.doc 

~lOV 2 3 1998 
Ch,::; ,:k __ _ ....... ----·- •··· 
Dr,:)f-:· ---·-··-·-------- • 



GAMING RELATED EXPENSES 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 1998 through DECEMBER 31, 1998 

Gambling Auditor 

Consultant Fees: 

Staff Salaries / Gaming Issues Defined 

Accounting Clerks --- Process Local Permits 
Accounting Clerks --- Process Site Authorizations 
Fire Dept. I Police Dept. / Building Inspections: 

Process Certificate of Occupancies 
City Auditor --- Various Issues 
Executive Assistant to City Commission --- Various Issues 
Police Department --- Conduct Investigations 
Police Department --- Conduct Site Inspections 
Accounting Clerks --- Communication with Public/ Attend Training 

Other 

Travel 
Space 
Telephone 
Computer 
Surveillance Equipment/Supplies 
Materials: ( paper/copies/envelopes/postage/etc. ) 

Local Permit Program: 
Site Authorization Program: 
Other: 

TOTAL GAl\flNG EXPENSES 

$46,200 

4,340 
2,700 

4,200 
1,550 
2,015 
9,800 
1,120 
1,125 

2,000 
4,800 

800 
1,500 
1,000 

2,000 
3,000 
1,000 

$89,150 

Rf fl:·-:·J r: ·. 
P,~~ \:1 

l.~·~-~t~ ~-:•~ -'-~--~- . 
1-, . . , . ·'-

_ ... ___ ... 
• t ~; 

___ .,. __ . 



Gl-Q1L99 11:29 FARGO POLICE DEPT 1D=-7912977789 

TOTAL GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANTS RECEIVED BY CITY OF FARGO 
For Calendar Year 1998 

Quarter 

12--31-97 

03-31-98 

09-30-98 

Amount 

S 20,091 

S 22,914 

S 20,806 

S 20,909 

S84,720 

P,95 
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Police Department 
John D. Packett 
Chief of Police 

@ 00 2 

122 South Fifth Strut• P.O. Box 5548 • Grand Forks, ND 58206-5548 Phone: (701) 787-8000 
Fax:(701) 780-8253 

December 7, 1998 

Mr. Rod Backman 
Director 
Office of Management and Budget 
State of North Dakota 
600 East Boulevard Avenue, 4 th Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0400 

Dear Mr. Backman, 

It is our understanding that the budget submitted by the 
Attorney General's Office includes a large reduction in the 
amount of funds returned to the cities from gaming proceeds. It 
is further understood that the remaining funds would be 
distributed in a manner similar to a grant process. 

Presently the City of Grand Forks spends its allocation of 
gaming funds by covering the salary of an investigator in our 
department, and the expenses of the City Clerk's office and City 
Attorney's office incurred in processing of gaming applications. 

A summary of our proposed 1999 program budget is attached. 
you can see, any major reduction in the funds coming back to 
City of Grand Forks would seriously curtail our enforcement 
efforts. This may be even more critical if the legislature 
approves new games of chance this next year. 

As 
the 

The City of Grand Forks would strongly oppose any change in the 
formula by which the cities are reimbursed for gaming regulation 
enforcement. 

(\;~rel~ 
~ -~ackett 

Chief of Police 
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Grand Forks Police Department 
1999 Gaming Budget 

Personnel 
Master Police Officer 
Overtime 
Holiday Pay 
Fringe Benefits @ 25% 

Clothing Allowance 
Investigative Supplies 
Car Expenses 
PC Software 
Portable Radio 
Pager 
Investigative Funds 

Office Space 
Telephone 
Computer 
Dues 

Processing Permits 
Auditors Office Expenses 
City Attorney Review 

Subtotal 

Total 

GF POLICE DEPT 

38000 
500 

1973 
10118 

300 
200 

1000 
100 
500 
50 

400 

10560 
500 

1000 
150 

65351 

4500 
3000 

72851 

[4]003 



• 
Heidi Heitkamp 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
STATE CAPITOL 

600 E BOULEVARD AVE 
BISMARCK ND 58505-0040 

(701) 328-2210 FAX (701) 328-2226 

MEMO 

JAN 14 1999 

Check------
Oraft-------
Cash ____ M.O. -

Police Chiefs and County Sheriffs ~~~ ~ \ fl 
City and County Auditors V4,~ 
Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp 

Status on Local Gaming Enforcement Grants - Request for Assistance 

December 29, 1998 

This follows up my September 16, 1998, memorandum to police chiefs and county 
sheriffs (copy enclosed) on local gaming enforcement grants. I want to inform you on 
the status of the proposed reduction of the grants and ask for your valued assistance. 

• As you may recall, for the next biennium the Office of Attorney General had to propose 
major budget reductions. Rather than substantially reduce vital human resources and 
operating expenses that are already strained, I proposed reducing local gaming 
enforcement grants by $792,000, or 78%, of the present amount of $1,014,000. During 
the preliminary budget deliberations, I encouraged the Office of Management and 
Budget to restore the grants. However, the executive budget released by Governor 
Schafer includes the proposed reduction of the grants. 

• 

To enable the Office of Attorney General to prepare for the budget hearings, I am 
asking for your assistance in bNo areas. 

First, when the Office of Attorney General's budget is discussed in appropriation 
committee hearings, would you please provide written or oral testimony in support of 
restoring the $792,000 of local gaming enforcement grants, in the budget. The first 
hearing is scheduled to start at 11 :00 a.m. on January 14, 1999. 

Second, would you please provide the Office of Attorney General with this information 
by January 8, 1999: 

1. Indicate the total amount of local gaming enforcement grants that your 
city or county received in calendar year 1998. List the specific uses on 
how the grants were applied and, for each use, indicate the amount 
applied. Examples of these uses include salaries and fringe benefits , 
administration, training, special equipment, telephone, investigations, 



• 

• 

• 

2. 

site inspections, travel , and supplies. If any grants were not used for 
gaming enforcement, list "non-gaming" and the related amount. 

On the premise that the proposed reduction in grants would not be 
restored, describe the expected negative impact to your city or county. 
Presently, there is no central information system to account for the use 
of the grants by cities and counties. 

Local law enforcement officials must take the primary role of persuading the legislature 
to restore the local gaming enforcement grants. We urge you to take an active role 
with regard to this issue. A substantial amount of grants is at risk of being lost to cities 
and counties. Please plan to provide testimony and lobby your local legislators. 

If the proposed reduction in local gaming enforcement grants is not restored, the Office 
of Attorney General's appropriations bill would set up a grant application process for 
distributing the remaining $222,000 of grants next biennium. 

If you have any questions, please contact me or Chuck Keller of the Gaming Division at 
1-800-326-9240. Thank you. 

# 1 = Gaming funds received : 02-13-98 $80.07 
04-15-98 77.28 
07-16-98 84.46 
10-09-98 72.53 == Total $314.34 

"None gaming"_ no related amount as it is not designated for any special funds 
other than the General Fund as a whole. 

# 2 = Why have a reduction? As you can see what total funds we received from 
gaming tax it isn't a large amount but every little bit helps each small 
Community with the general monthly expenses. 

~~~ 
Sharon Thingvold, City Auditor 

City of Columbus 
PO Box 27 
Columbus, ND 58727 

JAN 14 1999 

Check------

Draft--------
Cash ____ M.O.-



Heidi Heitkamp 
Attorney General 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Dept #125 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0040 

Dear Attorney General: 

January 5, 1999 

The following information is provided as a response to your memo dated December 28, 1998, regarding local 
gaming enforcement grants. During the 1998 calendar year, the City of Bismarck, Police Department, received 

• $50,842.29 in gaming grants. There have been $54,387.10 in expenditures/encumbrances through 
November 30, 1998. 

• 

The City ofBismarck has had an asset/income and liability/expenditure budgets for gaming funds since 1986. 

Attachments A-1 and A-2 are copies of the Department's 1998 gaming budget. You can see that there are 
proposed expenditures for numerous items to include: salaries, overtime, insurance, workers comp, motor 
vehicle repair, office supplies, equipment, uniform purchases, and other related items. Attachments B-1 and 
B-2 are expenditures within each line item through November 30, 1998. It should be noted that there will be 
additional expenditures for the month of December, 1998. 

With respect to the described negative impact with the continued reduction of the gaming tax pay back to local 
jurisdictions, we feel it will again impact the City of Bismarck. Of importance is that the Police Department at 
one point in time had two officers hired and assigned to the Investigations Section to conduct gaming investiga
tions and regulate the gaming industry within our City. In 1998, that was cut back to 1.25 FTEs, with one 
police officer assigned to the Investigations Section as the gaming investigator/officer. This reduction has been 
the direct result of the decreased revenue coming to the City of Bismarck from gaming taxes . 

Deborah K. Ness, Chief of Police 
Phone: 701-223-1212 * FAX: 701-221 -6804 * 700 S. Ninth Street * Bismarck, ND 58504-5899 
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• 

Attachments C-1 and C-2 is a memo from the gaming officer regarding some of the activities that have taken 
place within Bismarck in 1998. 

In conclusion, it seems somewhat astonishing that the State of North Dakota receives in excess of $13 million in 
gaming tax revenues a year and the pay back to local jurisdictions is approximately $500,000 per year. 

If you have any questions or if I can be of any assistance, please feel free to contact me. 

MMH/dot 
Enclosure 
cc: ChiefNess 

Sincerely, 

~ A(~A,~ 

LIEUTE.(~~ON HEINLE 
Investigations Commander 
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Account# 

510-10-010 

510-10-012 

510-20-011 

510-10-041 

511-10-043 

521-60-091 

522-10-116 

522-20-126 

523-80-192 

523-80-193 

536-10-359 

537-10-371 

537-20-382 

539-10-291 

GAMING ENFORCEMENT BUDGET - 1998 

Fund 211-129 

Account Description 

Regular Salaries 

Merit Pay 

Overtime Salaries 

Health Insurance 

Workers Comp 

Motor Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 

Office Supplies 

Expendable Small Equipment 
1 lens 
Miscellaneous 
mounting brackets/cable 
1 computer upgrade 
VHS tapes 
Super VHS tapes 
Pager 
Color Camera 

Uniform Purchase 
clothing allowance(2) 
Miscellaneous 

Employee Small Equipment 
Batteries 
Leather Gear 
Vest 
Miscellaneous 

Electricity 

Supplies/Repairs 

-$ 200. 
300. 

50 . 
100. 
200. 
250. 
100. 
600. 

550. 
100. 

100. 
100. 
475. 
200. 

Service Contract/Small Equipment Repair 
Computer Repair Fee 300. 
Equipment Repair/Calibration -400. 

Telephone Services 
line fees/phone/portable 360 . 

1998 

$42,859. 

1,714. 

2,000. 

5,356. 

462. 

1,000. 

500. 

1,800. 

650. 

875. 

500. 

200. 

700. 

360. 
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Gal"fl_ing Budget 
Page -2-

541-20-529 

541-20-532 

541-40-547 

541-70-601 

566-10-626 

566-10-628 

566-10-633 

566-10-624 

566-10-637 

580-40-560 

580-98-525 

Total: 

Badges/Tags/Public Information 

Gaming Investigation Fund 

Dues/Subscriptions/Books 
NAGRA 
MGIA 
NDPOA 
Law Books 

Laundry 

Training/Conferences 
NAGRA (1 person, 1 mtg) 
NDPOA (2 people, 3 mtgs) 
Midwest Gaming Regulators 
NAA 
Computer Training 
Polygraph Cost Share 
UNLV 
Miscellaneous 

Match for Grant 

Gun Maintenance/Ammunition 

Instructional Material 

In-House Training 

Small Equipment 
Computer 
Car 

Operation Transfer (Pension) 

1,200. 

750. 

500. 
250. 
100. 

50. 
100. 

300. 

5,400. 
- 1,400. 

500. 
800. 
400. 
200. 
500. 

- 1,200 
400. 

500. 

100. 

200. 

200. 

11,300. 
2,300. 
9,000. 

2,172. 

$81,598.00 

A-2 
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37 1 JAN ITORIAL SUPPLIES 
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TOTAL REFAJRS & MAINTENANCE 

539 COMMUNICATIONS 
291 TELEPHONE 

TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS 

4981 

462 
~ 

500 

2300 

875 
1525 

l.29 , 96 .., ( , .. 
374, 95 . 

850,00 
8~i0. 00 

111 ,00 
.t.11 ,00 

3722,40 

411, 00 
411, 00 

l03'i'9,06 

1258, (.,() 

200,00 
2139,00 
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MEMO 

TO: LT. HEINLE 

FROM: DET. STEVE CYSEWSKI 

SUBJECT: 1998 GAMING STATISTICS 

This memo is to provide information on the department ' s gaming enforcement 
activities during the year of 1998. 

1. Site Authorizations Issued 

2. Raffle Permits Issued 

3. Special Temporary Permits Issued 

4. Gaming Employee Work Permits 
Permits Issued 
Permits Denied 
Total Employees On File 

5. Gaming Site Checks 
By Patrol Officers 
By Gaming Officer 

Total 

6. Audits Conducted 

7. Cases Investigated 

8. Dispositions 
Arrests 
Exceptionally Cleared 
Inactive 
Unfounded 
Active 

44 

97 

3 

241 
10 
417 

27 
15 
42 

9 

11 

4 
1 
2 
0 
2 

*NOTE: Two of the above cases investigated during 1998, were 1997 cases that carried 
over to 1998 and involved (5) additional arrests that were made in 1997 . 

9. Total Licensed Gaming Sites 42 

C-1 
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10. Adjusted Gross Proceeds of Bismarck Gaming Sites 
4th Quarter 1997 1st Quarter 1998 2nd Quarter 1998 
$1,348,905 $1,439,241 $1,215,985 

11. Tax to City Of Bismarck 
4th Quarter 1997 1st Quarter 1998 
$12,938 $13,685 

2nd Quarter 1998 
$12,549 

3rd Quarter 1998 
$1,151,020 

3rd Quarter 1998 
$12,536 

In addition to the above formal cases investigated, the gaming division handled (9) other 
information reports or inquires concerning gaming organizations or employees 
informally, without any formal report being filed. 

It should also be noted that one employee background investigation revealed an active 
warrant for the applicant by another jurisdiction. This led to the subject's arrest by the 
the Burleigh County Sheriffs Department. Another employee background investigation 
led to an arrest for an out-of-state jurisdiction, and a third background investigation led to 
the exceptional clearance of a BPD case that had been inactive. 

The gaming officer also attended gaming related training seminars in 1998, and two 
meetings concerning gaming tax paybacks to local jurisdictions . 

Sincerely, 

Det.Steve Cysewski 
Gaming Officer 



TO: ATTORNEY GENERAL HEIDI HEITKAMP 

FROM: ROLETTE COUNTY SHERIFF TONY SIMS 

RE: STATUS ON LOCAL GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANTS 

DATE: JANUARY 05, 1999 

WE RECEIVED APPROXIMATELY $3,000.00 DOLLARS IN THE 
CALENDER YEAR OF 1998, AND THE MONEY WENT TO PURCHASE 2 
VIDEO CAMERAS FOR THE PURPOSE OF INVESTIGATIONS, AND ALSO 
A TV V.C.R FOR THE REPRODUCTION OF THE INVESTIGATIVE 
CAMERAS FOR COURT AND TRAINING PURPOSES. THESE ITEMS ARE 
BEING USED FOR GAMING/DRUG INVESTIGATIONS AT THIS TIME. 

IF THE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE DECIDES NOT TO RESTORE THE 
LOCAL GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANT, THIS WILL BRING OUR 
DEPARTMENT TO A STAND STILL ON GAMING/DRUG INVESTIGATIONS 
BECAUSE WE RELY ON THE GRANT MONEY FOR EXTRA 
PERSONNEL,TRAINING,ALSO WE RELY ON THIS FOR SOME OF OUR 
EQUIPMENT THAT WE PURCHASE,AND FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE 
ITEMS WE NEED FOR THE INVESTIGATIONS OF GAMING/DRUGS. 

AS YOU KNOW OUR COUNTY HAS A VERY HIGH CRIME RATE FOR THE 
SIZE OF THE COUNTY AND THE RESERVATION TAKES UP MOST OF 
THE COUNTY WHICH IS NOT ON THE TAX ROLE AND FOR WHICH WE 
DON'T SEE REVENUE OFF OF, WHICH MEANS THAT OUR COUNTY 
BUDGET GET SQUEEZED TO A POINT WHERE WE DON'T HAVE THE 
FUNDING TO TRAIN PEOPLE IN AREAS SUCH AS GAMING/DRUGS ECT. 
WHICH IF THEY RESTORE THE GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANTS BACK 
TO IT'S ORIGINAL AMOUNT. I BELIEVE THAT OUR DEPARTMENT CAN 
AND WILL BE ABLE TO KEEP THE DRIVE FOR BETTER TRAINED, 
BETTER EQUIPPE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY. 

SHERIFF 
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Darlene Haugen, Auditor 
Mary Ripplinger, Deputy 

January 5, 1999 

EDDY COUNTY 
NORTH DAKOTA 

524 Central Ave. 
New Rockford, ND 58356 
Telephone (701) 947-2434 

FAX (701) 947-2279 

Office of Attorney General 
State Capitol 
600 E Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck North Dakota 58505-0040 

RE: Status on Local Gaming Enforcement Grants 

Total amount received in 1998: 

Feb------------- 30.59 

April 

July 

Oct 

30.66 

53.86 

38.61 

153. 72 

Commissioners: 
Lorraine Allmaras 
Jerry Fleming 
Dick Turcotte 

The monies received were put in the General Fund and used for site inspections. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Eddy County Auditor 
524 Central Avenue 
New Rockford ND 58356-1698 



GATEWAY TO INTERNATIONAL PEACE GARDEN 

J a.nua.Jty 6 , 1 9 9 9 

OnniQe on the Wonney GeneJta.l 
Sta.te Ca.pao.t 
600 E. Blvd. Ave. 
B,v.,ma.JtQR, NV 58505-0040 

VeM M6. HedRa.mp: 

Th,v., lett~ ,v., in nen~enQe to you.n Memona.ndu.m da.ted VeQemb~ 29, 7 998. 

The Cay oo VuMeith ,v., deoinde.ty in oa.von on nv.,to~ng the $792,000 
on .toQa..t ga.ming money into the Budget. 

Fon the 1998 Ca.lend~ YeM, the Cily on VuMeith JteQUVed $87 6. 99 
in Ga.ming Money. To da.te, we ha.ve pu.JtQhCl6ed a. BJtoth~ Wand PMQe/2.6on, 
Mandan a.nd P~nt~, a.long with two OnoiQe ChaiM. 

The Cay on VuMeith hcu.i a. v~y Umiled Budget, .60 we ne.ty hea.vily 
on the Ga.ming Muney to pu.JtQhCl6e the neQe/2.6a.Jty equipment needed 
by Ou.Jt La.w EnnonQement AgenQy. 

Tha.nR you .60 muQh oon you.Jt time a.nd ennoJtt in tJtying to JtV.,tone 
the muQh needed Ga.ming Money ba.QR into the Budget. 

i~:±lau0t~ 
Cay On VuM wh 
Cily Auddon 
PO Box. 580 
VuMeith, NV 58 329 
701-244-5596 



January 6, 1998 

Office of Attorney General 
State Capitol 
600 E Blvd Ave 
Bismarck ND 58505-0040 

RE: Local Gaming Enforcement Grant Status 

RICHLAND COUNTY, ND 
Administration Office 

418 SECOND AVE N 
WAHPETON ND 58075 

1.701.642.7700 
Fax: 1.701.642. 7701 

This letter is written in response to your letter dated December 29, 1998. 

Richland County received $607.24 of local gaming grants for the 1998 calendar year. This 
reimbursement was used for continuing education/training of Law Enforcement officials. 

As Richland County does not receive substantial revenue from this reimbursement, the impact 
would be minimal at this time. 

Gaming enforcement grants are essential to cities and counties to generate the necessary revenue 
to enforce the gaming. 

~~~ 
Richland County Director of Finance 

KH:ks 

pc: Richland County Sheriff 



Jells eP11nt11 Sltcriff 's :tJcparflllcnt 
Box 306 • Courthouse 

Fessenden, North Dakota 58438 
Phone 701-547-3211 Fax 701-547-3719 

e11rtis Pd/di 
Sheriff 
4770 

January 6, 1999 

!ef/rq; l(odtridt 
Deputy 

4771 

Heidi Heitkamp, Attorney General 
Office of Attorney General 
600 E Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck ND 58505-0040 

Dear Attorney General Heitkamp: 

WELLS COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

/ 
' ~"-=~~J 

:· ~~~:li=t:==F-==l~~~~ 

In response to your letter dated December 29, 1998, I would like to inform you that Wells 
County received $286.79 in local gaming enforcement grants for the calendar year 1998. 

These monies are spent in Wells County entirely on communications equipment (tele
phone, radio, and tower controls). Wells County Sheriffs Department is staffed by a 
sheriff and one deputy. We rely on constant communications to cover all comers of our 
county. Although the amount of money we received in 1998 is less than in previous 
years, we rely on it to enhance our communications budget. I would not like to see the 
reduction or elimination of these grants. 

Curtis D. Pellett 
Sheriff 
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City of Cooperstown 
P.O. Box 712 

611 9th Street N.E. 
Cooperstown, NO 58425 

January 7, 1999 

Phone: 701-797-3613 - Fax: 701-797-3628 
e-mail: cooperch@mlgc.com 

Office of the Attorney General 
State Capitol 
600 E. Blvd. Ave. 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040 

RE: Gaming enforcement grants 

The City of Cooperstown city council and Police Chief Al Howard discussed the gaming 
enforcement grants at their January meeting. It was the consensus of the council and the 
Cooperstown Police Chief that a letter should be written to the Attorney General's office 
in support of restoring the $792,000 of local gaming enforcement grants in the budget. In 
1998, Cooperstown received $1,202.90 in gaming returns. This money is used in the 
Cooperstown Police Department budget to help with police radios and repairs and 
training costs. Small cities are facing many challenges and the dollars we receive from 
the gaming grants are needed and well used to provide enhanced services within the 
Cooperstown community. 

Sincerely, 
City of Cooperstown 
Cooperstown Police Department 

~ 
Diane Cowdrey 
City Auditor 

PAGE 02 
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Fargo Police Department 
222 4th Street Nonh, P.O. BOX 150 
Fargo, North Dakota 58107 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 

J\ TTORNEY GENERAL HEIDI HEITKAMP 

CHIEF RONALD R. RAFT.EVOLD ~ 

JANUARY 7, 1999 

STATUS ON LOCAL GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANTS -
REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE 

I will hand carry and introduce written testimony from City of Fargo Mayor Bruce 
Furness, in support of restoring the $792,000 of local gaming enforcement grants at the 
first hearing at 11 :00 AM on January 14, 1999. 

Please refer to the attached three pages for the information you requested in item # 1 . 

Response to item #2. Should this funding not be restored, the City of Fargo will he 
forced to consider the elimination of the full-time position we have used to provide the 
review, permitting, and investigation of gaming siles in our City. Without this cnntrol, 
we firmly believe we are susceptible to an increased criminal element in our City , and to 
increased crime in the form of theft, graft, and drug usage. If this position were 
eliminated, we would refer all investigations and review functions to the State of North 
Dakota, Office of Attorney General Gaming Division. In addition, we would be forced to 
seek legislation to allow the increase of local permit fees and site fees. placing an 
additional burden on charitable organizations. 

RRR/pgg 
attachment 

TO Rfil"ORT A CRIME 
PHONE (701) 235-4493 

DEPARTMENT FAX 
(701) 241-!!272 

ADMINISTRATION 
PHONE (701) 241-1427 

FAX (701) 297-7789 

INVESTIGATIONS 
PHONE (701) 241-1405 

FAX (701) 241-1407 



Mr. Greg Schlosser, Gaming Auditor 
Office of the Attorney General 
State Capital Building 
600 E. Blvd. 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Box 261 
Carrington, 
North Dakota 58421 
1/7/99 

RE: Local Gaming Enforcement Grants 

Dear Mr. Schlosser: 

In the next biennium, the office of attorney general has 
proposed a major budget reduction by reducing local gaming 
enforcement grants by $792,000.00, or 78% of the present 
amount of $1,014,000.00. 

Carrington received $3,200.00 this past year and a like amount 
from the program going back to 1983. Carrington has used the 
program funds to purchase a new patrol vehicle for the police 
department every two or three years. 

Carringtons local gaming revenue over the past 5 years has 
steadily declined from a high of $5,271.40 in 1995, to a low 
of $3,226.05 in 1998. This local reduction has a direct 
correlation to the development of casinos on native American 
lands. This in its self has impacted us at the local level. 
Now to reduce local gaming enforcement grants, would directly 
and proportionally impact the police departments ability to 
budget on a 2-3 year rotation basis, their patrol car which 
is a vital component in Carringtons law enforcement program. 

I am asking for the appropriations committee to support re
storing the $792,000.00 of local gaming enforcement grants in 
the budget. 

Should you require additional information, I can be contacted 
at 701-652-3117. 

Si 

A n Metz 
Mayor of C 

AM/cm 

cc: Senator Nething 
Senator Wanzek 
Representative Fairfield 
Representative Pollert 

RECEIVED 
ATTY. GENERAL'S LICENSING DEPT. 

JAN O 8 1999 
Chea ______ _ 

Dfatt _______ _ 

~MLO. __ _ 



CITY OF FINLEY 
FINLEY, NORTH DAKOTA 58230 

Dffice of 

City Auditor 

TO: North Dakota Attorr.ey General 

F.ROH: Finley City ALditor 

RE: St a te Gaming Tax 

DA.TE : J anuary 7, 1999 

In 199e we received $209 .26 gar1ir.g money from the state. 
We do have contr a ct policing with Steele Cour.ty, for the 
City of Finley. That amolmt we receive is used for the contract 
policing. 

Sincerely , 

~~4------
.?.ry rone Hauge, Auditor 

"Buy North Dakota Products" 



City of Dunn Center 
P.O. Box 38 

Dunn Center, ND 58626-0038 

Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp 
State Capitol 
600 E. Boulevard Ave 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040 

Dear Attorney General Heitkamp: 

January 8, 1999 

In response to your memo of December 29, 1998 regarding the Status of Local 
Gaming Enforcement Grants - Request for Assistance, the City of Dunn Center would 
like to inform you that we no longer have a City Police Department and currently fall 
under the jurisdiction of our County Sheriffs Department. 

We receive (on the average) about $300.00 per year. During 1998, our County 
Sheriffs department down-sized from 2 full-time deputies to 1 full-time deputy and 1 
part-time deputy. This means that we no longer have a deputy that can put a drive 
through Dunn Center on his agenda for the day, or sometimes, even the week. 

Any amount of funding that we would be able to receive, we would forward to 
our local Sheriffs Department. And while $300.00 wouldn't pay for many more hours for 
our local deputies, hopefully we could add a few for random gaming inspections, and 
more visits to our town. 

If we can assist you in any way in this matter, please let us know. 

Sincerely, 

Linda Kittilson 
City Auditor 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

REF: 

205 Sixth Street Southeast 
Jamestown, North Dakota 58401 

Phone 701-252-2414 
FAX 701-252-7087 

MEMO 

JANUARY 8, 1999 

GREG SCHLOSSER, STATE GAMING DIVISION 

LT. JOHN GLETNE, JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARnmm9"";1 

LOCAL GAMING ENFORCEMENT GRANTS 

DAVID DONEGAN 
Chief of Police 

THANK YOU FOR THE INFORMATION ON THE POTENTIAL LOSS TO THE CITY OF 
JAMESTOWN OF THEIR GAMING ENFORCEMENT FUNDS. THE USE OF THESE FUNDS 
HAVE ALLOWED THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT TO MAINTAIN AN ACTIVE ROLL 
BY ENFORCING THE GAMING LAWS WITHIN THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN. THE 
JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT HAS DEVELOPED A POSITIVE RELATIONSHIP WITH 
OUR LOCAL GAMING MANAGERS AND THEIR EMPLOYEES. WE ALSO HAVE DEVELOPED 
CONFIDENCE WITH THE CUSTOMERS OF OUR GAMING SITES BY INSURING THAT EACH 
GAME OF CHANCE THAT THEY PARTICIPATE IN ARE CONDUCTED UNDER THE STATE 
GAMING LAWS. I FEEL THAT HAVING THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES 
WORKING WITH THE LOCAL GAMING PERSONNEL BRINGS AWARENESS AND SUCCESS TO 
A GAMING ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM. I AM CONCERNED THAT THE LOSS OF THESE 
FUNDS WILL DIMINISH THE CONFIDENCE AND RESPECT THAT WE HAVE WORKED SO 
HARD FOR MANY YEARS TO BUILD WITH OUR GAMING SITES AND OUR CITIZENS WHO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE GAMES OF CHANCE AT THESE SITES. 

IF I CAN BE OF ANY FURTHER ASSISTANCE PLEASE FEEL FREE TO CONTACT ME AT 
THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

RECEIVED 
ATTY. GENERAL'S LICENSl~G DEPT. 

JAN 1 2 1999 
Check _______ _ 

Draft ________ _ 

Cash ____ M.O. __ _ 



CI TY OF 

January 11, 1999 

Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp 
Office of the Attorney General 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck ND 58505-0040 

POST OFFICE BOX 1306 
WILLISTON, NORTH DAKOTA 58802-1306 

PHONE (701) 572-8161 
FAX (701) 572-8880 
TDD (800) 366-6888 

(State Relay) 

NORTH DAKOTA 

FAX (701)328-2226 

RE: Proposed Reduction of Local Gaming Enforcement Grants 

Dear Ms. Heitkamp: 

This letter is written in opposition to any reduction of the City of Williston' s share of 
local gaming funds. We received $16,764 in 1998 and used this to help defray the cost 
of policing the local gaming operations. The detective unit of our police department 
estimated that they spent 104 hours directly in gaming enforcement areas, and this 
would exclude the fact that most gaming related activity is also operating in and around 
a liquor consumption environment which requires added enforcement demands. 

The City of Williston believes the best way to have an effect on the citizens of this state 
is letting the local governmental unit handle local matters. We believe these funds are a 
necessary source of funding for us in providing appropriate gaming law enforcement 
services. 

Sincerely, 

E. Ward Koeser 
President 
Board of City Commissioners 

EWK:jk 



The Honorable David Nething 
North Dakota Senate 
State Capitol Building 
600 East Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0400 

Dear Senator Nething: 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
Bruce W. Furness 

January 11, 1999 

I am sorry I am unable to personally be at your hearing but ask that this letter be part of 
the record. I am writing do encourage you and the Senate Appropriations Committee to 
reinstate the funding available to cities and counties for gaming enforcement. While I 
recognize and appreciate the difficulty of making the 5% cuts, this particular reduction 
seems extremely short-sighted. It will create potentially devastating effects in our 
community and society, particularly with our young people. 

This funding is critical to the City of Fargo. We use it to employ a full-time person to 
assure proper auditing and control of the gaming operations located in our City. These 
dollars have continually been decreasing over the years and are now being proposed to 
be eliminated. A more appropriate action would be to actually increase this funding 
level. 

The original idea behind this distribution of dollars back to the cities was to aid in 
controlling the problems associated with the gaming industry. That approach seems 
eminently reasonable. Without this control, we firmly believe we are susceptible to an 
increased criminal element in our City and to increased crime in the form of theft, graft 
and drug usage. 

The person we employ in this position has been extremely helpful in providing the kind 
of control and auditing that is needed. She works closely with police officials to 
investigate and assist in the prosecution of criminal cases. Our City has greatly 
benefited from this type of proactive effort. We have been able to minimize the 
negative impact of gaming on our community. 

200 North 3rd Street• Fargo, ND 58102 • Phone (701) 241-1310 • Fax (701) 241-1526 
bwfurness@ci.fargo.nd.us 



The Honorable David Nething 
Page 2 
January 11, 1999 

I strongly urge the reinstatement of this funding as part of the Governor's Budget as 
presented to the Legislature. If this is not achieved we are faced with the possibility of 
eliminating the control of gaming or of pursuing increases in permit and site fees, 
placing an additional burden on charitable organizations. Thank you for your positive 
consideration of this request. 

BWF:jl 
Ffdnething 

Bruce W. Furness 
Mayor 

cc: Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp 
Gaming Auditor Terri Leier-Sprenger 



Testimony on Senate Bill 2003 

January 14, 1999 

.56~o~ 
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A-Had,mu-f A 

Please accept this written and oral testimony in response to the proposed reduction 

or elimination of gaming enforcement funds from the 1999-2001 budget of Attorney 

General Heidi Heitkamp. This reduction was made by the Attorney General in 

response to a request from Governor Ed Schafer for a 5% redudion in all budgets 

offered to the Legislative Assembly. 

The City and those serving in law enforcement feel it is essential to local government 

that the State continues to pass through gaming funds to those in local communities 

who regulate this industry. 

When gaming was first introduced in North Dakota, it was quite clear monies for 

gaming enforcement was necessary; however it was not clear as to how funding 

would be provided. In 1983, the legislature passed a law, which required a 

percentage of the gaming taxes collected be paid back to local jurisdictions 

for enforcement purposes. The payback was 2/5 of the 5% and 1/10 of the 20% 

gaming tax collected. 

As the State of North Dakota watched the gaming industry grow, we also witnessed 

an alarming decrease in the funding provided for enforcement action. This decrease 



began in 1989 when the legislature passed a bill putting a $170,000.00 cap on the 

quarterly amount paid back to local jurisdictions. In 1993 the total payback amount 

was reduced to $153,000.00 per quarter. The payback was again reduced in 1995 to 

$130,690.00 and in 1997 still another reduction which brought the maximum 

quarterly payback amounts to $126,769.00. Now comes a proposal to reduce the 

remaining gaming enforcement funds by 78% leaving a mere $222,000.00 for gaming 

enforcement for all local cities and counties to operate on for two (2) years. 

The City of Bismarck is requesting these funds be reinstated, so law enforcement may 

continue a proactive stance in guarding against criminal activity in the gaming 

industry. We also agree the State needs to hold cities and counties accountable as to 

how gaming enforcement funds are being expended. It is our recommendation that 

some mechanism be put in place by which municipalities and counties receiving 

gaming funds are required to file a report with the Attorney General's Office 

showing a record of how the gaming payback money was used. 

Since 1986 the City of Bismarck has had a special account set up in the City's 

budgeting structure for the gaming tax payback funds. These payback monies have 

been used to pay the salaries of individuals assigned to gaming enforcement, as well 

as provide equipment, technology, and other related items to support their activities. 



Maintaining a healthy atmosphere in the gaming industry requires a commitment by 

the State to provide funding for gaming enforcement; the assurance from local 

government that allocated dollars will go toward enforcement; and dedication by law 

enforcement to fairly enforce the rules and regulations of the gaming industry. 

If we are truly committed to proactively addressing criminal problems related to the 

gaming industry, the State of North Dakota needs to continue to provide monetary 

support to local jurisdictions charged with enforcing the rules and regulations of this 

very lucrative industry. 

We support Attorney General Heidi Heitkamp's recommendation that all monies 

dedicated as payback funds for local gaming enforcement activities be reinstated. 

We also agree with Attorney General Heitkamp's recommendation that a grant 

process be put in place by which local jurisdictions, receiving gaming payback funds, 

must file a report with the Attorney General's Office accounting for the use of the 

payback funds. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

S:or~ 
Chief of Police 
Bismarck, Police Department 
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DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

REF: 

205 Sixth Street Southeast R F' c l,'11:' ~ ~ . f ;,"" ?i:-~ 
Jamestown, North Dakota 58401 ~ • ,., ~,,.. ~ \\1/ f;~~ ,' } 

Phone701-252-2414 h 't!-" ~ , .. · • ~ - ' ; , _ 

FAX 701-252-7087 ATTY GENEi, /\.L' ,S L! C,:tri ,::: !;~:T 

JAN t 
Check _________ _ 

Draft _______ _ 

Cash _____ M.o. __ _ 
MEMO 

January 26, 1999 

GREG SCHLOSSER, STATE GAMING DIVISION 

LT. JOHN GLETNE, JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARry~ 

GAMING FUND REDUCTION 

DAVID DONEGAN 
Chief of Police 

THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT ALONG WITH THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN IS 
CONCERNED ABOUT THE POTENTIAL REDUCTION IN FUNDS THE CITY RECEIVES TO 
ADDRESS GAMING ISSUES. THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT WORKS CLOSELY 
WITH THE CITIES GAMING ORGANIZATIONS AND THE CITIZENS WHO PARTICIPATE 
IN GAMING WITHIN THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN. THE COST OF ENFORCING THE 
GAMING LAWS AND THE AFFECTS OF GAMING ARE CURRENTLY ADDRESSED BY A 
REASONABLE AND APPROPRIATE FORMULA DEVELOPED BY THE STATE. TO REDUCE 
THESE FUNDS WOULD AFFECT THE CITIES ABILITY TO ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF OUR 
COMMUNITY. 

THE GAMING ISSUES IN OUR CITY WHICH THESE FUNDS ARE USED NOT ONLY 
ENFORCE THE GAMING LAWS BUT ALSO ADDRESS THE SOCIAL WELFARE OF OUR 
COMMUNITY. GAMING HAS FAR REACHING EFFECTS ON THE COMMUNITY THAT 
REQUIRES THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY TO ADDRESS. TO 
EXAMINE THIS ISSUE WE MUST NOT FORGET THE NUMBER OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
INCIDENCES THAT HAVE A COMPONENT OF GAMING ADDICTION OR ABUSE TIED TO 
THESE TYPES OF REPORTS. WE ALSO MUST EXAMINE THE NUMBER OF 
EMBEZZLEMENT, FORGERY, ILLEGAL USE OF CREDIT CARDS AND NON-SUFFICIENT 
FUNDS IN CHECKING ACCOUNTS THAT AFFECT OUR COMMUNITY AND REQUIRE LAW 
ENFORCEMENT INVOLVEMENT . UNFORTUNATELY BURGLARY AND THEFTS ALSO OCCUR 
IN OUR COMMUNITY AND HAVE TIES TO GAMING ADDICTION OR ABUSE. SOME OF 
THESE THEFTS AND BURGLARIES OCCUR AT OUR CITIES GAMING SITES AND MUST 
NOT BE FORGOTTEN WHEN ADDRESSING THE ISSUES OF REDUCING GAMING FUNDS. 
CHILD NEGLECT AS IT RELATES TO GAMING ABUSE HAS ALSO AFFECTED THE LIVES 
OF THE CHILDREN IN OUR COMMUNITY. 

THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN IS ALSO THE HOME OF THE NORTH DAKOTA STATE 
HOSPITAL, JAMES RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER, THE SOUTH CENTRAL REGIONAL 
HUMAN SERVICE CENTER AND THE STUTSMAN COUNTY CORRECTIONAL CENTER WHICH 
HOUSES STATE PENITENTIARY INMATES AND A NEW PROGRAM WHICH WILL HOUSE 
PAROLE VIOLATORS FROM AROUND THE STATE . THESE FACILITIES AND PROGRAMS 
BRING TO OUR CITY INDIVIDUALS AND THEIR FAMILIES WHO ARE EXPERIENCING 



• 
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DIFFICULTIES IN THEIR LIVES . IN MANY CASES GAMING ADDICTION OR ABUSE 
IS A COMPONENT TO THEIR PERSONAL DIFFICULTIES. 

THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN ALONG WITH THE JAMESTOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT IS 
CONCERNED AND OPPOSED TO ANY REDUCTION IN GAMING FUNDS TO THE CITY OF 
JAMESTOWN. WE ARE CONSIDERING BRINGING THIS ISSUE TO THE CITIZENS OF 
JAMESTOWN IN THE HOPE OF GATHERING AWARENESS AND SUPPORT OF THE GAMING 
FUND ISSUE. WE HOPE TO GAIN SUPPORT FROM CITY, COUNTY, AND STATE 
AGENCIES IN OUR COMMUNITY THAT WORK WITH THOSE INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE 
AFFECTED BY GAMING. WE ALSO HOPE TO GAIN SUPPORT FROM PRIVATE 
AGENCIES, THE CHURCH AND SCHOOLS THAT HAVE TO DEAL WITH THE EFFECTS OF 
GAMING IN OUR COMMUNITY. 

PLEASE KEEP ME INFORMED ON THE POSSIBILITY OF REDUCED GAMING FUNDS TO 
THE CITY OF JAMESTOWN SO THAT WE CAN EXPRESS OUR OPPOSITION TO ANY 
REDUCTION IN GAMING FUNDS . 
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Chairman Byerly, Members of this subcommittee: 
(House Appropriation/Government Operations Division) 

My name is Terri Leier-Sprenger and I currently hold the position of Gaming 
Auditor for the City of Fargo. I am representing Fargo on behalf of our Mayor 
Bruce Furness and our Chief of Police , Ron Raftevold. They cannot be here 
today due to prior scheduled commitments. 

Mayor Furness has E-mailed each of you regarding this bill; however, I will 
provide each of you with a copy of his memo at this time. 

The City of Fargo supports the AGO recommendation to reinstate local gaming 
enforcement grants. We would like to see the gaming grant money be reinstated 
to "at least the current level". 

Without this restoration, Fargo will be forced to review (for budget cut purposes) 
all areas of gaming enforcement including "reactive" and "proactive" programs 
currently in place. This will include consideration to eliminate a full-time position, 
which provides oversight in many areas including annual reviews for all licensed 
organizations and assistance to our Police Department for all gaming 
investigations. 

The original idea behind the current distribution of gaming dollars back to cities 
and counties was to aid in the active enforcement of the gaming rules and law. We 
feel the City of Fargo has utilized the gaming dollars received throughout the years 
in a responsible manner through our various programming efforts and the 
information base we have provided to the public. We "can" account for the 
"proper" expenditure of monies received for gaming enforcement purposes and 
have done so when requested by the AGO. 

If these funds are no longer received, we will have no choice but to eliminate the 
majority of the established programs currently in place. In addition, we would be 
farced to refer many investigations and future review functions to the AGO 
Gaming Division . 



• 
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This funding is critical to the City of Fargo. The grant dollars have continually 
been decreasing over the years and are now being proposed to be reduced 
substantially. "All" cities and counties are affected by this bills reduction of 
funds for enforcement efforts and "each" city will have to make difficult 
decisions and choices as to where cuts will be made. We again ask that you 
consider reinstating these funds so each city and county can make an effort to 
enforce the gaming rules and law within their jurisdiction. 

Fargo would also ask that this committee consider reinstating the method of 
allocation of grant monies to cities and counties "if the dollars are reinstated to 
their current level" . The current method which is based on each cities 
quarterly AGP to the total AGP for the state appears fair. At this time, the 
"criteria" (as noted in this bill --- relating to the disbursement of the enforcement 
money on a competitive grant basis) has not yet been defined "or" what impact 
this would have on any specific city or county. To preface, there is no guarantee 
that Fargo or any city for that matter would receive any monies for their 
enforcement efforts . 

Thank you for hearing Fargo' s concerns on Senate bill 2003. If there any 
questions I would be happy to address them with you at this time . 



House Appropriations/Government Operations Division Sub-Committee 
Representative Ben Tollefson 
Representative Robert Huether 

Information Concerning Senate Bill 2003: 

Dear Representatives, 

Currently in the 1997/1998 biennium $1,014,152 is paid back to local jurisdictions for gaming enforcement. 
This is money directly collected from gaming taxes paid to the State by charitable gaming organizations. 
currently this tax amounts to over 13 million dollars per year. Senate Bill 2003 proposes to cut this amount 
paid back for gaming enforcement to only $221,877 for the next two-year biennium. This is a 78% cut in 
money paid back for gaming enforcement, or a cut of $792,275. 

In the attached letter from the Attorney General to local jurisdictions, dated December 29, 1998, she stated 
that her proposal to cut the gaming enforcement grants by $792,000 was in response to major budget 
reductions their office had to propose. The $792,275 that the Attomey General cut from the gaming . 
enforcement grants was the approximately 5% their office needed to cut from their total budget to comply 
with the 5% budget cuts requested by the Governor of all State agencies. We believe the $221,877 left in 
the budget for gaming enforcement grants is just what was left over after the Attorney General's office took 
their 5% cut out of the gaming enforcement grant monies . 

• o way is $221,000 an adequate amount to fund the local jurisdictions currently are active in conducting 
.ing enforcement. During the past two fiscal years, Bismarck alone has received $105,750; and Fargo 

has received $170,277. Both Fargo and Bismarck have had long-standing gaming enforcement programs. 

We also believe the MAJORITY of the money now paid back to local jurisdictions does go to jurisdictions 
who actively investigate gaming cases. and do gaming enforcement. The attached chart shows the local 
jurisdictions that receive $1000 or more per quarter in gaming tax payback. These fourteen cities and 
counties receive 70% of the total gaming enforcement money now paid back to local jurisdictions. All of 
these cities and counties have done gaming enforcement or participated in gaming investigations in the 
past. 

The top four cities receiving gaming tax paybacks for enforcement are Fargo. Grand Forks, Bismarck and 
Minot. All of these cities have gaming enforcement programs in place and all have personnel assigned to do 
gaming investigation and enforcement. These four cities alone receive 45% of the money_ currently paid 
back for enforcement, a total of $465,192 during the last two fiscal years. Clearly, the proposed amount of 
$221,000 is not enough to cover the jurisdictions presently doing gaming investigations and enforcement. 

It should also be pointed out that the latest study by the North American Gaming Regulator's Association 
(NAGRA) shows that North Dakota has the highest per capita spending in the Country on charitable 
gaming. North Dakota also is one of the only states with legalized gambling that has no state enforcement 
division to investigate and regulate gambling activities. The burden for enforcement in our state is on the 
local law enforcement agencies. We do not believe it was ever the intent of the Legislature to allow 
gambling without any enforcement or regulation. Senate Bill 2003 would virtually eliminate the tax money tlected directly from gaming taxes that are now used for enforcement and regulation. 

Pho11e: iOJ-222,6471 -t FAX: i01-222·6d70 t 221 N. Fifth St. * P.O. Box 5503 * Bismard. ND 58506·5503 
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JU:ASO~S FOR 1'.E~ST.A. TtME~T Of L..~ \\' E~FORCEME~T GR.A~TS 

J. Equipment Purchucs - Ascncies ha\'c used \he fw,cl.$ 10 pUTchuc cq\lij:)mcn1 such u SUT'·cillancc 
camc:ns, ,idco record~ \'ideo moni10:-s_ bu.-tlar alarms. c0mmunica1i0ns c:quipment, \'chicles, 
fire.arms. \\•eith scales, computc.-s and sofN·arc:, and adminisirath•c cos-.s. The cquipmc:nl :provides law 
cnfo,uzncnl "·i'lll the tools to cffcc:tivc)y tn,·eni~a1c ~am ins violations. Most jurisdictions h2n very 
limited resources for c:quipmtnl ;purch2.Sr:S and the: lzw cn1'orccmcn1 s;:-ants prO\idc lhc:m with \he 
ncccssa1)' funds. The cquipmcn1 hz.s also been used for other ucz.s of in\'c:S1isation 'll"hich would not 
othCNist be 2\'Zil:ablc. 

2. Trainhig a.id Mcmbmhip- Some: 2gencies hz,·c: 1:sed the: funds 10 send officers 10 saming relaied 
traming and beeomc mc.-nbc:~ in OT£aniutions that arc made up of ,tming in"estisa1ors!rcsulat0rs. 
Trainiri& h2s been ins:ru.-ncnuJ in 2gcncies becoming more: involved znd more: effective: in sa.-ning 
invcstiiations. Mc.-nbcrship in or.g2.niutions such~ ~"DPOA Ca.-ning Comminec 2.nd Mid\l.·cst 
Gaming 1n,•cstita10~ and Rc:gulato:-s his provided \"2lu:abJe information about saming in other arc2.S of 
the .swc and country. These orianiz.ations also provided conacu for information and zssis-.2Dte that 
~•ould :DOt o\hct'lisc be 2,·ai1able. 

3. Local 0a:nins .Per50Mc:l r'crmi:.s - Some 2scncies ha,·c: c:stablished I Joe.al penni1 !)"Slem lhat allo\l.'S 
ihcm to regulate lhc: r-rsons and 0rg2nizations conducting ,a.ming in the jurir.dic:tion. Throu,sh 2 local 
permit ~ess, a lhorou,Sh backp-ound investiiation of iamins pcnonncl is conducted which is 
gencnlly more c-,.-icnsh·c: thzn the: background m"esti~ations ~mple1c:d by me: Gaming Division. 
Criteria have been c:s-.abJishcd lhat z.Jlcws local Jzw crJ'orecmc:nt 10 a;:i;irove, den~•. or revoh "'0:-k 
permits. 

4. Local Gming Pumns - S=e 2gcncies h2,•e used the lzw cnf0rCCD1cnt p-an-:.s 10 c:st2.blisb a :process 
for issumg local i.2mi:l! pemiits for bingo, raffles, znd spcru pools. They dc:1crminc: 1nc: c:ligibiliry of 
.be ~ization :.;,plyi:ig by nicking sure 'lh~y comply with vie: f;2ming administratr\•t rule mid law 
requirc.mena. They also iradc and momtor :ac:th-ey c.ondue1cd under Jor::al pc:nniu 10 mz.ke sure it 
complies ",\iUI boil> their local o;di:>ances 2.t1d m1c: rules z.nd l2"-s. 

S. Gamm& hlvestisations - Local law cn!orccmcnt is relied upozi ic, u,vc:sti1.21e most g1.ming uses 
mvoMzrg criminal violations. The lzw enf orccmcnt gra:.its hzvc been used to CO\'cr ,he com 
255c,ciatcd "o\i'lll lhese investigations such 2.S for b'1)' inoney m coven mvcstiganons, pzyin& for 'bank 
r-ec:ords or copying o?hc: necessary ri:c¢rds, ~ pzying infonntnts. e1c.. Most saming mvr:Stitations 
are compJCJC 2nd time c.onsuming sometimes i:>voMng sc:,·cnl 0ffict11 from more lhau one 
jurisdiction. 

6. Hiring Pmonncl - Some 2!C11Cies hne been able lo hire or rctam cxis".ing officers "'hh the us.c of lhe 
payback ganu. The city 0ffw-go has used a ;:,onion of \he fluids they recch•c to hire 2ll .2tJditcr "'ho 
~duc,s limi1cd scope rc,iC\l'S oflhe licensed _szming 0;,CT2tions c:.ondui:tin,g ~aming in Fargo on tn 
2.nrnnl btsis to ensure co:npliuic.t with SU!te: 2.nd Joe.a) requircmcnu. Withcul 1hc:sc nmds, sc,•cral 
jurisdictions h2,•c: incicaied \hz.t they would be forced 10 eJ;min21c pcshions or rcusicn officers 10 non• 
~~~ -

7. Admmisnth•c Cos-..s- Some 2.gencic:s h2"c: used so.-nc of1hc l2w cnfo:-cc:mcnt gr2nts 10 pay for a 
pr0portiona1c ~arc of office space, Slongc: space, office equipment, "chicle \:.St1 secrc:wfaJ scJ''\'iccs, 
eic. for the gzming enforcement officer. 

OaminJ irJvcsri:ations do not IU\\"2YS result from :n;anc..-s dircC1ly reh:1cd to I sz:ning o;,c:ration. Many 
gaming ases cvoh•ed fi'om other ciminal in,•cni,atfons 5\ltb z.s dnl!S, burglaries, 'lbcfls, embewcmc:nts 
etc. .Agencies havcjus:ified ihc: use of ,he l2w tllforcc:mc:nt grants even tho1,1sh it hz.s been used for ovi~ 
mvcsd_sati\'t pur;,osc:s. 

A-3 

S3I1I8 jQ 3n9~37 ON 9i:0t 566t / 90/P0 



Tolal 
Payback Quartc,r Dlsmarck 

$ t 30,635.35 9/30/96 $12,691.12 
$130,625.80 12/31196 $13,703.69 

$130,000.37 J/31/!)7 $15.316.GG 
St26,73t.53 G/30/97 $13,206.90 
$518,599.05 Sum $54,010.43 

o/. or Total 10.50% 

$ \26,729.43 9/30/!l7 $11,070,20 
$126,714.30 12/31/!>7 $12,937.90 
S 12G,6!l8.02 3/31/!)8 $13,605.31 
$126,732.02 6l30l!)D $12,540.74 
$506,873.85 Sum $50,042.29 

o/, or Total 9.8'1 
Total 

Payback Quarto, Wost Fargo 
SI 30,635.35 9/30/96 $3,345.02 
$130,625.00 12/31/96 $3,395.75 
St JO.GOG.37 3/31/97 $3,001.22 
$126.731.53 6130197 SJ,727.'19 
$510,599.0!i Sum $14,360.20 

.,,_ or Total I 2.77% 

S 126,729.43 9l30197 $3,055.19 
$126,714.JO 12131197 $3,054.35 
$126,mlB.02 3131198 $3,753.00 
$126, 7:12.02 6/l0/98 $3,◄56.31 
$506,873.85 Sum $14,719.73 

•t. of Total 1 2.05°/. 

Payback for Enforcomont of Gam1ng 
For Two flscal Yoars Doolnnlno 7/1/9,·lo 6/30198 

Payback Amount 
Faroo Minot Grand Forks Mandan 

$21,844.26 $7.141.24 $\4,729.70 $3,564.10 
$20,010.56 $0,313.60 $14,369.22 $3,076.26 

$21,0G0.16 $10,140.42 $t4,067.42 $3,703.00 
$21,005.05 S0,690.45 $12,041.76 $3,270.40 
$06_,535.0J $34.302.79 $56,028.10 $1-4,423.56 

10.60% G.61% 10.00% 2.701/o 

$19,931.11 $6,720.04 $17,930.43 $3,031.15 
$20,0!11.32 $0,80[1.40 $15,-400.63 $3,351.50 
$22,013.52 $9,528,3!) S\5,009.09 $3.2GJ,73 
$20,806.42 $0.722.94 $14,542.DD $3,257.12 
S03,742.J7 $J5,fl60.G5 $62,963.04 $12.903.50 

10.52 7.00 $12.42 2.55 

Dickinson Valloy Clly Devils Lako Wahpeton 
$5,253.26 $1,063.53 $3,395.20 $2. \22.22 
$4,014.00 $2,00G.0O S3,40G.44 $1,922.33 
$5,191.13 $1,093.Gl $4,0G1 ,O,t $1,454.00 
S4,,HJ4.G9 S2.241AO $3,401.07 $1,402.50 

$19,053.00 $6,005.36 $14,324.63 $G,9G\,09 
3.03% 1.54% 2.70% 1.3'1% 

$4, 1J0.86 $\,055.40 $3,515.39 $1,320.53 
$4,4◄G.3G $2,265.27 $3,369.20 $1,450.30 
$4,454.93 $1,934.75 $4,386.27 $1,349.28 
$4,409.92 $2,100.77 $4.196.10 $1,413.93 

$17,442.07 $0.164.20 $15,466.96 $5,542.12 
3.44% 1.61o/. 3.05% 1.09% 

Jamestown 
$4,146.62 
$4,324.20 

$4,503.03 
$4,496.32 

$17,471.05 
3.37% 

$4,000.09 
$4,522.Gl 
$4,690.20 
$'1,504.GG 

$17,706.46 
:l.51 

Williston 
$3,755.52 
$4,606.65 
$4,163.31 
$4,350.65 

$10,0lM.13 
3.20% 

$4,002.71 
$4,231.94 
$4,089.37 
$4,360.91 

$16,764.93 
3.31% 

• 
Grafton 

$1,572.23 
SI ,424.60 

$ I ,453.23 
$1,663.4 I 
SG,11J,47 

1.10% 

$1,701.tH 
$1,551.74 
Sl,592.53 
St,963.00 
S6,UOO.!lG 

I.JG 

Ward Counly 
S-t,OJ0.90 
SJ,327. IJ 
$3,570.75 
S4.214.70 

$15,959.CM 
3.08% 

$3,222.46 
$3,143.22 
$2,908.40 
$3,040.40 

$12,322.56 
2..43% 
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JotmPackcu 
Chief af Poli~• 
(701) 111-;300 
FAX (701) 780-3253 

March 1, 1999 

Grand Forks Police Department 
122 South Fltth Street, Box 5548, Grand Forks, ND 58206-5!548 

Government Operations Divisjon 
ATIN: l\Ar. Rex Byerly 

Dear Sir, 

I am providing this information to your committee as I may not be able to appear before you on 3 
March, 1999. In regards to the reduction of the current gaming fund amounts and the proposed 
grant system I would like to make the following points: 

I.) During the past ten years I have been involved in many gaming investigations, some small and 
some very large. One thing that I have learned is that, with the exception of the small intern.al 
thefts, they are very difficult undertakine,, and use time and resources accordingly. Perhaps 
the best analogy would be to compare a gaming and narcotics investigation as the public 
perhaps has a better perception of a drug case due to more media coverage of actual events 
and the exposure given by 1V and movies. Drug cases are difficult because of the amount of 
time involved in surveillance, trying to work an undercover officer or informant into the 
picture and rhen the controlled buys from the dealer. As hard as this is, they are easier than a 
gaming investigation. They are easier because the amount of money that a drug dealer can 
make is infinile, the only limits being on how much of his product he can sell. With this in 
mind the dealer looks to expanding his client list so that he can sell more and subsequently 
rr:ducc his cost due to his ability to pw-chase larger volumes. With a dealer trying actively to 
expand it becomes relatively easy to work an inform.ant or undercover officer into the 
organization. All that is required is a connection to someone already involved in the activity. 
The key concept in this is that the money that can be realized is infinite and greed becomes a 
motivator for expansion. A gaming scheme is different in that the money, at least on a daily 
basis, is finite. There is only so much money in the till drawers, on the bJackjack table or in 
redeemed pulltabs. It makes no sense to bring anyone else into the pictw-e if it is a one or nvo 
person scheme. More people: would only lessen the amount of money that each individual 
person may earn. With this criteria it makes the step of bringing in an undercover officer 
impoSSt'ble and people involved in this quickly learn that if they keep their mouth, s shut they 
have an excellent chance: of never being charged. Ilus means that the i;ntire investigation has 
to rely on surveillance and paper trails, both of which are more time consuming methods of 
investigation that an widercover officer. 

An example of this was the pulltab investigation we did in Grand Forks several year.; ago. 
We had no one undercover and we relied mostly on paper trails to kad us to suspects in the 
case. Officers from our department, the State Crime Bureau, the Sheriff's Office and the 
IRS worked in conjunction to identify and prosecute persons that were involved in schemes to 
cheat at the game of pulltabs. The personnel varied in strength but an average would have 



been nine people. This investigation took those people, working 40-hour weeks, three 
months to complete. TI1e amount of time expended was due to the actual seizure of games 
played, the finding of the tickets and records of the win that we were concerned with and the 
input of this data into computer records. Every winning ticket had t.o be examined to see if it 
substantiated the records of win that we pulled from the games. We were lucky enough to 
have had the interest of the IRS in this investigation because of the ta."'< implications. Without 
their people and laptop computers it would have taken much longer. To put this in 
perspective, one person working by themselves, and doing what the group did, would have 
taken two ye.an; to finish the investigation. 

Examples like this fortunately don't happen very often but large investigations do occur, both 
in this jurisdiction and across the st.ate. Current funding has been strained at times and a 
reduction in funding means that they either won't be done or shortcuts will have to be taken. 
Either will jeopardize the integrity of the investigation and subsequent prosecution. With the 
proposed expansion of gaming in the state with poker games and at the same time cutting 
investigative funds seems t.o me to be working at cross-purposes. The system is working now 
and losing funding will only impair investigative: resources and jeopardize prosecutions. 

2.) I have attempted to find the quote that I read several years ago when charitable gaming was 
first proposed in the state. If you will recall, there was a lot of negative publicity regarding 
the issue and sides were clearly drawn. It was the official position from the state that if 
someone did not gamble they would not be paying for any part of this enterprise. This made 
a lot of people more comfortable with the question and the legislation was subsequently 
passed. I must confess that I do not recall who stated this position but I assume that it was the 
governor or the attorney general at che time. The Grand Forks Herald records that I was 
going to search through were destroyed in their fire so I cannot present to you who said it or 
when but the statement was ma.de. Even if the statement came from a source other than an 
official st.ate spokesperson the concept is a good one. Gaming should be self-sufficient and 
those that don't gamble should not have to pay for any part of it. Unfortunately, they have 
paid for it to some degree already although those costs are hidden. I have had several jnternal 
theft cases and forgeries in which the people invol-ved stated that they had stolen to get back 
the money they lost gambling. Although not a gaming investigation per se these are surely 
gaming related investigations. Reducing funding for I.aw enforcemenl Ylill see that more and 
more of the funds needed for these investigations taken from the regular budget of those 
agencies that have gaming cases. I say this because the proposed cuts will leave many 
jurisdictions underfunded. If these cases are going t.o be pursued then the funds will have be 
taken from oilier programs or the investigations not done. The: promise of not having t.o pay 
if you don't gamble will have been broken. If that is to be the case thc!n the matter should be 
once again ref erred to the people to see if they are willing t.o pay for something that they 
oppose. 

Respecttully submitted, 

µ(§-
Mike Flannery 
Crimin.al Investigations Bw-eau 

~UUJ 



• • • DISTRIBUTIONS CALENDAR YEAR 1998 

POLITICAL GAMING 

SU0OIVISION TAX 
POLITICAL GAMINO 

POLITICAL GAMINO 
SUBDIVISION TAX 

SUBDIVISION TAX 

Adam■ Co. o.oo 
Bucyru■ 0.00 

Hayn•• 0.00 

Hettinger 8!57.25 

Bllllng■ Co. 0.00 

Medora 532.69 

City Total 532.69 

County Total 532.69 

Burk• Co. 279.23 

Bowbella 702.31 

Columbua 314.34 

Flaxton 0.00 

Reeder 291 .08 

City Total 1 ,148.33 
Bottineau Co. 0.00 

Antler 163.90 

Laraon 10.05 

Lignite 509.62 

County Total 1,148.33 
Bottineau 1,840.92 

Portal 372.87 

Power■ Lake 308.22 

Bame■ Co. 1,104.54 
Gardena 0.00 

Kramer 116.50 
City Total 2,217.41 

Dazey 140.89 
Landa o.oo County Total 2,496.64 

Flngal 0.00 

Kathryn 299.14 

Leal 0.00 

Lltchvllle 111.73 

Nome 0.00 

Orl■ka 239.13 

Plll■bury 0.00 

Roger■ 99.14 

Sanbom 61.72 

Sibley 452.77 

Tower City 0.00 

Lan■ford 148.43 

Maxba■■ 0.00 

Newburg 153.69 

Overly 0.00 

Ruaaell 0 .00 

Sourl• 107.54 

We■thope 269.16 

WIiiow City 230.09 

City Total 3,030.23 

County Total 3,030.23 

Burleigh Co. 1,641.83 

Blamarck 50,842.29 

Lincoln 240.17 

Regan 0.00 

WIiton 0 .00 

Wing 133.37 
City Total 51,215.83 

County Total 52,857.66 

Valley City 8,164.28 
Wimbledon 96.04 
City Total 9,664.84 

County Total 10,769.38 

Bowman Co. 39.15 

Bowman 1,314.73 

Oaacoyne 0.00 

Rhame 1,085.26 

Ben■on Co. 126.93 
llrlnamade 0.00 
Eamond 381.36 

Scranton 373.75 

City Total 2,773.74 

County Total 2,812.89 

Kno,c 0 .00 
Leed• 840.62 
Maddock 194.47 
Minnewaukan 72.81 
Oberon 147.00 
Warwick 0.00 
York 0.00 
City Total 1,636.26 

County Total 1,763.19 

1 



POLITICAL GAMING POLITICAL GAMING POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION TAX SUBDIVISION TAX SUBDIVISION TAX 

Ca■■ Co. 1,390.66 Cavaller Co. 384.10 Dunn Co. 418.10 

Allee 69.67 Al■en o.oo Dodge 313.00 

Amenia 162.27 Callo 0.00 Dunn Center 151.31 

Argu■vllle 0.00 Calvin 0.00 Halllday 98.89 

Arthur 117.60 Hannah 229.11 KIiideer 514.22 

Ayr 0.00 Hove Mobile Park 0.00 City Total 1,077.42 

Briarwood 0.00 Langdon 3,024.42 County Total 1,495.52 

Buffalo 245.56 Loma 0.00 

Ca■■elton 1,335.54 MIiton 392.32 Eddy Co. 153.72 

Davenport 0.00 Munich 179.08 New Rockford 1,472.15 

Enderlln 0.00 Nekoma 80.23 Sheyenne 27.64 

Fargo 83,742.37 Osnabrock 232.44 City Total 1,499.79 

Frontier o.oo Sari•• 141.65 County Total 1,653.51 

Gardner 0.00 Wal•• 277.47 

Grandin o.oo City Total 4,556.72 Emmons Co. 30.31 

Harwood 768.73 County Total 4,940.82 Braddock 159.24 

Horace 432.33 Hague 12.76 

Hunter 0.00 Dickey Co. o.oo Hazelton 571.26 

Kindred 198.11 Ellendale 766.74 Linton 1,048.43 

Leonard 177.46 Forbes 0.00 Stra ■burg 564.17 

Mapleton 0.00 Fullerton 53.79 City Total 2,355.86 

North River 0.00 Ludden 0.00 County Total 2,386.17 

Oxbow 0.00 Monango 0.00 

Page 305.92 Oak•• 1,827.31 Fo■t•r Co. 109.65 

Prairie Ro■• o.oo City Total 2,647.84 Carrington 3,226.05 

Rell•'• Acre■ 0.00 County Total 2,647.84 Glenfield 158.37 

Tower City 163.85 Grae• City o.oo 
We■t Fargo 14,719.73 Divide Co. 232.43 McHenry 41.58 

City Total 102,439.14 Ambrose o.oo City Total 3,426.00 

County Total 103,829.80 Crosby 1,479.33 County Total 3,535.65 

Fortuna 0.00 
Noonan 313.32 Golden Valley Co. o.oo 
City Total 1,792.65 Beach 986.55 

County Total 2,025.08 Golva 0.00 

Sentlnel Butte 0.00 

City Total 986.55 

County Total 986.55 

2 



POLITICAL GAMING POLITICAL GAMINO 
POLITICAL GAMING 

SUBDIVISION TAX SUBDIVISION TAX 
SUBDIVISION TAX 

Grand Fork• Co. 885.19 

Emerado 1,812.94 

Kidder Co. 0.00 

Dawson 87.33 
McHenry Co. 0.00 

Anamoose 729.21 
GIiby 37.84 Pettibone 330.62 Balfour 0 .00 
Grand Fork• 82,983.04 

lnkater 102.51 

Larimore 1,880.30 

Manvel 289.73 

Robinson 804.70 

St••I• 1,187.28 

Tappan 425.79 

Tuttle 125.80 

Bantry 0 .00 

Bergen 0.00 

Deering 307.39 

Drake 397.57 
Niagara 0.00 City Total 2,781.52 Granvllla 357.13 
Northwood 898.09 County Total 2,781.52 Karlsruhe 272.64 
Reynold• 0.00 Kief o.oo 
Thompaon 547.91 Lamour■ Co. 0.00 Towner 585.77 
City Total 88,312.36 

County Total 69,197.55 

Barlln 0.00 

Dickey 59.22 
Edgeley 990.48 

Upham 298.03 

Velva 1,775.98 

Voltaire 0.00 
Grant Co. 15.52 

Caraon 218.27 

Elgln 579.79 

Jud 157.49 
Kulm 269.35 

Lamour■ 1,066.87 

City Total 4,723.70 

County Total 4 ,723.70 

Leith 0.00 Marlon 348.55 Mclntoah Co. 0.00 
New Leipzig 100.45 

City Total 898.51 

Varona 55.99 

City Total 2,947.95 
Ashley 502.79 

Lehr 207.96 
County Total 914.03 County Total 2,947.95 Venturia 0.00 

Grigg• Co. 0.00 Logan Co. o.oo 
Wishek 1,313.23 

Zealand 104.84 
Binford 121.85 

Cooperstown 1,202.90 
Hannaford 189.35 

Fredonia 106.48 

Gackle 170.24 

Lahr 0.00 

City Total 2,128.82 

County Total 2,128.82 

City Total 
- 1,514.10 

County Total 1,514.10 

Napoleon 1,330.99 
City Total 1,607.71 

Mckenzie Co. 417.67 

Alexander 170.57 

Hettinger Co. 384.80 
Mott 248.48 
New England 533.52 
Regent 331.91 
City Total 1,111.91 

County Total 1,607.71 Arnegard 212.35 

Rawson 0.00 

Watford City 595.37 

City Total 978.29 
County Total 1,395.96 

County Total 1,496.71 

3 



POLITICAL GAMINO 

SUBDIVISION TAX POLITICAL GAMINO POLITICAL GAMINO 

Mclean Co. 764.08 SUBDIVISION TAX SUBDIVISION TAX 

Benedict 131.50 Mountrall Co. 156.89 Pembina Co. 375.41 

Butte 84.89 New Town 0.00 Bathgate 88.35 

Coleharbor 201.24 Palermo 233.16 Canton o.oo 
Oarrlaon 1,081.20 Parshall 0.00 C■valler 1,550.15 

Max 153.68 Plaza 79.06 Crystal o.oo 
Mercer 123.69 Rosa 230.26 Drayton 1,903.25 

Rive rd ale 0.00 Stanley 420.28 Hamllton 0.00 

Ruao 0.00 Whit• Earth 0.00 Mountain 408.25 

Turtle Lake 870.30 City Total 962.76 Neche 131.72 

Underwood 345.13 County Total 1,119.65 Pembina 535.93 

Waahburn 735.68 St Thomas 590.45 

WIiton 736.64 Nelson Co. 0.00 Walhalla 1,395.14 

City Total 4,463.95 Aneta 150.82 City Total 6,603.24 

County Total 5,228.03 Lakota 892.20 County Total 6,859.90 

Mcvllle 311.68 

Mercer Co. 1,209.97 Michigan 112.06 Pierce Co. 1,666.14 

Beulah 875.73 Pekin 116.16 Bait■ 0.00 

Golden Valley 198.66 Peteraburg 48.19 Barton 0.00 

Hazen 1,157.42 Tolna 323.32 Rugby 2,180.03 

Pick City 461.28 City Total 1,954.43 Wolford 47.21 

Stanton 216.65 County Total 1,954.43 City Total 2,227.24 

Zap 199.52 County Total 3,893.38 

City Total 3,109.26 Ollver Co. 0.00 

County Total 4,319.23 Center 917.07 Ramsey Co. 1,054.13 

City Total 917.07 Brocket 0.00 

Morton Co. 217.98 County Total 917.07 Church• Ferry 291.86 

Almont 74.37 Crary 0.00 

Flaaher 84.51 Devlla Lake 15,466.96 

Olen Ullln 1,102.51 Edmore 176.46 

Hebron 305.44 Hampden 221.80 

Mandan 12,903.50 Lawton 0.00 

New Salem 1,107.49 Starkweather 172.14 

City Total 15,577.82 City Total 16,329.02 

County Total 15,795.80 County Total 17,383.15 

4 



POLITICAL GAMINO 

SUBDIVISION TAX 

POLITICAL GAMING 

SUBDIVISION TAX 

POLITICAL GAMINO 

SUBDIVISION TAX 

~Co. 705.73 Rolette Co. 2,646.52 St ■rk Co. 0 .00 

Enlot 0.00 Ovnsetth 876.9'9 a.ffle.~ 51'0JS3 

Enderlin 1,917.80 Mylo 0.00 Dlcklnaon 17,442.07 

Fort Ransom 274.07 Rolette 861.16 Gladstone 130.79 

Lisbon 1,841.48 Roll■ 185.48 Richardton 139.36 

Sheldon 198.06 St John 104.33 South Heart 153.59 

City Tot■I 4,231.41 

County Tot■I 4,937.14 

City Total 2,027.96 

County Tot■ I 4,674.48 

Taylor 0.00 

City Total 18,436.44 

County Total 18,436.44 

Renville Co. 785.49 Sargent Co. 296.51 

Glenburn 39.03 Cayuga 0.00 Steele Co. 0.00 

Or■no 0.00 Cogswell 0.00 Flnley 306.12 

Loraine 0.00 Forman 532.61 Hope 273.05 

Mohall 157.34 Gwinner 960.12 Luverne 0.00 

Sherwood 393.66 H■v■n■ 0.00 Sharon 0.00 

Tolley 185.14 

City Total 775.17 

Milnor 571.48 

Rutland 0.00 

City Total 579.17 

County Total 579.17 

County Total 1,560.66 City Total 2,064.21 

County Total 2,360.72 Stutam■n Co. 1,953.50 

Richland Co. 607.24 Buchanan 0.00 

Abercrombie 104.10 Sherld■n Co. o.oo Cleveland 0.00 

Barney 68.53 Goodrich 207.39 Courten■y 107.17 

Christin• 386.72 Martin 32.07 J■m••town 17,786.46 

CoH■x 52.72 Mcclu•ky 489.83 Kenael 0.00 

Dwight 0.00 City Total 729.29 Medin• 405.66 

Fairmount 596.22 County Total 729.29 Mont pelter 86.46 

Ore■t Bend 109.67 Pingree 0.00 

H■nkln•on 658.63 Sioux Co. 0.00 Spiritwood L■k• 71.73 

Lidgerwood 1,029.75 Fort Y■t•• o.oo Streeter 500.37 

Mantador 187.93 S■Hrldg• 0.00 Woodworth 164.10 

Mooreton 192.22 Solen o.oo City Tot■ I 19,121.95 

Wahpeton 5,542.12 City Total 0.00 County Total 21,075.45 

Walcott 19.24 County Total 0.00 

Wyndmere 464.77 

City Tot■I 9,412.62 Slope Co. 0.00 

County Total 10,019.86 Amidon 33.31 

Marmarth 183.30 

City Tot■I 216.61 

County Total 216.61 

5 



POLITICAL GAMINO 
SUBDIVISION TAX 

POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION 
Towner Co. 0.00 

Blabee 295.02 
Cando 1,286.86 

Walah Co. 

Adam• 

Ardoch 
Egeland 177.81 
Hanaboro 0.00 
Maza 0.00 

Conway 

Edinburg 

Fairdale 
Perth o.oo 

Fordville 
Rock Lake 96.35 Foreat River 
Sarlea 0.00 Grafton 
City Total 1,856.04 

County Total 1,856.04 
Hoopla 

Lankin 

Tralll Co. 225.09 
Buxton 799.35 
Clltford 0.00 
Galeaburg 235.89 
Grandin 210.57 

Minto 

Park River 

Plaak 

City Total 

County Total 

Hatton 893.59 Ward Co. 
Hlllaboro 3,032.06 Barthold 
Mayvllla 1,200.57 
Portland 690.75 
Reynold• 192.31 

Burlington 

Carpio 

Daa Laca 
City Total 7,255.09 

County Total 7,480.18 
Donnybrook 

Douglaa 

Kenmare 

Makoti 

Minot 

Ryder 

Sawyer 

Surrey 

City Total 

County Total 

GAMINO 

TAX 

549.13 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

289.82 

88.75 

33.48 

185.80 

6,888.96 

300.73 

106.25 

878.69 

1,201.50 

0.00 

9,973.98 

10,523.11 

12,322.56 

292.09 

569.29 

142.32 

0.00 

281.22 

76.09 

2,037.15 

147.03 

35,860.65 

128.55 

208.16 

293.67 

40,036.22 

52,358.78 

6 

POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION 

Walla Co. 

Bowdon 

Cathay 

f••••ndan 

Hamberg 

Harvey 

Hurdaflald 

Sykeaton 

City Total 

County Total 

Wllllama Co. 

Alamo 

Epping 

Grenora 

Ray 

Spring Brook 

Tioga 

Wlldroae 

Wllllaton 

City Total 

County Total 

POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION 

CITY TOTAL 

COUNTY TOTAL 

STATEWIDE TOTAL 

GAMINO 

TAX 

286.79 

0.00 

o.oo 
914.92 

0.00 

3,675.77 

94.74 

360.68 

5,046.11 

5,332.90 

746.80 

o.oo 
64.24 

121.70 

698.74 

0.00 

893.38 

253.84 

16,764.93 

18,796.83 

19,543.63 

GAMING 

TAX 

472,890.08 

34,183.79 

506,873.85 



Date 
Received 
11/20/98 
12/7/98 

1/6/99 
1/6/99 
1/7/99 
1/7/99 
1/7/99 
1/7/99 
1/7/99 
1/8/99 
1/8/99 
1/8/99 

1/12/99 
1 /13/99 
1 /13/99 
1/14/99 
1 /14/99 
1/14/99 
1 /27 /99 
3/1/99 

LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANTS 
IMPACT ON LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 

AGENCY Received Amount 
From Received 

City of Fargo Terri Leier-Sprenger $84,720.51 

Grand Forks Police Dept. Chief John Packett $60,399.75 

Rolette County Sheriffs Office Sheriff Tony Sims $3 ,000.00 
Bismarck Police Dept. Chief Debbie Ness $50,842 .29 
Wells County Sheriffs Office Sheriff Curtis Pellett $286.79 
Cooperstown City Auditor Diane Cowdrey $1,202.90 
Fargo Police Dept. Chief Ronald Raftevold 
Richland County Admin . Office Kelly Hornstein $607.24 
Eddy County Auditor Darlene Haugen $153.72 
Mayor of Carrington Allan Metzger $3 ,226 .05 
Finley City Auditor Tyrone Hauge $209.26 
Dunseith City Auditor Shelley Counts $876.99 
Jamestown Police Dept. Lt. John Gletne $17,923.53 
City of Williston Mr. Ward Koeser $16,764.00 
City of Fargo Mayor Bruce Furness 
City of Minot Mayor Carroll Erickson $34,957.97 
City of Dunn Center Ms Linda Kitti lson $300.00 
City of Columbus Ms. Sharon Thingvold $314 .34 
Jamestown Police Dept. Lt. John Gletne 
Grand Forks Police Dept. Det. Mike Flannery 

Use of Grant Money 

detailed breakdown 

detailed breakdown 
video cameras , TV, VCR 
detailed breakdown 
communications equipment 
police radios, repairs, training 

training 
site inspections 
new patrol car 
contract policing 
computer, printer, office chairs 
general gaming enforcement 
general gaming enforcement 

general gaming enforcement 
reactive gaming enforcement 
goes to Sheriffs Dept. 
no gaming enforcement 
general gaming enforcement 
general gaming enforcement 



99672 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for House Appropriations 

March 4, 1999 

GAMING TAX COLLECTIONS SINCE 1989 

The following schedule presents the general fund collections from gaming taxes since 1989: 

General Fund Collections 
1999-2001 revised revenue estimate $22 ,669,000 
1997-99 estimated $22,669,000 
1995-97 $22 ,848,486 
1993-95 $24,281,458 
1991-93 $11,477,000 
1989-91 $7,749,304 
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.SU/tfM,UY OF GMllNG TAX- £'tQSE TAX AND BINGO SALES COLLECTED, AND FUNDS PAID BACK TO QT/ES/COUNTIES, STATE GENERAL FUND AND ATTORNEY GENERAL AJ'PllOPRIATJONS 
FISCIL YEARS 1984 THROUGH 1999 

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 
·Gaming Tu s l,3S8,166 s 1,382,057 s 1,457,910 s 1,591,221 s 1,626,309 s 1,837,718 s 2,338,236 
·txciseT:u s 1,746,960 
Bin~o s~1e,., Tix s 2,556,094 
Tol>ITaxa s 1,358,166 s l,Jsi,087 s 1,457,910 s 1,591,221 s 1,626,309 s 1,837,718 s 6,641,290 

P•Jbatk s 548,423 s S47,877 s SSB,31S s 614,899 s 652,158 s 686,986 s 697,048 
General Fund s 809,743 s 834,210 s 899,SJS s 976,322 s 896,820 s 1,124,840 s 5,844,242 
Appropriadons s 77,331 s 72,669 s 100,000 
Tot•ls s 1,358,166 s 1,382,087 s 1,457,910 s 1,591,221 s 1,626,309 s 1,88./,49$ s 6,641,290 

Btimatcs were used for the fucal ye:ir 1999, 
A dilf=cc oceurr<d b<tween Goming Division numt.crs and Tax Oepartmeni numbon due timing and accountins differences. 
S1:uting in 1993 the city/county payb,clc was made liom lhe Gencnl Fund. All tax collec1ions wenl directly 10 11,c Clencral fund. 

Soun:cDocumcnts: Nonh Dakoto Gomes of Chance Quancrly Reports 
State and Loe>! Taxes in Nonh Dakota, An Overview and Companlive Guide, April 1996 

1991 1992 19!13 1994 
$ 2,644,8S1 s 2,998,148 s 3,791,972 s 3,358,246 
s 2,264,376 s 2,548,030 s 3,498,lSl s 8,312,242 
s 2,624,386 s 2,883,635 s 2,803,640 s 2,774,020 
s 7,533,613 s 8,429,813 S 10,09?,763 S 14,444,508 

s 680,000 s 680,000 s 663,000 s 612,000 
s 6,753,613 s 7,649,813 p ·:c;,31~.~~f _fii:¼.sos 
$ 100,000 s 100,000 $/ ,"" 100,000' 
s 7,533,613 s s,42?,s13 rs_ 9,413,763 ~ s 14,444,sos • 

1995 1996 1997 
s 3,191,845 s .3,3S4,993 s 3,153,512 s 
s 7,949,756 s s,22s,020 s 7,983,786 s 
s 2,6S2,j27 s 2,848,608 s 2,850,012 . s 
S 13,793,928 s 14,428,621 s 13,987,310 s 

s · a9.690 s 522,760 S 522,760 $ 
S b,793,928 1: 1<1,42li,6i("s•~ 13,9s'T;iio s 

S 13.793,928 .$}~ 14,428,621,,; S · 13,987,310 s. 

1998 1999 
3,308,703 s ],980,()0(J 
8,127,131 s 8,172,000 
2,74S,418 s 2,8S9,000 

14,181,252 s 14,041,000 

507,078 s 507,078 
l~.181,2S2 s H,o~i;ooq. 

14,181,2S2. S· u,011,000. 



MASTER SETTLEMENT AGREE YMENTS THROUGH 2025 
Cnlcnclnr IX(b) § IX(c)(1) § IX(c)(1) Annual 

Ycnr Initial Annual Payments less 
Pnyrnents Payments Previously Settled 

States Reduction 
1990 $2,400,000,000 
Hl99 
2000 $2,'172,000,000 $4,500,000,000 $3,939,750,000 
2001 $2,546,160,000 $5,000,000,000 $4,377,500,000 
2002 $2,622,544,800 $6,500,000,000 $5,690,750,000 
2003 $2,701,221,144 $6,500,000,000 $5,690,750,000 
2004 $8,000,000,000 $7,004,000,000 
2005 $8,000,000,000 $7,004,000,000 
2006 $8,000,000,000 $7,004,000,000 
2007 $8,000,000,000 $7,004,000,000 
2008 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2009 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
~010 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2011 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2012 $8, 139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2013 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2014 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2015 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2016 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2017 $8,139,000,000 $7,143,000,000 
2018 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2019 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2020 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2021 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2021 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2023 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2024 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 
2025 $9,000,000,000 $8,003,999,997 

I olal $12,741,925,944 $207,890,000,000 $183,176,749,975 
UST payments 
TOTAL $12,741,925,944 $207,890,000,000 $183,176,749,975 

Gra11cl Total of Cigarette Agreement without PSS Reduction taken 
Grand Total of Cigarette Agreement with PSS Reduction taken 

§ 1x1 ... , ) 

Strategic 
Contribution 

Fund Payments 

$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 
$861,000,000 

$8,610,000,000 

$8,610,000,000 

Grnncl Totnl of Cigarette Agreement & UST Agreement without PSS Reduction 
Grand Total of Cigarette Agreement & UST Agreement with PSS Reduction 

§ Vl(b) CD 
Base { 

Foundation 
Payments 

$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 
$25,000,000 

$250,000,000 

$250,000,000 

$230,993,425,944 
$206,200,175,919 
$231,093,425,944 
$206,300 I 175,919 

§ Vl(c) 
NatlonalPubllc 
Education Fund 

Payments 

$250,000,000 
$300,000,000 
$300,000,000 
$300,000,000 
$300,000,000 

$1,450,000,000 
$95,750,000 

$1,545,750,000 

§ Vlll(b) § Vlll(c) 
NAAG AG 

Administration Enforcement 
Payments Fund 

$150,000 
$150,000 $50,000,000 
$150,000 
$150,000 
$15U,OOO 
$150,000 
$150,00Q 
$150,000 
$150,000 
$150,000 

$1,500,000 $50,000,000 
$250,000 $4,000,000 

$1,750,000 $54,000,000 

Revised November 14, 1998 



Tobacco Settlement Proposal 
Summary for Attorneys General 

!Public Health Initiatives 

Prohibits Youth Targeting 

• Prohibits targeting youth in advertising, promotions, or marketing. 
• Bans industry actions aimed at initiating, maintaining or increasing youth smoking. 

Bans Cartoon Characters 

• Bans use of cartoons in the advertising, promotion, packaging or labeling of tobacco 
products. 

Restricts Sponsors/zips By Brand Names 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

Limits tobacco companies to only one brand name sponsorship per year (after current 
contracts expire or after three years - whichever comes first). 
Prohibits brand name sponsorship of events with a significant youth audience . 
Prohibits sponsorship of team sports (football, basketball, baseball, hockey or soccer) . 
Prohibits sponsorship of events where any of the paid participants or contestants are 
underage. 

Allows corporate sponsorship of athletic, musical, cultural, artistic or social events as 
long as the corporate name does not include the brand name of a domestic tobacco 
product. 

• Bans tobacco brand names for stadiums and arenas. 

• Limits outdoor advertising for sponsored events to the site of the event. 

Bans Outdoor Advertising 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

Bans all outdoor advertising, including: billboards, signs and placards in arenas, 
stadiums, shopping malls, and video game arcades. 

Limits advertising outside retail establishments to 14 square feet. 
Bans transit advertising of tobacco products . 

Tobacco billboards and transit ads must be removed within 150 days after the Master 
Settlement Agreement Execution Date. 
Allows states to substitute for the duration of billboard lease periods, alternative 
advertising which discourages youth smoking. 
Requires tobacco companies to designate a contact person to facilitate sign removal in 
each state. 



Bans Placement of Tobacco Products 
• Bans payments to promote tobacco products in movies, television shows, theater 

productions or live performances, live or recorded music performances, videos and 
video games. 

Bans Sale of Merc/zandise With Tobacco Brand Names 
• Beginning July l, 1999, bans distribution and sale of apparel and merchandise with 

brand-name logos (caps, T-shirts, backpacks, etc.). 

Bans Youth Access To Free Samples 
• After Master Settlement Agreement Execution Date, free samples cannot be 

distributed except in a facility or enclosed area where the operator ensures no 
underage person is present. 

Bans Proof of Purc/zase Gifts 
• Bans gifts without proof of age (legible driver's license certified to be valid by the 

gift recipient). Effective one year after Master Settlement Agreement Execution Date. 

Prohibits Third Parties From Using Tobacco Brand Names 

• Tobacco companies are prohibited from authorizing third parties to use or advertise 
brand names in any way prohibited by the agreement. 

• Tobacco companies must designate a contact in each state who will respond to 
Attorney General complaints of prohibited third party activity. 

• Exempts licensing agreements or contracts in existence as of July 1, I 998, although 
contracts cannot be extended beyond current terms. 

Bans Non-Tobacco Brand Names 

• Bans future cigarette brands from being named after recognized non-tobacco brand or 
trade names (such as Harley Davidson, Yves Saint Laurent, Cartier) or nationally 
recognized sports teams, entertainment groups or individual celebrities. 

Sets Minimum Pack Size At 20 Cigarettes 

• Limits minimum pack size to 20 cigarettes through December 31, 2001. 
• Tobacco companies prohibited from opposing state legislation which bans the 

manufacture and sale of packs containing fewer than 20 cigarettes. 

!Changes The Corporate Culture 

Requires Corporate Commitments To Reduce Youth Access and Consumption 

• Beginning 180 days after the Master Settlement Agreement Execution Date, 
companies must: 

• Develop and regularly communicate corporate principles that commit to complying 
with the Master Settlement Agreement and reducing youth smoking. 
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• Designate executive level manager to identify ways to reduce youth access and 
consumption of tobacco. 

• Encourage employees to identify additional methods to reduce youth access and 
youth consumption. 

!Disbands Tobacco Trade Associations 

• Disbands the Council for Tobacco Research (CTR), the Tobacco Institute (TI), and 
the Council for Indoor Air Research (CIAR). 

• Requires all records of these organizations that relate to any lawsuit to be preserved. 

Provides Regulation and Oversight of Any New Trade Organizations 
• Requires any new trade association to adopt bylaws that provide: 
• Officers of the association will be appointed by the board, be employees of the 

association and will not be employed by a member tobacco company; 

• Legal counsel will be independent and not serve as counsel to member companies; 

• Minutes of board of director meetings will be prepared and maintained for at least 
five years. 

• Antitrust staff for any settling state may inspect and copy all non-privileged , non
work-product records and interview association directors, officer and employees. 

!Restricts Industry Lobbying 

Stops Industry Assault On Tobacco Control l.Aws 

• After state specific finality, tobacco companies will be prohibited from opposing 
proposed state or local la\vs or administrative rules which are intended to limit youth 
access to and consumption of tobacco products. 

• The industry must require its lobbyists to certify in writing they have reviewed and 
will fully comply with settlement terms including disclosure of financial contributions 
regarding lobbying activities and new corporate culture principles; 

• In states without laws regarding financial disclosure of lobbying, requires disclosure 
of lobbying costs to the state Attorney General. 

• Prohibits lobbyists from supporting or opposing state, federal, or local laws or actions 
without authorization of the companies. 

• Prohibits the industry from lobbying for the diversion of settlement money to non
tobacco or non-health related uses or legislation which would eliminate or diminish 
state rights under the settlement. 

Protects State And Local Youth Access l.Aws 
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• Prohibits new challenges by the industry against the enforceability or constitutionality 
of tobacco control laws, ordinances, and rules passed prior to June 1, 1998. 

Dismisses La.wsuits Against State Laws 
• Requires the industry to dismiss, without fees, all claims against participating states. 

No Criminal Immunity 
• Specifies that states expressly do not waive any right to pursue criminal prosecutions 

based on federal, state, or, local law. 

!Opens Industry Records And Research 

Opens Public Access To Tobacco Documents 
• Tobacco companies will release documents that are under protective orders in state 

lawsuits and have no privilege or trade-secret claim. 
• Settling states may seek court-approved public release of any documents which have 

been subject to an order or ruling, prior to August 17, 1998, denying privilege, work
product or trade secret protection. The industry can contest the action. 

Creates User-Friendly ·website For Industry Documents 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Requires tobacco companies to maintain for ten years, at their expense, a Website 
which includes all documents produced in state and other smoking and health related 
lawsuits. 
Requires the industry to maintain the site in a user-friendly and searchable format 
(requires an index and other features to improve searchable access). 
Requires the industry to add, at its expense, all documents produced in future civil 
actions involving smoking and health cases. 
The industry will provide the National Association of Attorneys General with up to 
$100,000 for a computer consultant to ensure that the industry's \Vebsite is truly 
usable. 

Stops Conspiracy To Hide Research Regarding Smo/..-ing and Health 
• Prohibits manufacturers from jointly contracting or conspiring to: 
• Limit information about the health hazards from the use of their products; 
• Limit or suppress research into smoking and health; or 
• Limit or suppress research into the marketing or development of new products. 

• Prohibits the industry from making any material misrepresentations regarding the 
health consequences of smoking. 

!Creates A Foundation And $1.45 Billion Public Education Fund 
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• 

Creates A National Foundation to Reduce Teen Smoking and Substance Abuse 
• Requires the industry to pay $250 million over the next ten ( 10) years to fund a 

charitable foundation which will support the study of programs to reduce teen 
smoking and substance abuse and the prevention of diseases associated with tobacco 
use. 

• The NAAG Executive Committee will provide for creation of the foundation. 

• The foundation will be governed by an eleven-member board of directors. NAAG, 
the National Governors' Association and the National Conference of State 
Legislatures each will appoint two board members and the six will select the final five 
members, four of whom must have expertise in public health, medicine and child 
psychology. 

• The foundation will : 

• Carry out a nationwide, sustained advertising and education program to counter youth 
tobacco use and educate consumers about the cause and prevention of diseases 
associated with tobacco use. 

• Develop, disseminate and test the effectiveness of counter advertising campaigns. 

• Develop, disseminate and test the effectiveness of model classroom educational 
programs, including programs targeting at-risk populations. 

• Develop, disseminate and test the effectiveness of criteria for effective cessation 
programs. 

• Commission studies, fund research and publish reports on factors that influence youth 
smoking and substance abuse. 

• Develop targeted training and information programs for parents. 

• Maintain a library of foundation studies, reports and publications. 

• Track and monitor youth smoking and substance abuse with a focus on reasons for 
increases or failures to decrease tobacco and substance use rates. 

• The foundation is prohibited from engaging in political or lobbying activities. 

• Includes a severance clause for settling states which are prohibited by state law from 
entering into the foundation portion of the agreement. 

Creates A National Public Education Fund 

• Requires the industry to pay Sl.45 billion over the next five years for a National 
Public Education Fund. 

• The agreement includes continued funding depending on the number of tobacco 
product manufacturers who have agreed to be bound by the Agreement .. 

• The fund is established to carry out a nationwide sustained advertising and education 
program to counter youth tobacco use and educate consumers about tobacco-related 
diseases. 

• The fund may make grants to states and political subdivisions to carry out the fund's 
purposes. 

• Industry payments to the foundation and education fund will be held in an escrow 
account until state-specific finality in at least one state. 
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• Outside contributions can be made to the foundation and specifically to the education 
fund. 

IEnf orcement 

Provides Court Jurisdictio,z For Implementatio,z and Enforcement 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Settling states or tobacco companies may apply to the court to enforce the terms of 
the consent decree. 

A state is not required to give any prior notice before seeking an order to enforce a 
consent decree from the court- except that a 10-day notice is required if the claimed 
violation involves targeting youth or making material misrepresentations about 
tobacco products (unless the Attorney General determines there is a public health or 
safety concern requiring faster action, or the party has committed substantially similar 
violations previously). 
If the court finds the consent decree has been violated, the court may award any relief 
available under the consent decree or the Jaw in that state. 

Settling states may also apply to the court to enforce or interpret the terms of the 
Agreement, although before applying to the court a party must give the other parties 
and NAAG 30-days notice (unless the Attorney General determines there is a public 
health or safety concern requiring faster action). 

• If the court issues an enforcement order enforcing the agreement and a party violates 
that order, the court may order monetary, civil contempt or criminal sanctions to 
enforce compliance with the enforcement order. 

• Allows settling state AGs access to company documents, records and personnel to 
enforce the agreement. 

NAAG Provides Implementatio,z And Enforcement Coordination 

• NAAG will: 
• Receive $150,000 per year until 2007 from the industry for oversight costs. 
• Monitor potential conflicting court interpretations involving the settlement. 

• Convene two meetings each year and one national conference every three years to 
evaluate the success of the setflement and coordinate AG efforts. 

• Assist states with inspection and discovery activities which are conducted to enforce 
the settlement. 

State Enforcement Fund Established 
• On March 31, 1999, the industry is directed to pay $50 million which will be used to 

assist settling states in enforcing and implementing the agreement and to investigate 
and litigate potential violations of state tobacco laws. 

!Financial Recovery 
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States Will Recover Over $206 Billion 
• Payments will be made to settling states and a national foundation, and for 

administration and enforcement purposes. 
• Distributions directly to states will be made based on percentages agreed to by 

Attorneys General (Exhibit A). 

Up-front Payments Total $12.742 Billion 
• Tobacco companies will make five (5) initial payments between 1998 and 2003. 

They will pay $2.4 billion in 1998, $2.472 billion on January 10, 2000, $2.546 
billion in 2001, $2.623 billion in 2002, and $2.701 billion in 2003. 

A1111ual Payme11ts Begin April 15, 2000 and Total $183.177 Billion Through 2025 
• If all states participate in the settlement, annual payments will "ramp-up" beginning 

with a $4.5 billion payment on April 15, 2000. Ensuing April 15 payments will be at 
the following rates: 

• 200 l: $5 billion 
• 2002-2003: $6.5 billion 

• 2004-2007: $8 billion 

• 2008-2017: $8.139 billion (plus $861 million to the strategic fund) 
• 2018 on: $9 billion 

• These amounts (when under S8 billion) will be reduced for percentages for previously 
settled states. (fhe S 183.177 billion total is the total through 2025 after the 
previously settled state reduction is taken.) 

Strategic Contribution Fund Payments of$8.610 Billio11 
• On April 15, 2008 and on April 15 each year through 2017, the companies will pay 

S86 l million into a strategic contribution fund . 

• Money from the fund will be allocated to states based on a strategic contribution 
formula developed by Attorneys General no later than June, 1999. The allocation 
formula will reflect the contribution made by states toward resolution of the state 
lawsuits against tobacco companies (Exhibit U). 

Payments to tlze Foundation Totaling $250 Million Over tlze Next 10 Years 

Payments to the National Public Education Fund at Least Totaling $1.45 Billion Between 
2000 and 2003 

One-Time Payment of $50 Million into Attorney General Enforcement Fund in 1999 

Payments ofNAAGfor Administrative Expenses Totaling $1.5 Million Over the Next Ten (10) 
Years 

iHiscellaneous Payment Provisions 

7 



• Payment calculations for the industry will be made by an independent auditor paid for 
by the industry and by a fund established in the agreement. 

• The independent auditor will be selected by the NAAG executive committee and the 
companies. 

• Payments made by tobacco companies (annual payments, strategic contribution fund) 
will be adjusted annually based on an inflation factor. (The annual CPI but not less 
than 3%.) 

• The amount of the annual payments will be subject to "volume adjustments". 
Tobacco company payments will rise if cigarette sales increase and fall if cigarette 
sales decrease. 

• Annual payments also arc subject to a Non-Settling States adjustment. If states do not 
participate in the settlement, the annual payments made by tobacco companies will be 
reduced by the settlement share amounts which have been allocated to those non
settling states. 

Federal Legislation Adjustment 

• If federal legislation requires participating tobacco companies to make payments to 
the federal government, and some portion of that money is sent to the settling states, 
those payments may be offset, dollar for dollar, from the annual payments, under 
certain enumerated circumstances. 

Non-Participating Manufacturers Adjustment 
• Settlement negotiations originated with-the four major tobacco companies, but an 

early goal was to ensure industry-wide participation in the public health and other 
initiatives achieved in the agreement. To achieve that goal, attempts were made to 
involve additional companies in the negotiations and to develop provisions which 
would encourage all tobacco companies to follow terms of the settlement. 

• States are encouraged to pass model statutes that effectively create a reserve fund for 
non-participating manufacturers to pay future claims. (Exhibit T) 

• If the aggregate market share of all companies participating in the agreement decline 
by more than two percent because of their participation in the agreement, their annual 
payment is reduced by three percent for each percent lost over the two percent 
threshold. Only states that have not passed a model statute would have their annual 
payments reduced. 

• States which pass the model statute would not have their annual payments reduced. 

• If a state's model statute is struck down by the court, a state's annual payment would 
be reduced, by no more than 65 percent. 
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!Cost Recovery and Attorney Fees 

States Recover Cost, Expenses and Market Rate For Attomey Fees 
• Tobacco companies will reimburse offices of state Attorneys General and other 

political subdivisions for all reasonable costs and expenses and in-house attorney fees 
(up to a total of S 150 million). 

Industry Will Pay Outside Attorney Fees 
• Two payment methods are available - liquidated fee agreement and arbitration. 
• Outside counsel can negotiate a liquidated fee agreement with the industry, and if 

accepted, would be paid from a $1.25 billion pool of money from the tobacco 
industry over four years. If outside counsel accepts a liquidated fee, they must release 
the state from all claims for attorney fees. 

• If outside counsel rejects the liquidated fee process or cannot agree to an offer, they 
can go through arbitration. 

• A three-member arbitration panel will be established with two permanent members 
and a member from the state represented by the outside counsel. 

• The industry will pay whatever arbiters award, but timing of the payment will be 
subject to a $500-million-per-year cash flow cap. 

!Miscellaneous Provisions 

Release Provisions 
• If an Attorney General does not have the authority to release cl.urns for political 

subdivisions or certain other entities and that political subdivision or entity proceeds 
with a lawsuit and wins a judgment or settlement (and the AG agrees to the 
settlement), the amount of that recovery will be taken out of the state's settlement 
share. 

Court Approval of Settlements and Consent Decrees Required 
• By December 11, 1998, suing states must file a motion to approve the settlement. 
• Non-filing states will have 30 days to file suit and a motion to approve the settlement 

agreement. 
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A1ost Favored Nation Provisions 
• If tobacco companies, before October 1, 2000, enter into an agreement with better 

overall terms, settlement states will get the benefit of that agreement. (fhis does not 
apply to any agreement reached after the seating of a jury or commencement of trial.) 

• If more favorable non-economic terms are offered in an agreement on or after October 
1, 2000, settling states at their option may benefit. 

• If a settling state enters into an agreement with a company not participating in this 
settlement and the terms are more favorable to the industry, settling companies can 
benefit, but only within that state. 

Settlement Amendment Provisions 
• The settlement can be amended only if all affected states and all affected companies 

agree to the amendment. 

Key Dates 

• There are three critical dates in the agreement: Master Settlement Execution Date, 
State Specific Finality date, and Final Approval date. 

• MSA Execution: This is the starting date and it occurs when Attorneys General and 
the companies sign the Master Settlement Agreement. Various public health 
provisions are triggered by this date. If both sides sign, this date will be November 
23, 1998. 

• State Specific Finality : This date occurs when a state court approves the settlement 
and consent decree and appeal time has run, or, if there is an appeal, the appeal has 
been decided in favor of approval. This important date keys more public health 
initiatives and vests the state for financial recovery. 

• Final Approval: This is the earlier of June 30, 2000 or the date when 80 percent of 
the settling states reach State Specific Finality and states with 80 percent of the 
financial allocation reach State Specific Finality. No money is disbursed to the states 
until Final Approval is reached. 
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Annual Pllyments to -Each State 

Year 1998 1999 2000 
Amount $2.400,080,000.00 $0.00 $6,411. 750,000.00 

Alabama $38,767.139.87 $0.00 $103,622,268.85 
Alaska $8. 194,049.54 $0.00 $21,880,915.46 
Arizona $35,373,226.92 $0.00 $94,501,786.55 
Arkansas $19,873,686.24 $0.00 $53,093,527.74 
Callfomla $306,334,930.78 $0.00 $818,392.913.50 
Colorado $32,900,874.16 $0.00 $87,896,207.30 
Connecticut $44.556.896.25 SO.OD $119,038.533.13 
Delaware $9,491,268.84 $0.00 $25~356,517.92 
D.C. $14,570,838.84 $0.00 $38,926,906,65 
Florida $0.00 so.co $0.00 
Georgia $58,906,980.41 $0.00 $1 ~.373,679.86 
Hawen $14,444,758.81 SO.DO $38,590,078.62 
Idaho $8,718,317.14 $0.00 $23,281,529.13 
Illinois $111.701,933.67 $0.00 $298,418,697.16 
Indiana $48,955,278.3Q $0.00 $130,787,085.94 
Iowa S20,872,006.95 $0.00 $55,760,871.07 
Kansas $20,008,109.85 $0.00 $53,452,915.44 

J 

Kentucky $4Z267,806.11 $0,00 $112,921.085.75 
Louisiana $54,128,474.21 $0.00 $144,607,601.88 
Maine $18.464.411.55 $0,00 $48,326,829.47 
Maryland $54.260,967.50 $0.0.0 $144,934,860.37 
M11a11. $96,935,~.43 $0.00 $258,969,237.19 
Michigan $104,446.741.41 $0.00 $278,035.997.59 
Minnesota $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
MisslssJppJ $0.00 $0,00 $0.00 
Missouri $54,690,425.53 $0.00, $145,841,733.70 
Montan~ $10,194,218.72 $0.00 $27.,234,492.~ 
Nebraska $14.279.599.86 SO.DO $38.148,843.51 
Nevada $14,638,443.42 $0.00 $39,107,516.49 
New Hampshire $15,982,416.92 $0.00 $42,698,025.70 
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Annual Payments to ~ch State 

Year 1998 1999 2000 
Amount $2.400,000,000.00 $0.00 $6,411,750,000.00 

New Jersey $92,807,910.83 $0.00 $247,942, 13427 
New Mexico $14,313,352.87 S0.00 $38,239,016.77 
New Yori< $306,288,745.07 $0.00 $818r269,625.50 
North Carolina $55.914,840.09 $0.00 $149,540,283.73 
North Dakota $8,784.SS0.94 $0.00 $23,467 ,88~t 12 
Ohlo $120,900~34.58 $0.00 $322,992,532.93 
OkJehoma $24.867.287.65 $0.00 $66.434.513.15 
Oregon $27,543,797.82 $0.00 $73,584,977.37 
Penn. $137,924,610.41 $0.00 $368,474,217.00 
Rhode Island $17,253,727.23 $0.00 $46,094,410.65 
South Caronna $28.232,446.25 $0.00 $75,424,744.69 
South Dakota $8,374,699.41 $0.00 $22,373,532.Q0 
Tennas$e,e $58,581,487.29 $0.00 $156,504,051.21 
Texas S0.00 $0.00 $0,00 
utah $10,677.285.47 $0.00 $28,525,035.47 
Vermont $9,868,441.49 S0.00 $26,364,158.22 
Virginia $49,073,882.70 $0.00 $131,103.944.75 
Washington $49,278, 196.65 s6.oo $131,649,762.25 
West Virginia $21.276,048.98 $0.00 $56.837,623.03 
Wisconsin $49,728,936.59 $0.00 $132,853.962.15 
Wyoming $5,960,276.82 $0.00 $15,823,252.04 

Amerctan Samoa $365,208.62 $0.00 $875.677 .85 
N. Marianas $202,503.22 $0.00 $541.000.00 
Guam $526,489.S1 $0.00 $1.406,649.63 
US Virgin Island $416,623.09 $0.00 $1,113.034.64 
Puerto Rico $261910,857 .33 $0;00 $71,893,502.96 

$2,400,000,000.00 so.oo $8,411.750,000.00 
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Year - 2001 2002 2003 
Amount $6,923,660,000.00 $8,313,294,800.00 $8,391,971.144.00 

Alabama $111,895.403.67 $134,353,720.06 s 135,625,232l 1 
Alasks $23,638,672.09 $28,383, 145.58 $28,651,761.36 
Arizona $102,046,748.46 $122,628,359.76 $123,687,958.17 
Arkansas $57,332,480.87 $68,839,675.47 $69,491,067.60 
California $883,732,Sn .84 $1,061.105,244.62 $1,071, 147.458.11 
Colorado $94,813,784.01 $113.963.751.40 $116,042,295.05 
Connecticut $128,540,333.44 $154,339.422.45 $1 ~.800,078.1 S 
Delaware $27,380,966.02 $32,876,648.30 $33,187,689.27 
o.c. $42.034.805.88 $60,471,532.83 $50,949,191.30 
Florida $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Georgia $169,938,293.33 $204,046,288.14 $205,977,366.58 
Hawan $41,671,085.70 $50,034,811.08 $50,508,336.45 
Idaho $25,151,109.85 $30,199,141.89 $30,484,944.11 
Illinois $322,244.254.1 e $386,921,293.46 $390,583,085.03 
Indiana $141,228,042.84 $189,574,858.88 $171,179,701.52 
Iowa $60,212.783.18 $72.297,9TT .85 $72~982.200.02 
KenS!Js ~7,720,561.87 $69,305,547.47 $69,961.449.52 
Kentucky $121,936,832.88 $146,4:10,305.30 $147,795,920.49 
Loulsiana $166,162,979.89 $187,494, 151.32 $189,268,580.88 
Maine $53,267211.52 $63,958,373.54 $64,563,670.37 
Maryland $156,606,355.68 $187.918,452.52 $169.696.897 .43 
Mass. $279,645,174.68 $335,772,232.68 $338,949,953.70 
Michigan $301,314,052.34 $361,790,230.09 $365,214,183.32 
Minnesota $0.00 S0.00 $0.00 
M~~ppl $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Missouf) $157,485,644,00 $188,094,281.94 $190,883,664.90 
Morrtaria $29,408.878.82 $35,311,477.28 $35,645,662.22 
Nebraska $41,194,622.66 $49,482,718.04 $49.930,829.17 
Nevada $42.228,835.47 $50,705.706.47 $51.185.581.14 
New Hampshire $46,107,008.63 $55,361,059.77 $55,884,992.33 
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Ygar 2001 2002 2003 
Amount $6,923,660,000.00 $8,313,294.800.00 $8,391.971, 144.00 

New Jersey $267,737,674.95 $321.474,801.04 $324,517,212.33 
New M8xico $41,291,895.30 $49,579,634.16 $50,048,851.76 
New York $883,599,638.62 S1 .060.945,263.21 $1,070,985,962.65 
North Carolina $161.479,483.90 $193,889,727.95 $195,724,684.52 
North Dakota $25,341.550.30 $30,427,8052g $30.11s.n1.56 
Ohio $348.780,049..22 $418,783,038.0Q $422,746,386.61 
Oklahoma $71,738,602.00 $86,137,122.12 $86,952,316.82 
Oregon $79,459,954.68 $95.408.213.01 $96,311.148.66 
Penn. $397,892,951.71 $477,753,311.05 $482,274,729.42 
Rhode Island $48,774,558.78 $59,764,717.02 $60,330,325.43 
South Qarolina $81,446.607 .84 $97,793,603.59 $98,719, 114.26 
South Dakota $24, 15Q,821.39 $28,008,893.79 $29,283,431.6~ 
Tennessee $168,899 .234.0Q $202.918,753.08 $204,839,159.61 
Texa:s $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Utah $30,802,455.97 $36,984,759.08 $37,334,779.83 
Vermont $28,469.055.67 $34,183,026.39 $34,505,531.76 
Virginia $141,571,199.45 $169,985,689.11 $171,594,419.81 
Wa$hlngto·n $142, 160,61627 $170,693,406.67 $172,308.835.16 
West Virginia $61,375,502.~~ $73,694,064.18 $74,391,488.79 
Wi;consin $143,460,937.12 $172.254,712.48 $173,884,817,03 
Wyoming $17 .194.554.25 $20,645.640.96 $20.841,029.62 

Amerclan Samoa $1,053,575.12 $1,265,036.21 $1,2TT,O08.41 
N. Mariana~ $584,193.09 $701,445.39 $708,083.81 
Guam $1,518,847.65 $1,823,692.71 $1,840,951.99 
US Virgin Island $1 .201,898.61 $1,44:43,129.42 $1,◄56.787.06 
Puerto Rlco $77,633,434.04 $93,216,094.84 $94,007 :04.89 

$6,923,860,000.00 $8,313.2Q4,800.00 $8,391.971.144.00 
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Year 2004to2007 2008 to2017 
Amount $7,004.000,000.00 $7, 143,000.000.00 

Alabama $113,193,603.17 $115,440,225.02 
Alaska $23,812,967.90 $24,387.639.93 
Arizona $103,230,867.24 $105,279,566.63 
Arkansas $57,997,749.17 $59,148,761.04 
Celifom!ti $893,887,439.65 $911,729,337.72 
Colorado $96,015,134.08 $97,920,631.45 
Connecticut $130,031,875.55 $132,612,462.45 
Delaware $27,698,686.24 $28.248,388.89 
D.C. $42.522.564.69 $43,366,459.11 
Florida $0.00 $0.00 
Georgia $171,910,204.50 $175,321,900.45 
Hawaii $42, 154,e24.04 $42,991,216.38 
Idaho $25,442,955.52 $25,947 .881.39 
llllnols $325,983,478.42 $332,452,880.08 
Indiana $142,867,820.78 S145,703,147.32 
Iowa $60,911,473.61 $62.120,310.68 
Kansas $58,390,333.34 $59,549,136.35 
Kentucky $123,351,547.49 $125,799.557.93 
Louisiana $157,964,930,57 $161,099,871.36 
Malm, $53,885,307.70 $54,954,704.87 
Maryland $158,322,406.83 $161,464,442.03 
Mass. $282,8Q0,090.42 $288,504,271.26 
Michigan $304,810,407.01 $310,859,614.11 
Minnesota $0.00 $0.00 
Mlsslssippi $0.00 $0.00 
MJseourt $169,313,058.50 $162,474,753.97 
Montana $29,760,128.30 $30.340.543.46 
Nebraska $41,612.632.27 $42,499,859.09 
Nevada $42,719,857.37 $43,567,667.21 
New Hampshire $46.642,020.04 $47,567,668.35 
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Year 2004 to 2007 2008-to 2017 
Amount $7,004,000,000.00 $7,143,000,000.00 

New Jersey $270,844,419.TT $276,219,544.60 
New Mexico $41,771,134.78 $42,600, 116.47 
New York $893,852,654.37 $911,591,877.52 
North Caroline $163,353,241.67 $166,595,117.83 
North Dakota $25,635,605.78 $26, 144,364.gs 
Ohio $352,827,184.57 $359,829 .323.15 
-Oklahoma $72,571.034.45 $74,011,264.86 
Oregon $80,381,983.32 $81,9TT ,228.27 
Penn. $402,509,988.05 $410.498, 121.73 
Rhode Island $50.352,127.30 $51.361,405.67 
South Carolina $82,391,686.98 $84,026,818.16 
South Oako~ $24,440,184.46 $24.925, 199.13 
Tennessee $170,gG0,248.71 $174,353,092.02 
Texas $0.00 $0.00 
Utah $31.159,878.10 $31,778,270.89 
Vermont $28,799,401.75 $29,370,948.99 
Virginia $143,213,947.68 $146,056. 143.38 
Washington $143,810,203.90 $146,664,232.79 
West Virginia $62,067,684.60 $63,319,864.52 
Wisconsin $145,125,613.28 $148,005,747.52 
Wyoming $17,394,074.52 $17,739,273.88 

Amercfan Samoa $1,065,800.48 $1,086,952.15 
N. Marianas $590,971.89 $602. 700.20 
Guam $1,536.471.89 $1,566,964.41 
us Virgin Island $1,215,845.06 $1,239,974.49 
Puerto Rico $76,534,268.30 $80,092!843.87 

$7,004,000,000.00 $7, 143,000,000.00 
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Year 201Bto 2025 Total 
Amount $6,003,999,997.00 $195,918,675,920.00 

Alabama $129,355,111.40 $3,166,302, 118.81 
Alaska $27,327, 155.19 $668,903,056.60 
Artzona $117.869,711.74 $2,887,614,909.02 
AricsMas $66.278,410.08 $1,622.336, 125.«59 
California $1,021,626,993.76 $25,006,972,610.74 
Colorado $109,723,748.27 $2,885,773,548.89 
Connecticut $148,697.248.93 $3,637.303.381.65 
Delaware $31,653,381.58 $774,798,676.89 
D.C, $48,593,747.63 $1,189,458.105.56 
Florida $0.00 $0.00 
Georgia $196,454,ne.eo $4,808.7 40,668.60 
Hawaii $48,173,273.94 $1, 179.165,923.07 
Idaho $29,076,587.85 $711,700,479.23 
lllinols $372.~25,948.64 $9.118,539,559.10 
Indiana $163.265,853.39 $3,9Q6,355,551.01 
Iowa $69,608,143.15 $1.703,839,885.56 
Kansa~ $66,727,045.67 $1,633,317,646.19 
Kentucky $140,963,133.32 $3.450,438,586.10 
Louisiana $180,518,461.42 $4.418,657,915.22 
Maine $61,575,812.49 $1,507.301.275.81 
Maryland $180,826,876.56 $4,428,657 .383.58 
Mass. $323.27Q_,880.48 $7,913, 114.212.77 
Michigan $348,329,882.46 $8,526.278,033.60 
Minnesota $0.00 $0.00 
Missls$lppl $0.00 $0.00 
Missouri $182,059,069.06 $4.456,368,288.30 
Montana $33,997,719.42 $832, 182,430.63 
Nebraska $47 .622.465.53 $1 .165,663,457 .48 
Nevada $48,819,208.77 $1,194,976,854.76 
New Hampshire $53.301,360.40 $1,304,68g, 150.27 
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Y~r 2018 to 2025 Total 
Amount S8,003,999,997.00 $195,918,675,920.00 

New Jersey $309,514,382.50 $7,576,167,918.47 
New Mexico $47,735,031.79 $1, 168,438,809.05 
New York $1,021,472,964.43 $25,003,202,243.12 
North Carolina $186,676,091.64 $4,569,381,898.24 
North Dakota $29,295,743.66 $717 ,08Q,36Q.09 
Ohio $403,202.282.16 $9,869,422,448.61 
Oklahoma $82,932,404.27 $2,029,985,862.29 
Oregon $91,858,585.71 $2.248A76,833.11 
Penn. $459,978,675.54 $11,259,169,603.46 
Rhode Island $57,541, 180.29 $1,408.469,747.28 
South Caronna $94,155,208.21 $2,304,693, 119.82 
South Dakota $27,929,622.64 $683,650,008.54 
Tennessee 5195,369,193.34 $4,782,168,127.09 
Texas $0.00 $0.00 
Utah $35.608,747.04 $871,616,513.42 
Vermont $32,911,252.36 $805,588,329.25 
Virginia $163,661,398.74 $4,006,037 .550.26 
Washington $164,342,785.78 $4,022,716r266.79 
Wes1 Virginia $70,952,268.31 $1.736,741,427.33 
Wisconsin $165,846,003.46 $4,059,511,421.32 
Wyoming $19,877,523.19 $486,653,G76.10 

Amercian Samoa $1,217,970.74 $29,s12,g95_a1 
N. M~rianas $675,348.22 $16,530,900.80 
Guam $1,755,842.52 $42,978,8032.7 
US Virgin Island $1,389,438.02 $34,010,102.11 
Puerto Rlco $89.747,042,16 $~ 186,791,813.07 

$8,003,999,997.00 $195,918,676,920.00 
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